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So do we
Life remains unfulfilled without the dreams and hopes to make it that much more vibrant. 

We understand that in your life’s journey, your mileposts and celebrations are based on these 

aspirations and we want to make them come true. As you journey with us, you make our own 

visions and goals stronger as we continuously better ourselves to serve you and your purpose. 

In the year under review, we took the plunge into diversification, and even though it meant 

that our returns were not as favourable, it is merely the beginning to the great ventures ahead. 

However we always kept our stakeholders in mind and will continue to fulfil and

 inspire their big plans as well as our own.
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about this RepoRt

RepoRt pRoFile
this integrated annual report has been compiled with the 
aim of providing any stakeholder who wishes to make an 
informed assessment of the Company’s ability to create 
value over time. Integrated thinking is intrinsic to how 
we manage our business and to our internal strategy and 
reporting practices. Accordingly, the report covers our strategy 
development process, which includes a review of KFL’s 
business model and our interaction and interdependency with 
the external societal context. the report discusses all matters 
that we believe could substantively affect KFL’s value creation 
capacity and both financial and non-financial information 
is provided to demonstrate the Company’s commitment to 
generate long term value for all stakeholders.

scope and FRamewoRks
this report provides a concise review of the strategy and 
business model, risks and opportunities, and operational and 
governance performance of Kanrich Finance Ltd (KFL), for the 
financial year 1st April 2016  to 31st March 2017.

In striving to comply with globally accepted best practices 
for integrated reporting, this annual report references the 
International Integrated Reporting Councils (IIRC’s) <IR> 
Framework and the GRI’s G4 Guidelines.

assuRance
the Board is responsible for ensuring the integrity of the 
integrated report. the Board believes that the report addresses 
all material issues and presents a balanced and fair account of 
the Group’s performance.

We use a combined assurance model to provide us with 
assurance obtained from management and from internal and 
external assurance service providers.

Our Audit Committee provides internal assurance to the 
Board  on an annual basis on the execution of the combined 
assurance plan. the Group’s financial, operating, compliance 
and risk management controls are assessed by the Group’s 
internal audit function, which is overseen by the Audit 
Committee and the Integrated Risk Management Committee.

External auditors; KPMG provide independent assurance 
regarding KFL’s financial statements for the year ending 31st 
March 2017.

FoRwaRd looking statements
the report contains, where applicable or helpful; plans for the 
future. We affirm that these statements reflect the Company’s 
position and beliefs as at the time of writing. However, we 
recognize that we operate in a changing environment and 
hence, there are uncertainties or new developments that could 
cause actual results or actions to differ from those stated in 
these forward-looking statements. therefore forward- looking 
statements should not be interpreted as a guarantee of results 
or of the course of action that will be taken.

Feedback and QueRies
Any feedback and / or queries regarding this annual report 
should be directed to; 
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You envision Your dream home... 
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Financial highlights

  2017 2016 % 2018
  Rs. 000 Rs. 000  Rs. 000

Gross Income  3,532,463 4,396,400 -19.65% 3,981,437
Net Interest Income  2,404,611 3,192,886 -24.69% 2,261,530
Net Fee and Commission Income  45,489 117,157 -61.17% 292,638
total Operating Income  2,525,752 3,332,894 -24.22% 2,717,854
Profit Before taxation  622,376 1,259,364 -50.58% 645,199
taxation (VAt and NBt on FS)  310,943 611,300 -49.13% 324,627
Profits after taxation  311,432 648,063 -51.94% 320,572

Financial position
total Assets  11,533,897 12,055,666 -4.33% 11,436,114
Loan Receivables (Including Lease and Hire Purchase  
 Receivables)  9,238,904 9,705,593 -4.81% 8,793,487
Public Borrowings  8,124,440 9,146,069 -11.17% 7,912,439
Institutional Borrowings  944,574 406,863 132.16% 1,000,470
Shareholders' Funds  1,793,322 1,549,580 15.73% 2,106,547

profitability
Return on Assets  2.70% 5.49% -2.79% 2.80%
Return on Equity  17.37% 52.49% -35.12% 15.22%
Net Interest Margin  23.00% 30.52% -7.52% 19.78%
Cost to Income  63.00% 46.00% 17.00% 61%

investor information
Earnings per Share (Rs.)  4.01 8.34 -51.92% 4.13
Net Assets per Share (Rs.)  23.08 19.94 15.75% 27.11

Regulatory Ratios
Core Capital Ratio (Minimum 5%)  17.33% 14.49% 2.84% 18.34%
total Risk Weighted Capital Ratio (Minimum 10%)  17.33% 14.49% 2.84% 18.34%
Capital Funds to total Public Borrowings (Minimum 10%)  22.07% 16.94% 5.13% 26.62%

employees
Number of Employees  1,518 1,746 -13.06% 1,525
Profits per Employee (Rs.)  205,159 371,170 -44.73% 210,211
Staff Cost per Employee  441,962 350,900 25.95% 556,446

government institutions
VAt and NBt on Financial Services  150,833 223,473 -32.50% 166,523
Income tax  160,110 387,828 -58.72% 158,104
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company oveRview

WE At KANRICH FINANCE LIMItED (KFL) 
MOVE tOWARDS OuR GOAL OF BEING A 
BESt CORPORAtE ENtItY IN tHE COuNtRY, 
PERFORMING IN StEADY PRACtICES AND 
ExCEEDING tHE DESIRES OF OuR CuStOMERS.

mission
We foresee ourselves being the best corporate entity in the 
country, performing in steady practices, conducting business 
with responsibility, consistently outperforming our peers and
surpassing the desires of customers through excellence in 
delivering innovative products and services. We promote 
a continuous learning culture and provide a dynamic and 
challenging work environment for our employees whilst 
creating lasting value for all our stakeholders.

about us
Kanrich Finance limited (KFL), is a fully fledged and licensed 
finance company in Sri Lanka. We have been offering a wide 
range of finance and microfinance products over a glorious
period of more than 46 years. KFL was originally incorporated 
as Mutual Investments and Finance Ltd in 1971 under the
Companies Ordinance No. 51 of 1938 and later on, re-
registered as Kanrich Finance Ltd under the new Companies 
Act No. 07 of 2007. In 2010 the company was completely
transformed after being acquired by Mutual Holdings Ltd. 
(MHL) and presently ranks among the top finance companies 
in Sri Lanka. Reaching more than 12 billion LKR worth assets, 
a customer base of more than 200,000 people and 36 branch 
locations around the country, we house more than 1700 
employees at present. Compliant with best practices and 
excellent corporate governance, our Board of Directors is
supported by several independent Board Subcommittees 
such as Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and three 
Management Committees, namely, Asset and Liability
Committee, Credit Committee and the Integrated Risk 
Management Committee. these committees provide unbiased 
perspectives that enhance the function of the Board in areas
pertaining to good governance operational principles.

200,000 people

36 bRanch

1700 employees
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achievements

GLOBAL BANKING & 
FINANCE REVIEW AWARDS 
2014 / 2015 / 2016

Kanrich Finance Limited was 
honored with “tHE FAStESt 
GROWING & EMERGING 
FINANCE COMPANY ” and 
“tHE BESt MICRO FINANCE 
SERVICE PROVIDER” for 
three consecutive years for 
year 2014, year 2015 and 
year 2016, at the Global 
Banking & Finance Review 

awards
held in London, in pursuit 
of excellence in serving 
the Sri Lankan rural micro 
business community in 
ever inventive and genuine 
manner, bringing comfort 
and prosperity to thousands 
of rural lives coupled with 
its rapid growth across the 
island for catering to those 
who need its timely support.
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boaRd oF diRectoRs

mr. p. a. pematilaka
B. Com (Honors) (university of Ceylon), MBA, FCA
Chairman /  Director

mr. shiran weerasinghe
B. Sc (Acct) (Sp.) Hons, MBA (Aus), FCA, ACMA, MCPM, MIPA (Aus)
Chief Executive Officer/ Executive Director

Mr. P. A. Pematilaka is a fellow member of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka with over 30 years of 
experience in Accounting, Finance and Auditing, having 
held the positions of Director Public Enterprises, Director 
Public Enterprise Reforms, Additional Director General of 
treasury Operations, Director General of State Accountants 
of the General treasury and the Auditor General. After 
retirement from the Post of Auditor General, he performed 
as a Consultant for the Committee on Public Enterprises in 
Parliament of Sri Lanka for around 2 years, a Member of 
tax Appeal Commission and a Member of the Government 
Procurement Appeal Board.

Mr. Weerasinghe is a fellow member of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka. He has obtained the 
Accountancy & Financial Management Degree from the 
university of Sri Jayawardenepura and completed his MBA 
from the university of Southern Queensland, Australia. He 
started his career at Messrs Ernst & Young. He counts over 19 
years of experience and held senior Management positions 
in several institutions in the field of Finance. He is also a 
Certified Management Accountant (ACMA), a Member of the 
Institute of Public Accountants of Australia (MIPA Aus) and a 
Member of the Professional Managers’ Association (MCPM).
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eng. (dr.) k. m. s. b. Rekogama
FIIESL, MIAESL, I. Eng., GCGI (London), Ph. D. (Honorary)
Executive Director

mr. k. k. d. Ranawaka
LLB (university of Colombo) / Attorney –at – Law
Director

Having over 40 years of experience in Engineering, 
transportation, Oil Exploration, Pharmaceuticals and 
Plantation Industries, Eng. (Dr.) Rekogama has held 
high positions in the State sector as the Chairman/ 
Managing Director of State Pharmaceutical Manufacturing 
Corporation(2001-2004), Chairman Janatha Estate 
Development Board ( 2015 Jan to Dec.). He is also a Past 
President of Institution of Incorporated Engineers of Sri Lanka, 
Past Vice-President of Institute of Automotive Engineers 
of Sri Lanka. He was the District Governor of International 
Association of Lions Clubs District 306A1 Sri Lanka 2008/2009.

Mr. Kingsley Ranawaka counts over 20 years experience in the 
field of Law / Administration. In 2005, he was appointed as 
the Chairman of Sri Lanka Foreign Employment Agency and 
thereafter was promoted as the Chairman of Sri Lanka Bureau 
of Foreign Employment (SLBFE). He was the former Chairman 
at Maga Neguma Road Construction Equipment company 
(MNRCE), a fully Government owned company, which was 
established under the purview of the Ministry of Ports and 
Highway up to April 2015. Currently he is practicing as an 
Attorney –at – Law.
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mr. t. l. b. hurulle 
Dip. R&AC (uK), C&G Cert. S&t. Ref (uK)
Director

Mr. t. L. B. Hurulle, who is an engineer by profession with 
local and foreign professional qualifications and counts 
for over 20 years of experience and exposure in the areas 
of technical , Managerial , Administration and high level 
Policy Implementation. He was the Director General at 
the telecommunications Regulatory Commission of Sri 
Lanka (tRC) and a member of the Public Representations 
Committee (PRC), Sri Lanka Constitutional Reform. Mr. Hurulle 
is presently, a Non-Executive Independent Director of the 
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC

board of directors Contd.
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mr. varuna walgama  
PQ HRM 
Head of HR

Mr. Walgama counts over 25 years of experience in the 
Human Resources field in apparel, telecommunications 
and Oil & Fats industries with local and international 
exposure. He holds a PQHRM (IPM), Postgraduate 
certificates in Human Resource Management and 
Human Resource Development from Post graduate 
Institute of Management, Sri Lanka. He joined Kanrich 
Finance Ltd in 2016.

mr. thushara wijewardena  
MBS (Col), Pg Dip in Business Management (Col), AIB
Assistant General Manager  Credit

Mr. thushara started his career at Seylan Bank in 1992. He 
held several senior positions in Pan Asia Bank, Merchant 
Bank of Sri Lanka, Lisvin Investments and Sarvodaya 
Development Finance before joining Kanrich. He holds 
a Postgraduate Diploma in Business Management and 
Master of Business Studies from university of Colombo. 
He is an Associate Member of Institute of Bankers of 
Sri Lanka and counts over 25 years of experience in the 
Banking & Financial services industry.

mrs kamini dissanayake
Attorney-at-Law, Notary Public, Commissioner of Oaths 
and Licensed Company Secretary (Dip in Arb, Dip in 
Human Rights)

Head of Legal

Admitted and enrolled as an Attorney-at-Law in 1995, 
she has experience as a lawyer both in commercial 
and in the humanitarian field. She is a Mediator trainer 
and an Arbitrator. She has partly completed the Master 
of Laws Degree Programme (LLM) at the university 
of Colombo. She was appointed Examiner Sri Lanka 
Law College in 2014 and was a visiting Lecturer at the 
Faculty of Graduate Studies at Kothalawala Defense 
university on Arbitration in the year 2015/2016. She 

held prestigious senior positions and was the CEO at 
ICLP Arbitration Center, a Legal Consultant/Deputy 
Project Director at the Ministry of Justice, Company 
Secretary and Head of Legal at MCSL Financial Services 
Limited. Life Member Bar Association of Sri Lanka 
and a Life Member the Colombo law Society. She was 
invited as a panelist to session twelve at the Asian 
Judges Symposium on Environmental Decision-Making, 
the Rule of Law, and Environmental Justice held on 
28th and 29th July 2010 in Manila Philippines.

mr. eranda amal godage 
Marketing Chartered Marketer, MBA (uK), DipM (uK), 
MCIM (uK), MCMI (uK), MCPM, MSLIM, FIPFM (uK), 
MGARP, MIM (SL)
General Manager - Marketing

Mr. Godage is a Banker and a Chartered Marketer 
with 16 years experience having started his career at 
Sampath Bank PLC. He is a Fellow Member of the 
Institute of Professional Financial Managers uK. He 
holds a MBA from the university of Wales uK and a 
Diploma in Marketing from the CIM (uK). He is also 
a Member of the Chartered Institute of Marketing uK, 
the Chartered Management Institute of uK, Certified 
Professional Managers, Sri Lanka Institute of Marketing, 
Global Association of Risk Professionals and Institute of 
Management of Sri Lanka. He has completed graduate 
conversion program (Final Stage) in CMA – Australia. 
He joined Kanrich Finance in 2009 and currently heads 
the Corporate Marketing, Micro Credit, Pawning & Gold 
Loans, Research & Development, CSR, Customer Services 
and Fund Mobilising Departments of the company.

mr. Ravi indra kumara Joseph  

MBCS (uK) , Higher Dip. (Computer Science)
Deputy General Manager - IT

Mr. Joseph is a Software Engineer by profession with 
almost 15 years experience in designing, implementing 
and maintaining software in Commercial Banks, 

corporate managers Contd.
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Merchant Banks and Finance Companies. He is a 
member of British Computer Society and has been 
involved in many system development projects in the 
finance industry. He has working experience at Open 
Arc system Management and several other finance 
companies. He joined Kanrich Finance Ltd in 2010 
and was instrumental in developing the Core Banking 
Software for KFL, Branchless Bank Solutions (POS) , SMS 
Gateway and KFL Mobile Application.

mr. sadeepa Ratnayake  

MSLIM (SL)
General Manager – Investments

Mr. Ratnayake started his career at Seylan Merchant 
Bank Ltd and counts over 18 years of experience in 
the industry. He has held several senior positions in 
marketing in the Financial Service Sector. He joined 
Kanrich Finance Ltd in 2010 and currently heads the 
company’s Leasing, Business Loans, Mortgage Loans, 
Personal Loans, Consumer Loans and Real Estate 
business divisions. He is a Member of the Sri Lanka 
Institute of Marketing.

mrs. w. shyaminie Fernando 
BA (sp) Hons Business Statistics, Pg Dip in Marketing 
J’pura
Assistant General Manager

Mrs. Fernando joined Kanrich Finance Ltd in July 2010 
as Business Development Manager. She graduated 
from the university of Sri Jayawardenepura with a 
Second Class upper and completed her Postgraduate 
Diploma in Marketing from the university of Sri 
Jayawardenepura. She started her career at the Auditor 
Generals Department and then joined the Finance PLC 
in 2000 before joining LB Finance and MBSL Savings 
Bank and currently functions as a Zonal Head. She 
is currently reading for her MBA in Anglia Ruskin 
university, uK.

mr. pradeep basnayake 
MBA (UK)
Deputy General Manager

Mr. Basnayake is a banker by profession with 20 years 
of experience. He started his career at the Hong kong 
and Shanghai Banking Corporation Ltd before joining 
Sampath Bank PLC and DFCC Vardhana Bank PLC. 
He joined Kanrich Finance Ltd in 2011 and currently 
functions as the Deputy General Manager and holds a 
MBA from the Cardiff Metropolitan university, uK. He 
is also a former National Rugby Captain and National 
Rugby selector.

mr. aloka nishaditha wahalawatta 

BBA (Hons.) (Special – Marketing)
General Manager – Operations

Mr. Wahalawatta is a management graduate (BBA 
Special (Hons)) from the university of Colombo with 
a Second upper Class and has obtained Diploma 
in Credit Management from the Institute of Credit 
Management. He started his career at AMW before 
moving into the finance field. He joined the Finance 
PLC in 2002 before joining Kanrich Finance Ltd in 
2009 and counts over 14 years of experience in the 
financial service industry. He is a specialist in credit 
and investigations and currently heads the Company’s 
Credit, Legal & Recovery and Administration divisions. 
Considering his contribution to the society to improve 
the life style of under privilege people, awarded by 
Asarana Sarana, Manawa Hithawadi, Sri Danaranjana 
Doctorate on 25th February 2017.
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mr. chitrabandu de silva
Dip. in Marketing – university of J’pura
Head of RBS Loans (Welandawarama)

mr. sarath thilakarathne
Head of Pawning

mr. Ranasinghe a. karunatilleke
Chief Manager

mr. duminda wanniarachchi
Chief Manager

mr. ananda dias
Chief Manager

mr. Rathnasiri illeperuma
Head of Real Estates

mr. R. sujeewa warnakulasuriya
Dip. Microfinance (IBSL)
Head of Micro Finance

mr. dimuthu perera
BSc in Mathematics, PGDM (India), PGDMM (India)
Chief Manager

mr. b. h. iranga niroshan
Head of Mortgage Loans

mr. harshadeva abayajeewa
B. Mgt (university of Kelaniya), MBA (university of 
Colombo), ACA, ACMA
Head of Finance

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10



Kanrich Finance Ltd | Annual Report 2016/1718

opeRational manageRs

mr. Jagath gamage
Dip. in Bus. Mgt., Dip. in Mkt. Mgt 
Senior Manager

mr. sureka senavirathna
Senior Manager

mr. kushan gunasekara
Head of Leasing

mr. lakmal weerabahu
Senior Manager

mrs. safaya doole
Senior Manager

mr. sujith asanka
HR Diploma (Chamber) Of Com.  
Senior Manager

mr. sulakshana madana
Dip. in Micro Finance (IBSL)   
Senior Manager

mr. mahela wijayalath
MBA (uK), BA (Hons) uK   
Head of Business Loans

mr. Rajitha assalaarachchi
Dip in banking & finance 
Senior Manager
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mr. pradeep samarakoon
PGDIPM(SL), CPM (Asia), MSLIM   
Senior Manager

mr. Rasika dissanayake
Senior Manager

mr. nuwan illukwaththa
DIBM 
Senior Manager

mr. s. m. anjana prasad samarakoon
Operation Manager

mr. Rasika theekshana
Operation Manager

mr. manoj wariyagoda
Dip. in Micro Finance 
Manager - CSR

mr. duleeka b. navarathna
Operation Manager - Micro Recovery

mr. g.R.v.a bandara
Manager - Audit

mr. Rukmal Fernando
Manager - Recoveries & Investigations
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ms. nirasha Ruwanthi
Dip in C/S (uK)  
Manager - Customer Relations

mr. dadira peiris
BSc (Agri), MAAt, CBA   
Manager – Administration 

mrs. hiranya warnakulasooriya
Dip in Mgt , MSc (Mkt) 
Manager – Savings

mahima Ranasinghe
Dip in (Mkt) 
Manager – Ran sihinaya 
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chaiRman’s Review

“Facing stiFF maRket competition, the key 
stRategic thRust FoR the FutuRe would be 
to leveRage on the company’s diveRsiFied
business model, stRong inFRastRuctuRe and 
well tRained staFF to FuRtheR consolidate 
the company’s position and to continue
gRow sustainably in the yeaRs ahead.”
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key FactoRs that shaped sRi lanka’s economic 
peRFoRmance 2016.
Following a period of uncertainty, the Sri Lankan economy 
showed early signs of stabilization during the year 2016 in 
response to corrective actions adopted by the government 
and the Central Bank. unfavorable weather conditions and 
sluggish global economic recovery caused the economy to 
grow at a slower rate of 4.4 per cent in 2016 in real terms, in 
comparison to 4.8 per cent in the previous year.

Inflation, which remained low in the first four months of the 
year, increased thereafter to record an annual average of 4.0 
per cent in 2016.

Movements in external sector balances reflected the continued 
domestic demand for imports from certain sectors of the 
economy. the balance of payments (BOP) reported a deficit 
for the second consecutive year in spite of improvements in 
earnings from tourism and other service exports as well as 
workers’ remittances.

Considering the possible rise in demand driven inflationary 
pressures, the Central Bank continued to tighten monetary 
policy and monetary conditions throughout the year. 
Accordingly, in addition to increasing the Statutory Reserve 
Ratio (SRR) applicable on rupee deposit liabilities of licensed 
commercial banks (LCBs) in December 2015 to be effective 
from January 2016 and the continued application of the loan-
to-value (LtV) ratio as a selective macro prudential demand 
management tool, the Central Bank raised its key policy 
interest rates by a total of 100 basis points in two steps during 
2016, the first in February 2016 and the second in July 2016.

the financial sector, in the meantime, continued to expand 
during the year whilst exhibiting resilience amidst challenging 
market conditions both globally and domestically.

Meanwhile, fiscal operations registered a notable improvement 
in both revenue and expenditure fronts, resulting in the 
containment of the overall budget deficit at the envisaged 
level of 5.4 per cent of Gross Domestic Product (GDP).

Economic growth in 2016 was primarily driven by the expansion 
in investment expenditure during the year. Accordingly, gross 

domestic capital formation, which represents the level of 
investment activity of the economy, grew by 19.6 per cent, while 
accounting for 31.5 per cent of the nominal GDP. Meanwhile, 
consumption expenditure, which is the largest expenditure 
category of the economy, recorded a modest growth of 4.1 per 
cent in nominal terms, which was a considerable moderation 
compared to the growth of 10.3 per cent recorded in the 
previous year. Amidst these developments, domestic savings 
increased to 23.8 per cent of nominal GDP. National savings as 
a percentage of nominal GDP improved to 28.9 per cent in 2016 
compared to 26.0 per cent in 2015. With the increase in both 
investment and savings, the domestic savings-investment gap as 
well as the national savings-investment gap remained broadly 
unchanged from the previous year at 7.6 per cent of GDP and 
2.5 per cent of GDP, respectively, in 2016.

Sri Lanka’s external sector performance remained subdued in 
2016, with foreign exchange outflows exceeding the moderate 
inflows during the year. the trade deficit as a percentage of 
GDP expanded to 11.2 per cent in 2016 compared to 10.4 per 
cent in 2015.

the improvements in fiscal operations, achieved under the 
government’s revenue based fiscal consolidation process, 
helped to contain the overall budget deficit at the targeted 
level of 5.4 per cent of GDP in 2016 in comparison to the 
deficit of 7.6 per cent in the previous year.

changes non-bank Financial seRvices sectoR.
the Licensed Finance Companies (LFCs) / Specialised Leasing 
Companies (SLCs) sector grew in terms of assets and the branch 
network during 2016. the LFC/SLC sector placed more emphasis 
on other loan products, gradually moving away from the core 
business of financing for the purchase of motor vehicles. this 
growth was mainly funded through domestic borrowings, as the 
sector’s reliance gradually shifted towards bank borrowings from 
retail deposits considering its flexibility and cost.

Increased business volumes and improved operational 
efficiency coupled with a moderately increasing net interest 
income enabled the LFC/SLC sector to post an increased level 
of profits in 2016. Risks in the LFC/SLC sector as a whole 
remained at manageable level as reflected by Non-Performing 
Loans (NPL), Liquidity and Capital.

chairman’s Review Contd.
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key stRategic pRioRities FoR the company in 2016
Following two consecutive years of rapid growth, in the year 
2016/17 the Company adopted a more conservative approach 
to ensure greater stability and long-term sustainability of the 
business. this called for a strategic realignment of the business 
model to stay ahead of peers and grow sustainably in a highly 
competitive market environment.

Consequently the strategic focus shifted towards consolidation, 
with the emphasis for the year primarily centered on 
enhancing the service quality, professionalism, and customer 
retention. As always, investments in operational efficiency 
and innovation were seen as key priorities in achieving profit 
optimization.

As part of the realignment process, the current funding model 
was also reviewed and a decision was made to reduce the 
dependence on public borrowings, which had served as 
the key source of funds during the Company’s aggressive 
growth phase for the past two years. Following the decision 
to ease away from public borrowings, steps were taken to 
secure a larger volume of institutional and bank borrowings. 
the move supports the Company’s strategy to diversify the 
lending portfolio and focus on alternative loan products, 
while gradually easing away from the core business of Micro 
Financing. the argument here being that although Micro 
Financing remains a high yielding business line for the 
Company, prospective diversification opportunities would 
help mitigate the high risk exposure experienced during past 
years. While efforts to reduce the exposure to Micro Lending 
were met with considerable success, this nonetheless meant 
the Company had to contend with erosion of the bottom line.

Meanwhile, in conformity with the Directives issued and 
the guidelines and instructions given by the Regulator, the 
Company kicked off efforts to streamline its Branch and 
Service Center Network comprising thirty-six in number 
scattered all over the Island. Steps taken in this regard saw 
over 30% of Service Centers being upgraded as fully-fledged 
branches geared to provide the full gamut of financial services 
to customers across Sri Lanka.

From an operational perspective, enhancements of system 
capabilities continued, with specific investments to strengthen 

the Company’s ERP and MIS platforms being made during the 
year.

At the same time, renewed efforts to develop Human 
Resources were aimed at improving operational efficiencies as 
well the quality financial services provided to customers.

FutuRe outlook
Facing stiff market competition, the key strategic thrust for 
the future would be to leverage on the Company’s diversified 
business model, strong infrastructure and well trained staff to 
further consolidate the Company’s position and to continue 
grow sustainably in the years ahead. this calls for a strong 
focus on effective utilization of Human Resources, pointing 
to the need for well formulated performance evaluation 
systems and HR development programs to enhance the quality 
of performance and professionalism that would result in a 
competent and motivated workforce capable of driving future 
corporate ambitions.

appReciation
I would like to extend my sincere thanks and deep 
appreciation to my colleagues on the Board for their valuable 
insight in guiding the Company to new heights and for their 
support and cooperation in meeting the numerous challenges 
faced by the Company. I would also like to thank the 
entire team of Kanrich led by the Director / CEO, for their 
unreserved effort and unstinted support and commitment 
to the Company’s sustained success. I also extend my 
appreciation to the Governor of the Central Bank of Sri 
Lanka and the Director and the Officials of the Department 
of Supervision of Non- Bank Financial Institutions, for their 
extremely valuable advice and guidance. My sincere gratitude 
also goes out to the shareholders for their support and 
confidence placed in us, and all other stakeholders, including 
the customers of Kanrich, for their support and confidence in 
our forward journey.

p. a. pematilaka
Chairman

08th June 2017
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“moReoveR, easing away FRom micRo 
lending has paved the way to deepen the 
penetRation in segments wheRe kFl does
not have a natuRal maRket shaRe, in 
paRticulaR the coRpoRate and sme 
segments. towaRds this end we have 
activated a bRoadeR pRoduct suite, with 
gReateR emphasis on pRomoting low-Risk 
Financial solutions such as consumeR 
loans, peRsonal loans and otheR asset-
backed lending pRoducts.”
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As I recap the year under review, I must admit it has been 
a year of transition, preparation and investment in what I 
firmly believe will herald a more sustainable growth phase 
for Kanrich Finance Ltd. Having experienced a soaring 
growth trajectory for the past five years, we took a number of 
important steps during the year to consolidate and regroup in 
the interest of greater long-term stability.

stRategy and Focus
I am sure you would recall that last year I outlined our bold 
decision to transform KFL’s business model and reinvent 
ourselves as a proactive financial institution. the strategy 
reflects our intention to further diversify our product portfolio 
and reorient towards the healthier and more robust product 
mix that would improve scalability in the years ahead.

Shifting away from Micro credit however was not an easy 
task, given that it has been our core business and was in fact 
responsible for KFL’s phenomenal growth for the past five 
years. Nevertheless, easing away from Micro lending was 
seen as a timely move particularly with the market for Micro 
Credit fast reaching saturation and only limited opportunities 
to sustain future growth. Micro lending has also become 
an increasingly competitive business, with banks and more 
recently even telecommunication operators also infringing on 
what was traditionally an area limited to financial institutions.

taking cognizance of these shifting market dynamics, we 
conducted a competitor analysis to determine the market risk 
and realign our business goals accordingly. And I am very 
pleased to report that thanks to the conscious efforts made to 
restrict lending activities during the current financial year, KFL’s 
Micro lending exposure as at 31st March 2017 dropped to 49% 
from 59% in the previous year and nearly 95% two years ago.

Moreover, easing away from Micro lending has paved the way 
for to deepen the penetration in segments where KFL does 
not have a significant market share, in particular the corporate 
and SME segments. towards this end we have activated a 
broader product suite, with greater emphasis on promoting 
low-risk financial solutions such as Consumer Loans, Personal 
Loans and other asset-backed lending products. In the year 

under review we continued to further refine our product mix 
in order to optimize yields and boost profitability.

With our product strategies on track, we then looked to 
strengthen our balance sheet by addressing the volume of 
non-performing loans under each product category. taking a 
proactive approach, we changed our organisational structure 
and introduced a centralised recoveries and legal unit to focus 
only on recovery efforts, a move that delivered good results 
within the year itself.

As always, improving operational efficiencies was a key priority. 
We continued to monitor new technology developments and 
made a number of selective investments in technology-driven 
business process improvements to empower our people and 
enable them to accelerate growth vis-à-vis our new multi-
product business model. Strengthening our footprint across the 
country was yet another priority. to complement these efforts 
and as part of the long term strategy to boost KFL’s market 
share, a new research and development unit was set up to 
identify potential business opportunities in the market.

Financial highlights
Amidst the ongoing strategic realignment of the business 
KFL’s Net interest Income fell by 24.09% in 2016/2017 to 
Rs.2.40 billion in the year under review. Net profit after tax 
of Rs 311 Mn for 2016/17 was 52.01 % lower than a year 
ago. the decline in these KPI’s were mainly the result of our 
strategy to diversify the product portfolio by moving away 
from unsecured lending to secured lending such as Leasing, 
Gold Loans, Mortgage Loans and Consumer Loans in order to 
reduce unsystematic risk in the product portfolio.

Non-interest income declined 15.86 % to Rs. 121 million, while 
Fees and commission income fell 61.12 % to Rs. 45 million, 
once again due to minimization of micro lending. In contrast, 
Real Estate income grew by a staggering 184.62 % to 74 
million, testifying to the success of our product diversification 
strategies.

Moreover, driven by ongoing investments in infrastructure 
to sharpen our capabilities and also strengthen our island-
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wide reach, operating expenses increased compared to the 
previous year. However thanks to disciplined cost control 
measures implemented across the business, the increase in 
total operating expenses was only a marginal 2.59 % from to 
Rs. 1.57 billion in 2015/16 to Rs.1.61 billion in the year under 
review.

Compared to the previous year, KFL’s total funding base 
as at 31st March 2017 declined by 5.06% to 9.07 billion. 
this is mainly due the conscious effort made to reduce the 
dependence on public borrowings and focus on mobilising 
funds through alternative sources. this strategic shift led 
to a change in the borrowing structure as well, with public 
borrowings declining by 11.16% year-on-year and institutional 
borrowings showing a year-on-year increase of 132.16% as at 
31st March 2017.

While carrying out our strategies for the betterment of the 
Company, I am happy to report that we continued to ensure 
that KFL’s capital position remained healthy throughout the 
year. As at 31 March 2017, KFL’s Capital Adequacy Ratios 
(CAR) stood strong at 17.33 %, indicating an improvement 
over the previous year in addition to being well above the 
required CAR limits stipulated by central bank of Sri Lanka.

investing in technology
We made excellent progress this past year in advancing 
our Digital Strategy. We invested to enhance our digital 
capabilities to improve outcomes for our customers, 
employees and ultimately for our shareholders.

In 2016/17 we invested more than Rs. 20 million in 
technological advancements to strengthen our systems 
and processes, including modernisation of our data center 
operation, which would future proof our business.

developing people
We firmly believe our people are the true architects of our 
success. Our people are therefore a top priority, and building 
their capabilities and mindset remains a strategic imperative 
for KFL. Reiterating our commitment, in 2016 we invested 

Rs. 10.5 million on training and development to better equip 
employees to deliver our value proposition to our customers.

Equally important to us is the personal growth of our 
employees, which is why we encourage them to pursue 
their talents especially in the field of sports. And I am 
indeed proud to note that our employees have become our 
biggest ambassadors and champions in the sporting arena. 
this is mirrored by KFL’s long list of accolades; undefeated 
champions -’C’ Division; at the Mercantile Basketball 
tournament 2016, KFL advanced to the B division and became 
runners up in 2017. KFL also secured the Mercantile Cricket 
League Championship 2016 – B Division, in turn qualifying 
to play in the premier league in 2017. KFL’s Rugby team 
won the Plate Championship 2017 at the mercantile rugby 
sevens. the KFL Volleyball team in its inaugural appearance 
in the mercantile circuit, emerged winners at the FHA 
meet 2016/2017, and also went on to clinch the Mercantile 
Volleyball Super League 2016, thus ending the winning 
streak of the apparel sector, which has dominated the sport 
in mercantile sector for the past few years. Meanwhile, for 
the second consecutive year, KFL’s Netball team secured the 
FHA Netball Championship and won the Mercantile Netball 
tournament 2016. KFL emerged overall champions at the FHA 
2016 and 2017 consecutively.

FutuRe plans
Moving forward as an emerging financial services institution, 
I am confident that KFL is well positioned for growth, despite 
intense competition from peers As we set out on this new 
era, our primary focus would be to ensure our multi-product 
portfolio meets the demands of the market. Achieving this 
would require KFL’s operating model to be refined, on an 
ongoing basis. this would inevitably mean investing in 
technology, processes and people in order to stay ahead of 
peers and secure a market-leading position in the years ahead.

Simply put, we will continue to execute our medium term 
Strategic Agenda and build our core strengths as we strive to 
create a scalable platform from which to grow in the coming 
years.

chief executive officer’s Review Contd.
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appReciations
In closing, I wish to express my sincere gratitude to the 
Chairman and Board of Directors for their guidance and wise 
counsel extended to me at all times. My grateful thanks also 
to the Governor of the Central Bank of Sri Lanka and the 
Director and the officials of the Department of Supervision 
of Non-Banking Financial Institutions, for their advice and 
guidance. I would like to take this opportunity to recognize 
our people for their passion and commitment in helping KFL 
achieve its strategic goals. I would also like to express my 
deepest gratitude to our clients for their enduring trust, which 
remains a key motivator for us to continually find ways to 
improve our service and help them grow. Finally, my grateful 
thanks to our parent company, Mutual Holdings Ltd as well as 
all our shareholders for the trust and confidence placed in the 
Company. I seek your continued patronage to propel KFL to 
even greater heights in the years ahead.

s. i. weerasinghe
CEO

08th June 2017
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Revision oF swot suRvey

strengths

01. Brand equity associated with the “Kanrich” name.

02. well-established Micro Finance network.

03. Highly-qualified and experienced Board of Directors.

04. Opportunities for career growth.

05. Positive corporate management style that is unique to 
Kanrich.

06. A well-trained, target driven, enthusiastic and committed 
workforce.

07. An excellent welfare policy, which takes care of 
employee needs in timely manner.

08. An agile and well-developed in-house It platform 
capable of keeping pace with prospective business 
expansions.

10. Research & Development to support the company’s 
ability to respond readily to environment volatilities. 

11. Strong CSR philosophy.

weaknesses

01. Greater need of a comprehensive and effective training 
and development programs covering the entire staff 
cadre.

02. Lack of innovation.

03. Inadequate resources in It department to cater for the 
company’s rapid growth.

04. Less propensity towards advanced communication 
conduits such as blog, Call Center, tele Conferencing 
and Intranet.

05. Above average NPLs.

06. Greater need of effective communication channel 
between employees and the top management and also 
an effective & independent grievance handling system.

07. Inadequate performance evaluation system. 

08. Issues pertaining to the responsibility matrix.

09. Need for further dilution of the portfolio from Micro 
Credit to other lending products to result in adequate 
provision towards a secured asset base.
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opportunities

01. Existence of underutilised markets in the country 
without access to banking products creating product 
diversification/ innovation opportunities through KFL’s 
existing micro credit network across the country.

02. Boom in the real estate market: recent lifestyle changes, 
societal demands and supportive infrastructure 
development policies of the government.

03. Opportunities to grow fee base income sources.

04. Growth and potential developments in trading, tourism, 
construction and education sectors.

05. Liberalisation of low cost funding lines such as foreign 
funding.

06. technological advancements and virtual applications.

07. Recent life style changes in middle income families.

08. Availability of external integration channels to make 
strategic alliances.

09. Emerging economy to leverage on knowledge and 
relationship with regard to SME sector.

threats

01. Shrinking interest rate margin.

02. Adversities faced by the business community in the 
country in view of prevailing economic environment 
coupled with policy uncertainties and economic 
slowdown.

03. Frequent new entrants into the micro finance industry 
and stiff competition among existing players leading to 
over-financing that may result in credit crisis and lead to 
unforeseen staff mobility among competitors.

04. Frequent changes in the Fiscal policy environment.

05. Expansion of the non-financial sector through vertical 
integration.

06. Curtailment of credit growth resulting in higher cost of 
funds having a cascading effect on product pricing and 
competitiveness.

07. Educated millennials entering the job market producing 
a gap between their attitudes and the expected culture 
in the corporate sector.  

08. Lack of organisational competencies such as market 
insight and foresight, speed and agility, customer 
empathy and responsiveness among young employees.  

09. High risk situations (Money Laundering / Data Security 
/ Customer Privacy etc.) due to the misuse of advanced 
information technology.

10. High incidents of natural disasters causing to slow down 
the economic growth pertaining to certain product lines.

11. Currency instability due to persistent Balance of 
Payment Issues.
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Being a Finance Company, we have to accept certain risks 
in doing our normal business and accordingly, identifying, 
measuring, monitoring and managing risk is considered as 
one of the main and important activities of the Company. 
In this context, management of credit risk is critical to the 
company as it is meant to enhance the asset quality to create 
value through credit risk management. Improving asset quality 
whilst taking steps to enhance the portfolio is considered as a 
critical success factor.

the credit evaluation process too, except for the Micro 
Finance Segment, was centralised at Head Office level. 
Assigning the authorisation limits for the credit approval 
process was also streamlined within the organisational 
hierarchy structure in such a way that it always commensurate 
with the responsibility assigned to each level.

the centralised Credit Department, with the required level 
of assistance of the Legal Department ensures that the credit 
appraisal process is in order and that the all the relevant 
parameters are fully met to have a well-managed and secured 
credit documentation system.

As to the loan default risk being experienced by the 
Company, in order to monitor the efficiency and effectiveness 
of the Credit Supervision and Recoveries and the quality of 
the loan book independently, weekly and monthly reports 
are generated to be reviewed, for the purpose of analysing 
the NPL Portfolio and default ratios, analysis of high risk 
segments, concentration etc. these risks are analyzed in 
an objective manner and compared with policy parameters 
to ensure effective management of credit risk. Credit risk 
management processes are reviewed by Internal Audit to 
ensure that it is in compliance with regulatory requirements 
and the Company’s policy framework.

In addition, a stringent provisioning policy, in full compliance 
with the regulatory requirements, has been in place and 
it has resulted high level of provisioning. In making such 
provisioning, the Company performs impairment analyses on 
regular basis for grouping them as materially impaired and 
materially not impaired. Materially impaired contracts are 
further examined in line with industry conditions, economic 

key stRategic initiatives & pRocesses to mitigate Risks

conditions etc. Accordingly, relevant facts are communicated 
to recovery units also for taking into consideration, as 
appropriate, in implementing their recovery plan.

Simultaneously, having considered the high exposure to 
certain products resulting in concentration risk, mainly for the 
Micro Finance Segment, strategic initiatives already taken were 
continued to be in force to enable to have a well-diversified 
portfolio in order to ensure that credit risk is well diversified 
across the Company’s loan portfolio. Further, in order to 
broad-base the composition of secured lending portfolio, 
Gold Loans and pawning were introduced during the year, 
while continuing other securitized lending on mortgage loans 
and real estate as well. Consequently, the exposure to micro 
lending was further reduced to 50% from 59% in the previous 
year.

Further, product-wise recovery units have been formed at 
the central level to deal with recoveries. these units perform 
in coordination with the respective affected branches to sort 
out their recovery related issues. Even though under normal 
circumstances the affected branch or the product department 
is expected to handle all the recovery matters by themselves, 
in a situation where they are confronted with some difficulties, 
such matters are to be referred to the said recovery units for 
further attention. If recovery issues continue to be remaining 
unresolved, such situations are to be referred to the legal 
department as the last resort.

During the year under review, the company took a number 
of steps to strengthen and restructure the recovery process. 
A new rescheduling program was introduced specifically 
in respect of the default cases on the Welanda Warama 
and Micro loans segments. under this program, customers 
who could not meet repayment requirements, due to their 
unforeseen financial difficulties consequent to negative 
macro-economic conditions prevailing in the country or due 
to some other external environmental factors, were offered 
concessionary repayment schemes to be in line with their 
repaying Capacity. this has been successful during the 
year under review. Further company paid more attention 
to improve recovery ratio and more resources allocated for 
recovery purpose during the last quarter of the Financial Year.
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As regards the liquidity risk, the projected cash flows and 
maturity analyses are submitted to Assets and Liability 
Committee (ALCO) and Integrated Risk Management 
Committee (IRMC), met on almost on monthly basis 
considered the said reports in order to foresee any liquidity 
related risks. Further, deposit concentration risk and sensitivity 
between maturity gap and deposit renewal rate and collection 
efficiency ratio are also reviewed at ALCO to foresee any 
related risks. During the year, the company took initiatives 
to lower the deposit concentration risk and shift on to 
institutional borrowings instead of public borrowings. Further 
arrangements were negotiated with banks as part of the 
contingency funding arrangements.

the company also made structural changes during the year 
with the intention of managing the liquidity risk whereby the 
deposit portfolio was subdivided into four zones, having the 
Zonal Heads been entrusted with responsibility to manage the 
borrowing portfolio vis-à-vis lending portfolio. the company 
has also been able to manage the deposit renewal ratio 
beyond 75% and as a consequence, a healthy level of liquid 
assets was maintained throughout the financial year.

A mechanism is also in place to monitor, identify, evaluate, 
treat and report operational risk events pertaining to 
processes, systems, people and external events. A bottom-
up approach is being used, while implementing the said 
monitoring mechanism, by reviewing the operational risk 
indicators, such as, number of disciplinary actions taken 
against company employees, number of system errors 
reported, lapses and process weaknesses as reported by 
Internal Audit etc.

the company also have initiated certain other pragmatic 
strategies and platforms during the year under review to 
accelerate the advancement of its operational efficiency 
including the expansion of a in house Research & 
Development department to deal well with external and 
internal environment trends, continuous upgrade on MIS 
(Management Information System) for relevant decision 
making contexts, boosting the credit training platform and 
initiating advanced performance evaluation criteria to elevate 
the performance culture of the organisation.
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management discussion & analysis

credit operations
cRedit enviRonment
Industry-wide credit growth moderated in the early part 
of 2016, mainly as a result of loan to value ratio (LtV), 
implemented with respect to the lending on motor vehicles. 
this prompted an industry-wide shift in focus towards 
alternative lending products following which a notable 
acceleration of credit demand was observed in the second 
half of the year. Nonetheless, dampened by the slowdown in 
the first half, industry-wide credit growth reached only 21%, 
lower than the 31% registered in the previous financial year. 
Notably however, of the credit growth reported for 2016, 
over 73% was generated through other loan products such as 
term loans, revolving loans, micro finance, factoring and draft 
loans, while finance leases and hire purchases accounted for a 
little over 23%.

company peRspective
the LtV restriction did not have a major impact on KFL’s 
lending prospects, mainly on account of the fact that the 
Company’s core business has traditionally been that of 
Micro lending. However, for the past few years, KFL has 
made a conscious effort to migrate to a new lending model 
that involves reducing the exposure to Micro lending and 
diversifying the lending portfolio vis-à-vis other lending 
products. Portfolio diversification remained a key focus in 
this year too and is likely to continue in the future as well, 
particularly given the highly competitive market environment.

the strategies proved successful, with the portfolio further 
reorienting towards a broader lending mix compared to 
the previous year. A notable reduction in the Micro Credit 
portfolio and a corresponding increase in other product 
categories were also observed in 2016/17, with SME Finance 
and Personal Loans tabling sizable year-on-year growth 
compared to the previous year.

However, the Company did not aggressively pursue lending 
activities, as the adverse economic conditions prevailing in 
the country were not conducive for lending. the main thrust 

for the year shifted towards consolidation and improving the 
quality of the loan portfolio through stricter credit evaluation 
systems and processes.

product portfolio 2016/17

personal Loans against  

Fixed Deposits 0.5%

Personal Loans against 

Promissory Notes 2%

Run Sihina 0.5%

Welada Warama 3%

Micro Loans 50%

Real Estate - Easy   

Payment Loan 1%

Mortgage Loans 7%

Business Loans 8%

Personal Loans and  

Consumer Loans 10%

Pawning 2%

Lease and Hire Purchase 17%

product portfolio 2015/16

personal Loans against  

Fixed Deposits 0.5%

Personal Loans against 

Promissory Notes 2%

Run Sihina 0.5%

Welada Warama 6%

Micro Loans 59%

Real Estate - Easy   

Payment Loan 1%

Mortgage Loans 3%

Business Loans 9%

Personal Loans and  

Consumer Loans 4%

Pawning 0.5%

Lease and Hire Purchase 16% 
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pRoduct Review
micro credit
KFL’s core lending product, Micro Credit continued to be 
the single-largest contributor to the Company’s product mix. 
Accordingly, Micro Credit contributed 64.63%% to the top line 
and 69.90% to the bottom line for 2016/17. Nonetheless in this 
year too, the Company followed through with the decision 
to consciously curtail Micro Lending activities, in order to 
minimise the risks associated with the over dependence on a 
single product. With only Rs. 4,862.33 million worth of new 
loans disbursed during the year, the Micro Credit exposure 
as at 31st March 2017 dropped to 48.86% from 58.94% in the 
previous year and nearly 95.05% two years ago.

the key focus for the current financial year then shifted 
towards improving quality of the Micro Loan portfolio. 
Although customers are provided service at their doorstep for 
repayments, with easy repayment options to suit their financial 
capability, the customer profile has meant Micro loan NPL’s 
have always been on the high side.

KFL redoubled efforts to mobilize customers to settle their 
dues on time. A dedicated recovery team was set up to 
continuously monitor and track dues, while a legal unit was 
established to develop loan rehabilitation and extended 
settlement plans in order to mitigate potential default risk. 
As a consequence of this, the Micro Credit portfolio NPL’s 
improved from 10.16% in 2015/16 to 8.09% in 2016/17.

leasing
the Leasing segment tabled a satisfactory performance for 
the year under review, notwithstanding the impact of the 
70:30 loan-to-value ratio, the import duty hike introduced in 
late 2015 along with the new import duty tariff revision that 
came into effect in May 2016, all of which adversely affected 
the demand for vehicle leases. Despite these challenges the 
Leasing portfolio declined only marginally by 0.85% to Rs. 
1,691.19 million as at 31st March 2017, from Rs. 1,705.69 
million recorded in the previous year.

underpinning the performance for the year was the concerted 
effort to improve service delivery at all touch-points and 
also the ongoing focus to reach out unbanked sections of 
the population, an area long identified as key component 
of the Company’s sustainable growth strategy. It also speaks 
of KFL’s commitment to improve the lives of all Sri Lankans 
by providing access to simple, affordable and convenient 
products and services regardless of which part of the country 
they are from.

to this end, certain key lending products were revamped in 
response to the demands of the market while a number of 
service enhancements were introduced specifically for the 
SME Segment. targeted promotional campaigns were also 
rolled out in a bid to reinforce KFL’s brand promise to all 
customer segments. Coupled with these efforts, the Company 
also sharpened its Customer Relationship Management (CRM) 
model in an effort to become more customer-centric. A special 
response-reaction programme was initiated during the year 
to ensure CRM’s listen to and engage with customers. the 
findings from the programme, gives the Company the ability 
to conceptualize innovative fit-for-purpose products and 
solutions that address the diverse needs of the customer.

Efforts to become a more customer-centric organisation also 
prompted the Company to streamline internal operational 
processes and reduce procedural complexity so as to improve 
customer response times. New investments were made during 
the year to upgrade It infrastructure, which would speed up 
the approval process for leasing facilities enabling CRM’s to 
provide an expeditious service to customers.

business loans
the Business Loan segment made significant progress in 
achieving targets set for the year. Completing its first full 
year of operation, the product remained immensely popular 
among its target market; the Corporate Segment. Riding on 
this momentum, new disbursements of Rs. 900 million were 
made in the current financial year. As a result, Business loans 
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accounted for 7.45% of the total lending mix as at 31st March 
2017.

the segment’s performance was the result of steps taken 
to enhance service delivery by increasing the efficiency of 
key back office processes, including credit evaluation and 
approvals. New developments for the year saw the scope 
of the customer visitation report being expanded and the 
introduction of a tiered approval structure to allow greater 
flexibility in determining the loan cap.

the segment also achieved its target of reducing arrears 
by 50%, thanks to strict monitoring and proactive recovery 
methods deployed by the Business Loan team. As part of this 
process, an SMS alert mechanism was introduced to provide 
clients with regular notifications regarding amounts that are 
due or many have become overdue. In addition, the legal 
recovery process was also strengthened with the establishment 
of strict default parameters to enable the legal team to flag 
delinquent clients and kick start legal proceedings without 
delay.

mortgage loans
Another key lending product launched in the previous 
financial year; the Mortgage Loan continued to gain traction 
in the market in this year as well. Spearheaded by this 
momentum, KFL’s Mortgage Loan portfolio tabled a healthy 
growth for the 2016/17 financial year.

the continued success of the product despite stiff competition, 
speaks for the products’ versatility and relevance vis-à-vis the 
current market demands.

the key thrust for the year was therefore to widen market 
share by strengthening the product position in the market. 
In this regard, a cohesive effort to expand the product reach 
saw branches being encouraged to tap into new customer 
segments in order to drive volumes. Product teams at each 
branch were also expanded to facilitate this volume-driven 
strategy.

Meanwhile, in anticipation of larger volumes in the near 
future, a number of process improvements were made 

to enhance the efficiency of the centralised processing 
mechanism, key among them being the setting up of a 
dedicated in-house legal department in order to expedite the 
loan disbursement process.

pawning
Despite stiff competition in the market, the KFL’s pawning 
portfolio grew steadily throughout 2016/17 and the Company 
was able to comfortably achieve all growth targets set for the 
year. Meanwhile, ongoing efforts to reorient the product with 
the demands of the market prompted a restructuring of the 
pawning proposition, whereby the advance quantum was 
increased while a low interest rate was maintained. Flexible 
payment options were also introduced to facilitate greater 
customer convenience.

these efforts were combined with an aggressive marketing 
drive to popularize the product among the target market 
segments, with the “Ran Naya” campaign being the main 
promotional thrust. Direct marketing was also pursed to create 
awareness and build relationships with potential customers, 
especially in provincial and rural areas across the country.

Meanwhile, continuous monitoring of the pawning portfolio 
ensured impairment provisions were kept at a minimum.

personal loans and consumer loans
Despite severe price competition from banks and other 
financial institutions offering similar products, KFL’s Personal 
Loans portfolio registered a year-on-year growth of 189.10% 
from Rs. 72 million in the previous year to Rs. 208.16 million 
as at 31st March 2017, with disbursements granted for the year 
amounting to Rs. 148.13 million.

Meanwhile, the Consumer Loan portfolio reached Rs. 744.85 
million as at 31st March 2017, up by 160.09% compared to the 
Rs. 286.38 million reported a year ago. A total of 17,432 new 
customers were added to the base in the year under review, 
bringing the total Consumer Loan customer base to 24,678 as 
at 31st March 2017.

the development of partnership channels plays a pivotal 
role in how effectively the Personal Loan and Consumer 

management discussion & analysis Contd.
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Loan propositions are communicated and delivered to the 
target market. In this regard, during the year the Company 
took steps to expand the merchant partner network through 
strategic tie-ups with leading consumer goods retailers 
across the country, including Abans, Sinhagiri, teleseen 
and Softlogic. Going hand-in-hand with these efforts were 
the year-round promotional activities and special seasonal 
campaigns to coincide with peak buying periods in April and 
December 2016.

Well received in the market, KFL’s Personal Loan and 
Consumer Loan offerings have the potential to become the 
market leader in the segment in the years to come. Proper 
positioning of both products in the market would therefore be 
critical in order to reach into a broader spectrum of customer 
segments, a strategy that is expected to drive future growth.

Ran sihina
Different from the conventional Pawning model, KFL’s Ran 
Sihina is a guarantor-backed loan scheme that enables the 
customer to purchase gold items from selected vendors. 
Launched in 2016, Ran Sihina, has since continued to gain 
traction in the market and is now one of KFL’s key product 
offerings.

the product continued to witness steady growth in volumes 
throughout 2016/17, thanks to efforts made during the year 
to make product available through all KFL branches across 
the country. this was coupled with a series of localized 
promotional campaigns to create brand awareness and tap 
into potential high-growth market segments in particular the 
youth segment. the “Anagathayata Dakina Ran Sihinaya” 
– a special wedding package offering a higher loan value, 
launched during the year specifically targeting potential 
brides delivered good results and demonstrated considerable 
potential for future growth.

Steps were also taken to canvass new vendors in order to 
increase the number of touch-points available to the customer 
and a total of ten new merchant partnerships were established 
in 2016/17 as a result of these efforts.

welanda warama
Completing two years since its launch, the Welanda Warama 
product has since grown rapidly, making a name as one of the 
most popular credit schemes accessible to the SME segment. 
Essentially a working capital loan that caters to requirements 
of the SME segment, the Welanda Warama scheme offers 
customers the opportunity to access credit facilities upto a 
maximum of Rs. 5,000,000/- based on their eligibility.

Given the rapidly growing portfolio over the past eighteen 
months, the main focus for the current financial year was on 
recoveries, prompting KFL to implement stringent monitoring 
and recovery activities in order to mitigate potential 
default risk and ensure that the quality of the portfolio was 
maintained at acceptable levels. As a priority, this meant, 
strengthening collection processes, which led to the sales 
force being deployed to build relationships with customers 
and initiate continuous follow-up procedures to ensure timely 
collection of dues.

Meanwhile, the Welanda Warama loan approval process was 
once again brought under centralised control, in an effort 
to tighten the pre-approval customer screening process. 
the move is aimed at giving the Company better control 
to determine customer credibility and assess the customers’ 
capacity to service the loan, which in turn is hoped would 
help safeguard loan quality in the long term.

loan against Fd
Loan against Deposits is a standard product, linked to term 
Deposits. under the scheme, KFL’s Fixed Deposit customers 
are entitled to a loan of up to 90% against their Deposits, to 
meet their immediate cash requirements. In the year under 
review the product continued to show a satisfactory level of 
growth.

Real estate
the main thrust of KFL’s Real Estate segment is to acquire and 
develop lands for outright sale or via an easy payment loan 
facility. the Company did not acquire any new lands during 
the current financial year but focused mainly on promoting 
existing developments to potential customers vis-à-vis easy 
payment loan facilities.
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Heavily dependent on the sentiments in the property market, 
the Real Estate product did encounter some challenges in 
the current financial year, owing to the general economic 
slowdown in the country, promoting the Company to step 
up efforts to stimulate demand from key market segments. 
Widespread AtL campaigns were pursued to create awareness 
among potential customers across the island, while the 
field sales model was revamped to bring more focus to BtL 
activities in specific regions.

Meanwhile, a dedicated Real Estate unit was set up in the 
current financial year, in an effort to further operationalize the 
other aspects of the Real Estate product. the move is aimed 
at further developing KFL’s competencies to handle such 
aspects as sourcing of new lands, sale of developed lands 
and providing advisory services relating to property and land. 
Staff training activities, were also intensified in order to better 
manage the broader scope of activities under the Real Estate 
product proposition.

management discussion & analysis Contd.
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Following a strategic decision to reduce the dependence on 
public borrowings, KFL did not aggressively pursue deposit 
mobilization as part of its funding strategy for the year. 
Nonetheless, bolstered by the higher AWDR, the Company 
continued to witness a steady inflow of deposits throughout 
the year under review. Consequently, the share of the funding 
mix attributable to deposits increased slightly from 10% in 
2015/61 to 11% in 2016/17. Customer retention remained 
strong at a renewal rate of 79.73%, while a notable increase 
the customer base was also observed with all branches 
reporting higher volume of new customers.

 

 

Funding mix 2015/16

Bank & Financial Institutional 

Borrowing 4%

Deposits Due to Customer 10% 

Debt Instrument Issued &  

Other Borrowed Funds 86%

Funding mix 2016/17

Bank & Financial Institutional 

Borrowing 10%

Deposits Due to Customer 11% 

Debt Instrument Issued &  

Other Borrowed Funds 79%

deposits
Meanwhile, steps taken to streamline KFL’s internal deposit 
operation process saw the following changes being introduced 
to facilitate overall efficiency and deliver greater customer 
convenience;

 N  Redesigning of internal documents to reduce the 
difficulties faced by Internal and external customers.

 N  Reducing the complexity of the Deposit activation process 
by eliminating additional paperwork.

 N  Adopted new technological features to communicate 
investment information to the customers.

 N  Improve the filing system quality to maintain the customer 
privacy.

 N  Introduction of a customer risk analysis policy in line with 
the corporate risk management process.
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Financial capital

oveRview oF the economy and the industRy 
During the year, Sri Lankan economy has reported a slower rate 
of 4.4% against 4.8% of the previous year as a consequence of 
unfavourable weather conditions and slow recovery of global 
economy, especially, the expansion in construction sector has 
contributed lot towards economic growth during the year 2016. 
the inflation remained on high side and reported 4% plus in 
average throughout the year following high demand pressure 
prevailed in the economy and further disturbances due to bad 
weather conditions, new tax adjustments introduced and hike in 
prices in imported commodities were also determinants of the 
high inflation persisted.

As far as external factors are concerned, Deficit of balance 
of payment(BOP) has been widen continuously during 
the year as well following the failure to attract foreign 
direct investments and impact of rising global interest rates 
particularly on government security market.

the Statutory Reserve Rate (SRR) was increased for licensed 
commercial bank during the year under review while Loan to 
value Ratio (LtV) was also brought down with the intention of 
cutting down high demand pressure of the economy. Further 
policy interest rates were increased twice during the year.

the credit growth of the Licensed Financial Company sector 
(LFC) was moderated during the year; reported a growth of 21% 
as against 31.8% during previous year as a consequent of LtV 
rule introduced and high interest rates prevailed. NPL ratio of 
the sector has slightly Improved from 5.7% of the previous year 
to 5.3% during the year under review. As far as the profitability 
of the sector is concerned, return on assets and return on equity 
has risen to 4% and 23.1% respectively as against 3% and 12.4% 
of the preceding year while net interest margin has become 
narrower from 8.7% to 7.9% during the year.

peRFoRmance oF the company
As it happened during the financial year 2015/2016, Kanrich 
Finance Limited further continued it’s product diversification 

effort during the financial year 2016/2017 as well amidst 
many challenges such as increasing interest rates, increasing 
costs, assets liability mismatches and regulatory changes such 
as loans to value ratio etc. Following the strategic move of 
diversification, it is apparent that exposures of unsecured 
products have declined while exposures on secured loan 
products have improved; especially Compositions micro 
financing and Business revolving loans has reduced to 49% 
and 3% respectively against 59% and 6% of the previous year. 
Meanwhile exposures on Leasing, Mortgage loans and Gold 
loans have been improved.

the profits during the year of the company has declined vis 
a vis with the decline in unsecured product portfolios with 
high interest margins as against the previous year. As far as 
the financial position is concerned, shareholders’ fund has 
improved by 16% over last year while capital adequacy has 
also improved to 17.33 against 14.49 of the previous year. 
the company has managed to maintain healthy level of liquid 
assets which is in line with regulatory requirements too.

Among other accomplishments of the company includes 
increasing the number of fully pledged branches to 18 from 
7 of the previous year and as a consequence the company 
invested more in upgrading and branding it’s branches and 
centers with the intention of improving the customer service. 
Further the company invested more in human capital during 
the year under review too; a new legal department was 
foamed during the year to handle all the legal matters in 
house.

pRoFitability
Both profit before tax and Profit after tax has come down 
during the year in compare to previous year as a consequence 
of continuance of product diversification, especially 
maintaining the composition of the micro loan portfolio below 
50% throughout the year with the intention of reducing the 
credit risk. this has led to a drop in interest income by 20% in 
compare to preceding year. 
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non-inteRest income

2017
Rs. mn

2016
Rs. mn

change 
%

Net Fee and Commission 
Income

45 117 -61.12%

Net Income from Real Estate 
Sales

74 26 184.62%

Other Operating Income 1 0 188.34%

121 143 -15.86%

Despite net fee and commission income has 61% in compare 
to last year as consequence of continuance of product 
diversification, especially reduction in the composition in the 
micro portfolio; the net income from real estate has gone 
up by 185% in compare to previous year remarkably as a 
consequence of the increase in investments in real estates.
 

2017
Rs. mn

2016
Rs. mn

change 
%

Profit before Income tax 
and VAt & NBt on Financial 
Services

622 1259 -50.60%

Income tax and VAt & NBt 
on Financial Services

 (311)  (611) -49.10%

Profit after Income tax and 
VAt & NBt on Financial 
Services

 311  648 -52.01%

inteRest income and net inteRest maRgin
Net interest Margin also has come down during the year as a 
consequence of lowering the composition of micro lending 
and revolving business loans portfolio with high interest 
margins. 

2017
Rs. mn

2016
Rs. mn

change 
%

Interest Income  3,411  4,252 -19.78%

Interest Expenses  (1,007)  (1,060) -5.00%

Net Interest Income  2,404  3,192 -24.69%

composition of non-interest income 2017

Net Fee and Commission 

Income 

Net Income from Real Estate 

Sales 

Other Operating Income

composition of non-interest income 2016

Net Fee and Commission 

Income 

Net Income from Real Estate 

Sales 

Other Operating Income

net interest margin

0.30

0.20

0.15

0.25

0.10

0.05

0.00

%

2016/172015/162014/152013/142012/13
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Amortization costs have gone up significantly by 82% 
following acquisition and upgrade of branch properties.
  

2017
Rs. mn

2016
Rs. mn

change 
%

Personnel Expenses 671 600 11.83%

Depreciation and 
Amortization

70 38 81.88%

Other Operating Expenses 865 927 -6.69%

1606 1565 2.59%

Cost to income ratio has gone up by 17% in compare to 
previous year as a consequence of the decline in interest 
income and increase in operating expenses during the year 
under review.

pRoduct mix
the Diversification effort on product portfolio has further 
been continued during the year under review. the product 
portfolios such as consumer loans and personal loans etc. 

impaiRment chaRges and wRite oFF
Impairment Charges has declined by 55% during the year 
under review in compare to last year as a consequence of 
recovery efforts taken during the year.

impairment charges 2017
Rs. mn

2016
Rs. mn

change 
%

Loans and Other 
Receivables

189 468 -59.62%

Lease Rental and Hire 
Purchase Receivables

44 24 83.33%

Other Receivables -6 11 -154.55%
Placement with Banks and 
Financial Institutions

0 5 -100.00%

227 508 -55.31%

write off
Loans and Other 
Receivables

301 0 100.00%

Lease Rental and Hire 
Purchase Receivables

10 0 100.00%

Loans and Receivables Write 
Off

311 0 100.00%

opeRating expenses
the personnel cost has increased during the year by 12% 
over previous year as a consequence salary hikes offered to 
employees and increase in fuel and travelling expenses as a 
consequence of recovery efforts. Other operating expenses 
have declined by 7% over the previous year as a consequence 
of decrease in administrative overheads and promotions 
following cost cutting measures taken. Depreciation and 

Financial capital Contd.

operating expenses 
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assets Quality
Non-performing assets ratio (NPA) has risen during the year 
in compare to previous Year following the deterioration of 
credit quality of certain product Portfolios. However, the 
Management is optimistic that, NPA can be brought down 
to desired levels within a reasonable time period with the 
recovery efforts taken such as strengthening recovery drives 
at the branch level and rescheduling of certain bad facilities 
so that payment schemes are matched with borrowers’ 
current repayment capacities. the company has also reduced 
it’s exposure on micro financing from 59% of total lending 
portfolio of the year 2015/2016 to 49% during the year under 
review as micro financing sector is too sensitive to prevailing 
macro-economic conditions and natural disasters. Further 
steps have been taken to introduce new secured products 
such as Gold Loans with the intention of reducing the credit 
risk.

shaReholdeRs’ Fund
Shareholders’ Fund has improved to 1,793 Mn in compare 
to Rs. 1,550 Mn of previous year as a consequence of profits 
reported during the year under review.

net assets peR shaRe
Net assets per share have also improved from Rs. 19.94 to Rs. 
23.08 during the year in compare to year 2015/2016 in line 
with the increase in Retained Earnings.
 

eaRnings peR shaRe
Earnings per share have come down to Rs. 4.01 during the 
year under review in compare to Rs. 8.34 of the previous year 
as the decline in profits for the year.

have been grown remarkably and the company launched 
Gold Loan product during the year under review. Further 
composition of micro lending has been reduced significantly 
during the year under review.
 

pRopeRty, plant and eQuipment
Property, plant equipment grew by 26% as Consequence of 
acquisition and upgrade of branch properties.

2017
Rs. mn

2016
Rs. mn

change 
%

Property, Plant & Equipment 212,399 168,554 26.01%

net assets per share
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2016/172015/162014/152013/142012/13

product mix 2016/17

Personal Loans against FD  

& Pro Note 3%

Corporate term Loans 0%

Staff Loans 1%

Welada Warama 3%

Lease and Hire Purchase 17%

Micro Loans 49%

Ran Sihina Loans 0%

Real Estate Loans 1%

Mortgage Loans 7%

Business Loans 7%

Consumer Loans 8%

Personal Loans 2%

Gold Loans 2%

product mix 2015/16

Personal Loans against FD  

& Pro Note 2%

Corporate term Loans 0%

Staff Loans 0%

Welada Warama 6%

Lease and Hire Purchase 16%

Micro Loans 59%

Ran Sihina Loans 0%

Real Estate Loans 1%

Mortgage Loans 3%

Business Loans 9%

Consumer Loans 3%

Personal Loans 1%

Gold Loans 0%
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liQuidity position
the Company has maintained minimum liquid assets 
requirement in line with Central Bank directions right 
throughout the financial year 2016/2017.

liquid assets 2017
Rs. mn

2016
Rs. mn

Available Liquid Assets 1034 1145

Required Amount of Liquid Assets as 
per CBSL

918 915

Excess 116 230

capital adeQuacy
Capital adequacy is critical is to make sure that company 
has enough cushion to absorb a reasonable amount of 
losses before they become insolvent and consequently lose 
depositors’ funds. Capital adequacy ratios ensure the efficiency 
and stability of the financial system by lowering the risk of 
financial institutions becoming insolvent.

the capital adequacy of KFL has improved to 17.33 against 
14.49 of previous year to indicate the improvement of stability 
and which is also well above the required capital adequacy 
limits stipulated by Central Bank of Sri Lanka.

cbsl liquidity Requirement during the year
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Available Liquid Assets

Required Liquid Assets

capital adequacy Ratio 2017
Rs. 000’

2016
Rs. 000’

total tier 1 Core capital 1,795,643 1,559,115
total Capital Base 1,795,643 1,559,115
total Risk Weighted Assets 10,359,943 10,760,289
Core Capital Ratio (Statutory 
Requirement of 5%)

17.33 14.49

total Risk Weighted Capital Ratio 
(Statutory Requirement 10%)

17.33 14.49

Financial capital Contd.
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manuFactuRed capital

Our Manufacturing Capital consists mainly of the physical 
infrastructure used for the delivery of our products to 
our target markets as well as the hardware and software 
architecture that is the backbone of our day-to-day 
operations. As such, every year we continue to strengthen our 
Manufactured Capital by investing in the following;

bRanch netwoRk
KFL’s 36 strong branch network is the mainstay of our 
operational framework. As the primary customer touch point, 
the branch plays a crucial role in delivering our products and 
services and value proposition to our target customers. It is 
why we continue to invest on making our branch network 
more accessible and comfortable for customers to conduct 
their business with KFL. Among the key investments for 
2016/17 was the purchase of a new three-story building to 
house the Kaduwela branch. the first branch to be installed 
in the Company’s own premises, the Kaduwela branch is now 
a fully-fledged unit offering the full gamut of KFL’s products. 
Moreover, its central location provides easy access and offers 
greater convenience to customers in the vicinity of Kaduwela 
and its surrounding areas.

At the same time steps were also taken to revamp the entire 
branch network with a number of branches being upgraded, 
re-branded and relocated in order to standardize the branch 
profile and bring greater uniformity across the network. 
Investments were made in state-of the-art facilities, furniture 
and a unique interior design concept aimed at boosting the 
branch profile and creating greater visual harmony in line with 
KFL’s corporate image

new developments to the branch network – 2016/17

upgrade & Relocated 01

upgrades 09

Following the branch upgrades, the product range offered 
were also expanded during the year, with the inclusion of the 
Pawning product, which as launched at 6 branch locations 
across the island.
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manufactured capital Contd.
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name/location of the 
branch

1 Head Office

2 Kandy

3 Ratnapura

4 Gampaha

5 Wennappuwa

6 Anuradhapura

7 Kurunegala

8 Nugegoda

9 Badulla

10 Nittabuwa

11 Batticaloa

12 Ruwanwella

13 Kaduwela

14 Embilipitiya

15 Gampola

16 Wattala

17 Vavuniya

18 Kegalle

19 Mathugama

20 Galle

21 trincomalee

22 Balangoda

23 Puttalam

24 Nuwara Eliya

25 Polonnaruwa

26 Ambalantota

27 Matara

28 Chilaw

29 Kiribathgoda

30 Ambalangoda

31 Matale

32 Horana

33 Moratuwa

34 thambuttegama

35 Monaragala

36 Maho



Kanrich Finance Ltd | Annual Report 2016/17 49

CEO’s Message
Business Profile

Management Discussion & Analysis
Capital Management Report

Corporate Governance Report
Committee Reports

Risk Management Report
Financial Statements

About this Report
Key Highlights for the year 

Company Overview
Board of Directors
Corporate Profile

Management Team
Chairman’s Message

inFoRmation technology (it)
Given the increasingly competitive and complex operating environment in which we operate, growing emphasis is placed 
on the importance of continuous monitoring and evaluation to ascertain the accuracy operational systems and to also ensure 
information security and business continuity.

It has thus become a key business enabler for KFL, facilitating accurate business planning, effective marketing, systematic 
management, real time monitoring, instant customer support and long term business growth.

In the year under review, KFL’s It department rolled out the following initiatives to enhance the Company’s It infrastructure;

project goal progress in 2016/17
Quality assurance programme to strike a balance between the cost of obtaining 

latest technology and maintaining optimum service 
delivery standards

Completed and rolled out

new surge protection, temperature 
control mechanism for the server room 

Ensure Business Continuity Completed and rolled out

kFl intranet solution Improve the efficiency of operational procedures and 
connectivity between company employees
Eg: MIS Live updating Dash Board
Online Help desk for Employees

Ongoing

customer Feedback 
mechanism(interactive voice Response 
system ivR with ip pbx system)

Identify reasons for dissatisfaction and improve 
customer complaint settlement and track record of 
Calls

Completed and rolled out

sms gateway to all our stakeholders Improve communication between internal and 
external stakeholders
Eg: Internal victories/Funeral alerts/announcements 
and to customer service related information 

Completed and rolled out

gold loan and Ran sihinaya module Effective and efficient service for Gold Loan customers Completed and rolled out

expanded system connectivity(vpn 
and apn)

Smooth functioning of It system Completed and rolled out

Future projects;
Ongoing efforts to leverage on new technologies saw the commencement of the groundwork for the following projects, which 
will be commissioned in the next 12 – 18 month time frame.

project purpose

Implementing a standby database using Oracle Active Data 
guard

to support the Disaster Recovery Site in the event of a failure 
in the main server

Mobile banking solution and AtM system Bring greater customer convenience

Customized MIS reports generated for operational purposes Improving efficiency and effectiveness of the It System and 
enhancing user-friendliness for users. 

Obtain IEEE standards certification for data communication 
systems

to adopt globally accepted best practices that will boost KFL’s 
industry-wide credibility
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bRanding
Being a financial institution,Intellectual Capital is critical to 
maintaining our competitive advantage in the market and 
although it cannot be accurately measured, KFL’s Intellectual 
Capital plays an important role in sustaining business growth.
KFL’s Intellectual Capital consists mainly of; Strategic Branding 
and Knowledge-based intangibles such as Research and 
Development.

stRategic bRanding
Our strategic branding agenda consists of two key 
components;

 N  Corporate Branding
Corporate branding is vital to our business as a financial 
institution. In fact KFL’s strong brand identity has, over the 
years delivered multiple competitive advantages on a number 
of levels. Mainly, our branding strategy has been instrumental 
in positioning KFL in target customer segments, where we 
have used our brand leverage to steadily gain market share.

We have continued to invest in strengthening our brand 
architecture to reinforce our identity and more importantly to 
ensure that our brand evolves cognizant to emerging market 
trends. And given the growing competitiveness in Sri Lanka’s 
financial services sector, our main aims to maintain brand 
relevance across all in all key markets that we serve.

investment in corporate branding 

2016/17 2015/16

Electronic Media 23,850,000 31,800,000

Print Media 7,450,000 3,180,000

Social Media 30,000 100,000

total 31,330,000 350,80,000

 N  Employer Branding
Meanwhile with our business growing rapidly in the past few 
years, we realized it is important to recruit and retain the right 
people who will continue to spearhead our future growth 
ambitions. However, aware that we cannot rely on our track 
record alone, we began working towards strengthening KFL’s 
brand reputation as an employer of choice in Sri Lanka.

to add more value to our employer brand proposition in 
the year under review we implemented a new HRM (Human 
resource Management) solution. the robust new solution 
replaces all manual HR processes -employee profiling, 
recruitment management, performance evaluation, attendance 
and leave, and includes a comprehensive MIS dash board that 
functions as fair and transparent management decision making 
tool. More details on our employer branding initiatives can be 
found in the Human Capital Report on page 63.

intellectual capital
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ReseaRch and development (R&d)
KFL’s R & D initiatives focus on building knowledge-based resources that can be channelled towards positive value creation to 
benefit of all stakeholders of the Company.

to bring greater focus towards developing these knowledge-based intangibles, a fully-fledged R & D unit was set up in 
September 2016. the move is aimed at improving the effectiveness of the Corporate Planning function and assisting the 
management in the strategic decision making process, in particular to develop innovative products, justify improvements to 
service quality, rationalize existing operations and sharpen HR processes in response to the challenges and opportunities in the 
market.

In the year under review, the new R & D department conducted a number of internal and external studies focusing on mapping 
qualitative and quantitative aspects across identified areas of the business, with the results being used to improve key aspects of 
our business model.

Indusrty 
Strtegic 

Movements
technology Economy

Indusrty 
Financial 

Performance

Competitor 
Analysis 
(Product, 
Process, 

Promotion)

Regulatory 
changes

Industry News 
& Events

Product Process HRCustomer SWOt

Internal Environment R & D External Environment R & D

coRpoRate R & d plan
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ReseaRch aReas coveRed
 N Community Survey for Future Expected Financial Product 

from a finance company
 N Industry Market Share Analysis & Benchmarking the 

Company was conducted Annually on published financials 
available

 N Product Development Research for Real Estate: “Cohesive 
Analysis of Real Estate Competitor Brand Management 
Efforts”

 N R & D News Round up & Environment Scan:
* What new improvements were made based on these results? 
Eg: New Products introduced, Adding to the branch network, 
service enhancements for existing products, improvements to 
service levels, improvements to HR processes

 N Activation of CVD unit
the main implementation by R & D department is the 
activation of CVD (Customer Voice Detection unit) during the 
year with collaboration of the customer services department. 
CVD will perform as an independent mediator between 
the customer and the top level decision makers of the 

company, by receiving, identification, mediating for providing 
immediate, effective solutions for reported complaints by the 
customers to the centralised unit.

the updates are given to the management on daily basis and 
weekly meeting is taken with R & D department to identify 
the areas need further research support and development 
indications in processes and people.

An independent position was recruited for the unit during 
the year and provided the all products training with a record 
of pre-on the job training, job duties, competencies and 
communication skills needed in the area with the systematic 
reporting structure. this unit will be further strengthen during 
the next year , making more awareness about this mediation 
services to the all customers and employment of advanced 
sophisticated technology for recording purposes.

customer voice 
detection unit

GM/CEO

R&D

R&D

Product
Dept/Branch

Head of Customer 
Service

Customer Service
Manager

Receive

Stats & Facts

Post complain 
Evaluation Survey 
Results

Evaluation/
Risk/Impact/
Recommendation

Confirm

a

b

c

intellectual capital Contd.
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In creating sustainable value for our stakeholders, we are 
committed to aligning our long-term business strategies with 
their interests. We take into consideration their expectations 
and concerns as we identify and assess the environmental, 
social and governance risks, as well as opportunities across 
our business.

sustainability goveRnance stRuctuRe
We believe that good governance is at the core of running our 
business responsibly.

the Executive Management (EM) assists the Board in 
providing advice on sustainability issues and in formulating 
a suitable strategic plan for the company. the EM makes its 
recommendations on the company’s sustainability strategy, 
which are then submitted for the Board’s review and approval.

sustainability
Accordingly, the Board of director considers material 
environmental, social and governance (ESG) issues, reviews 
ESG goals and targets, and oversees the management and 
monitoring of material ESG factors.

the Executive Management (EM) consists of the Chief Executive 
Officer, General Managers, and chief Managers. the EM reviews 
and determines material ESG issues and their scope, evaluates 
key performance indicators, reviews long-term goals and 
provides strategic direction for sustainability reporting.
In doing so, the EM is assisted by a sustainability reporting 
project team, comprising of senior managers and other 
mangers from key functions within the organisation. With 
guidance from Board of Directors and the EM, the project 
team collates and reviews ESG data in collaboration with 
internal stakeholders for sustainability reporting.

ouR mateRial esg FactoRs
materiality analysis
In 2016/17, each and every division in the company together 
with Board of directors developed a mechanism to identify 
factors material to the company. the assessment was carried 
out based on knowledge of their respective business areas, 
the challenges faced by the financial industry and the 
corresponding implications for the Company’s businesses 
and its operations. Insights gained from the day-to-day 
engagement with stakeholders were also considered an 
important part of this process.

social capital & Relationship 
capital

executive management

board of director

sustainability Reporting 
project team
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 the company has basically thee sources of funds such as 

Shareholder equity, Deposits and Borrow through financial 

institutions amounting to Rs 1,549.6Mn, Rs. 9,145Mn and Rs. 

406.8Mn respectively. the company used the deposits and bank 

borrowing as main sources of funds for accommodate the landings 

during 2016/17 .

Financial capital

(1). term Deposits 
(2). Promissory  
 Note
(3). Commercial  
 Paper

 Bank Borrowing
Borrowing form 
other financial 
institutions

accepting deposits and boRRowing oF Funds

Micro Lending Leasing Hire Purchase

Business Loan Mortgage Loan Personal Loan

Consumer Loans Pawning Real Estate

Gold Loans Welada Warama
Loans Against 

Deposits

pRoduct poRtFolio

the company has high skilled and experienced management team 

and workforces for accommodate best way to innovative financial 

needs of customers. the company consciously invest through 

valuable training and other events in order to enhance competence 

level of the our peoples for cater customer needs in effective and 

efficient way that ensure long term sustainability and performance of 

the company.  At present 1,150 employees are in the company.

human capital

the company has high skilled and experienced management team 

and workforces for accommodate best way to innovative financial 

needs of customers. the company consciously invest through 

valuable training and other events in order to enhance competence 

level of the our peoples for cater customer needs in effective and 

efficient way that ensure long term sustainability and performance of 

the company.  At present 1,150 employees are in the company.

social and 
Responsible capital

Our Business activities do not have direct impact on the 

environment and that have indirect impact on usage of water and 

electricity in executing the business activities.

natuRal capital

inputs value cReation pRocess

social capital & Relationship capital Contd.
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In 2016/17, the company generated Rs.3.5bn of interest income and 

this fund basically used for,

(1). Interest payment amounting to Rs 1Bn.for mobilized deposits  

 and borrowing.

(2). Rs.1.6 Bn amount  for bears the total including personal cost.

(3). For government taxes Rs. 310.8Mn.Finally, the company   

 generated 311.4Mn amount to shareholder as net profit for the  

 year 2016/17.

Financial capital

In 2016/17 we paid Rs. 670.8 Mn to our employee as  salary and 

Bonus 493Mn, EPF Rs- 61.22Mn,EtF - Rs15.3Mn, Gratuity - 19.66Mn 

and other expense 81.55Mn.                                                                                              

human capital

`We took our CSR activities as integral part of the strategic plans 

of the company. We executed variance CRS activities specially 

Education, School Development, Religious development and show 

our awareness in environment. this includes following projects, 

(1). Collection of polythene & plastic bottles Kandy perahera

(2). Musical instruments donations

(3). Sasunata Diriyak

(4). Donated a water purification unit

(5). urumaya Surakimu” 2nd Project Sri Padha Cleaning Project

(6). Flood donations

(7). Gewathu wagawa Project

social and 
Responsible capital

In 2016/17, We conducted several programmes across the 

organisation to minimise the use of water and electricity 

consumption. And also we executive several environment friendly 

CRS programmes aiming of protect the environment.

natuRal capital

value cReation pRocess

ouR 
business 

model
Our business model demonstrates the way we accept 

deposits, borrow funds and  infuse equity capital into the 
organisation as in put capital and transform it into the 

company’s core business activities in order derive values 
through our products and services. And it also demonstrates 

how the company spreads value to various sources as 
Employee’s benefits, interest to fund holders and to 

borrowers, CRS to community, tax to government and profit 
to shareholders.
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identiFication oF stakeholdeR and obJective setting

 

social capital & Relationship capital Contd.

Government and 
Regulation

Employees

Customers

Community and 
Environment

Shareholders

Suppliers

management 
inFoRmation system

Yes

No

No

gathering information 
about the different 
stakeholder groups

identification and 
categorisation  

of stakeholders 

identification and 
categorisation  

of stakeholders 

evaluation

setting goals and 
objectives

strategy 
implementation

Fulfil the stakeholder 
objective

materiality testing

material aspect

materiality testing

materiality testingYes
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stakeholdeR engagement
We believe that constructive stakeholder engagement enables us to serve the needs of our customers more effectively, to build 
meaningful careers for our people and to make a difference in the communities in which we operate. By gathering stakeholder 
feedback through dialogue, collaboration and cooperation, we identify the stakeholders perceptions that matter most are relevant 
to our business.

A summary of our stakeholder engagement efforts is presented in the following table.

stakeholders how we engaged them what they expect how we meet their expectations

customers  N Customer surveys
 N Corporate communication 

(Ex- Advertisement, 
sponsoring to events, paper 
publication etc.)

 N CSR activities

 N Privacy of their personal 
Information

 N Products and services that 
meet specific customer 
requirements 

 N Convenient access to 
products and services

 N Developing a robust information 
system to secure privacy of 
customer personal information.

 N Maintaining the  professional 
and ethical standards in all our 
dealings with customers

 N Diversifying the lending product 
portfolio with the introduction of 
a wide range of lending products

 N Developing the skills and 
knowledge of the workforce to 
ensure that they serve in the best 
interests of our customers.

 N Facilitating easy access to our 
products and services through 
a strong island-wide branch 
network 

employees  N Continuous welfare 
activities

 N HR policies and procedures
 N Open door policy by 

management
 N the Kanrich forum
 N Employee meetings
 N email messages from 

Management
 N training programs
 N Inspiration activities

 N Conductive work 
environment

 N Career development
 N Balance wages and 

benefits
 N Job satisfaction and 

recognition
 N Work-life balance

 N Providing opportunities for 
training and development.

 N Continuous appraisal of 
performance against criteria 
established by the company.

 N Ensuring fair human resource 
policies

 N Maintaining workplace health 
and safety.

 N Providing health and wellness 
benefits.
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stakeholders how we engaged them what they expect how we meet their expectations

investors  N General meetings with 
shareholders

 N Annual reports
 N Corporate communication 

 N Stable and sustainable 
growth and profitability

 N Strong corporate 
governance and 
transparency

 N Reasonable returns to 
shareholders

 N Ensuring strong oversight and 
accountability through an 
experienced and competent 
Board and Management team.

 N Ensuring a robust risk governance 
and management

 N Ensuring timely disclosures and 
transparent reporting.

community  N Kanrich takshalawa English 
program

 N Kanrich Sasunata Diriyak 
programe

 N puttalam School water 
project program

 N Donations and sponsorships
 N New requirement in the year

 N Employment 
opportunities

 N Responsible lending and 
investment

 N Community welfare 

 N community-based CSR activities 
to facilitate Educational, religious 
and environmental development.

 N Creating jobs 
 N Disaster response 

governments and 
Regulators

 N CBSL weekly, monthly, 
quarterly and yearly return

 N Annual CBSL on site 
examination

 N Annual reports
 N Audit reports
 N Regular meetings with local 

authorities
 N Consultations with 

regulatory bodies

 N Financial stability
 N taxes
 N Compliance with 

Regulatory framework
 N upholding of the highest 

standards of corporate 
governance and ethical 
behaviour

 N Complying with applicable and 
current laws, regulations and 
policies

 N Preserving strong capital 
adequacy levels

 N Obtaining of external auditor  
assurance on corporate governed 
and internal control system

 N Regular payment of relevant taxes 
on time

 N Creating of the culture of integrity 
and ethical behaviour

suppliers  N Requests for Quotations 
and/or Proposals

 N Vendor briefings
 N Purchase agreements

 N Fair vendor selection 
process

 N Ethical conduct
 N timely payment

 N Ensuring integrity in all 
purchasing decisions.

 N Adhering to agreement terms

stakeholder materiality analysis
the identification and material aspect of the stakeholder has a significant bearing on our overall strategic formulation process and 
effective employed of financial, human and other resources in order to derive value across organisation. the overall responsibility 
in assessing materiality aspect of stakeholder rests with the top management of the organisation and a systematic process is in 
place to obtain information within and outside organisation’s boundary and to provide assurance on effective engagement with 
stakeholders. the process also provides the best mechanism for responding to results derived from material assessment.

social capital & Relationship capital Contd.
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no aspect boundary significant to 
stakeholders

significant to 
kFl

 investors

1 Direct and indirect Impact due to entity’s performance KFL High High

2 Corporate governance Regulator High High

 customers

3 Corporative communication KFL Medium Medium

4 Product and service labelling KFL Medium Medium

5 Customer privacy KFL High High

6 Customer Health and safety Customer High Medium

 employees

7 Diversity and equal opportunity KFL High Medium

8 training and Education KFL High High

9 Occupational health and safety KFL High Medium

10 Grievances Handling KFL High Medium

 community

11 Corporate Social Responsibilities KFL High Medium

12 Employment opportunities KFL High Medium

 environment

13 Electricity KFL High Low

14 Water KFL High Low

15 Wastage KFL High Medium

16 Emission Community High Medium

 governments and Regulators

17 Anti-corruption KFL High High

18 Compliance KFL High High

19 taxes Government and 
regulator

High High

20 Corporate governance Government and 
regulator

High High

 
customeR
We attend to our customers’ needs and keep their interests at the heart through everything that we do. We always act in best 
interest of the customer by first identifying the customers’ business and financial goals and offering the most appropriate solutions.



Kanrich Finance Ltd | Annual Report 2016/1760

creating value to customer
At Present, the environment is more complex, resulting in 
rapid changes in the customers day-to-day business and 
financial goals. In response to this, we seek to enhance our 
expertise and understanding of our customer needs through 
market surveys and by strengthening relationships with them.

ouR customeR commitments
In serving our customers, we uphold four customer 
commitments built on our core values namely,

Fair dealing
Fair dealing is a key characteristic of our unique culture where 
we encourage all employees to act in best interest to our 
customer.
All decisions taken by the corporate management team 
demonstrate the fair dealing culture present across the 
organisation. It is also reflected in the way, we have designed 
our products and services, marketing and sales strategies and 
our after-sales care. We have embedded integrity, friendliness 
and right attitude in to our culture to ensure that we deal fairly 
with our customer in all aspect of the customers’ relationship.

We ensure Fair Dealing remains to imbued in our corporate 
culture by:

 N  Offering diversified product portfolio covering all level 
in the society. Our product committee reviews the type 
and level of product and service development that are 
suitable to meet our customer financial and business 
objectives. the research and development team carries out 
extensive market research to provide accurate and timely 
information to support the product development process.

 N  Ensuring corporate communication channels provide 
relevant information to keep the customer abreast of each 
and every aspect of the company enabling them to make 
timely and accurate decisions. the Micro team is building 
extensive business relationships with customers through 
the provision of regular loans, CSR activities (especially 
in education by Kanrich taksalwa English programmer, 
school water management project), effective handing of 
customer grievances, participating in social events and 
providing business consultancy services.

 N  Ensuring the competency of our colleagues in providing 
quality advice and appropriate recommendations.

 N  Dealing with feedback in an independent, effective and 
prompt manner. We take customer complaints seriously 
and have robust procedures to address them. We equip 
our employees with the necessary skills to attend to 
customer complaints, to resolve issues and to turn difficult 
situations around. We conduct surveys regularly across all 
customer segments to gather feedback, which pinpoint the 
areas where our processes and service standards need to 
be improved in order to enhance the customer experience.

provide the right solution
We use our extensive experience, skills and knowledge to 
deliver best solution and service to customer enabling them to 
achieve their business and financial goals.

As responsible financial institution, our objectives are to 
develop a diversified product portfolio to better serve our 
customer’s financial needs.

the micro lending and RBS lending provide financial solutions 
to small businesses. In addition our experienced and skilled 
team members also provide technical advice and other related 
infrastructures to support these small businesses to grow 
sustainability.

Meanwhile, our simplified and speed up business loans 
procedures help customers to overcome theirs financial 
problems without disturbing their day-to-day businesses. 
We also provide unsecured financial solutions to some 
organisations that have the potential to grow their business but 
are unable to raise capital due to lack in collateral. Further, we 
understand the ambitions of start ups and emerging enterprises 
and want to help them grow into sustainable businesses.

In 2016/2017, we launched the pawning product with flexible 
interest rates, to facilitate the needs of individuals who are in 
urgent need of funds.

communicating to the customer
We provide accurate and comprehensive information to 
the customer enabling them to make timely decisions. Our 
Marketing communications are complied with legal framework 
and ethical standards. Moreover, invest in providing 
employees with the knowledge and capacity to offer guidance 
and information about the company at any time they need.

social capital & Relationship capital Contd.
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In addition, we conduct comprehensive CSR activities coupled 
with advertisement strategies (Both social media and other 
media) to enhance the awareness of the KFL corporate brand 
image as well as promote niche offerings to different customer 
segments. through the print media we regularly notify the 
public regarding Company achievements (Sport achievement, 
awards wing), management discussion on operational results 
of the company and about our services.

accessibility to our financial services
through a diverse branch network, we aim to provide our 
customers with greater access to our financial products and 
services.

We have developed our branch networks covering vast 
area across the island allowing our customers to access our 
financial product and services. In 2016/2017, we relocated 
certain branches in highly customer accessible areas to 
provide better customer service.

protecting customer data and privacy
As a responsible financial institution in the country, we 
understand our primary obligation to safeguard the privacy 
of personal information. Adopting an integrated information 
system and communication value standards across 
organisation, enables us to guarantee customer confidentiality 
and protect the customer from the misuse or theft of their 
personal data. Our key efforts include;

 N  Notifying the customer regarding each transaction via SMS 
Alerts.

 N  Strict security protocols to prevent unauthorized access to 
the It system.

 N  Highest ethical standards.

community
We are honoured to serve the communities where our 
people and our customers build their lives. With a deep 
understanding of the markets in which we operate, we have 
devoted our support to the social and economic development 
of these communities by specifically investing in areas that 
create long-term value for them.

creating economic value
In the course of conducting our business, we also create direct 
and indirect economic value for our stakeholders. We provide 
livelihoods for more than 1500 people across the industry in 
which we operate. In 2016/2017, we spent more than  
Rs. 670Mn on employee compensation and benefits, which in turn 
contributed towards increased spending within local economies. 
We also accrued Rs.113 Mn as income tax to the governments.

helping to develop and innovate small business 
enterprises
We have a long-standing commitment to encourage Small 
business and to nurture their growth. In addition to providing 
micro lending or other types of loans to SME, we provide 
technical support and other infrastructure development to 
sustainable growth. We use our unique insight and expertise 
to offer a range of solutions to meet their business needs 
throughout.

 N  In 2016/2017, we have program namely “Kanrich 
Liyasaviya” aiming to develop micro credit customer 
small business. this program offer advice and technical 
knowledge to them for develop their small business via 
both inside and outside resource persons.

 N  In addition to KFL invested project on enabling usage 
of organic fertilizer in cultivation in certain areas of the 
country.

strengthening helping hand to local community
Giving back to the communities in which we operate is 
fundamental to our business philosophy. In year of 2016/17, 
we continued to fulfil our long-standing commitment to 
support the broader community in many areas encompassing 
religion, school, children and education for the long term.

Second Project - Musical instruments donations
We donated 24 no’s of musical instruments to “Pahalagama 
Junior School” thangalle. the school is located in a very rural 
area and the students haven’t got any musical instruments 
to utilise in their music education. the parents were unable 
to buy them even a basic instrument due to the poverty. All 
most all the children are underprivileged and it was a very 
challenging task for them to obtain the required instruments to 
fulfil their aesthetics educational needs. Kanrich finance could 
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be able to totally fulfil their dream of learning to play musical 
instruments.

Sasunata Diriyak
this project aims to support less facilitated Buddhist temples 
to protect our valuable philosophy, “Buddhism” to the next 
generation. Beside we are a finance institution that prioritize 
assistance for religious activities.

By conducting the project, the company supports to develop 
the temples by donating various building or fulfilling the 
basic requirements such as shrines and donating statues. Our 
objective of this project is to be a helping hand to develop 
one underprivileged temple per month around Sri Lanka to 
protect Buddhism for future generations.

Concluded Projects
 N Donated shrine & a Buddha statue the Ingiriya Dumbara 

temple
 N Donated Buddha house of the Sri Vidarshanaramaya - 

Balangoda
 N the sacred building “danashala” Mihindugama Sri 

Abayaraja temple - Rathnapura
 N the sacred “Bell tower” of the Kawanthissapura Sri 

sambuddha jayanthi temple – Embilipitiya

 N  Addition to that Kanrich is also looking forward to give 
support to other religions as well the initiative project, 
KFL has constructed the Sri Vinayagar hindu kovil in 
Omanthai the kovil was ritually offered to the hindu 
devotees of the area.

Donated a water purification unit
A water purifying unit was donated to an unprivileged school 
named “Semmandaluwa Junior School in Puttalam. the school 
is situated in an area where the ground water contains very 
harmful chemicals which are the root cause for kidney diseases.

there were more than 150 students in the school below the 
grade 5. It was a great challenge for the school to invest in a 
water purification unit to purify water for drinking purpose.

Kanrich finance supported the school children by facilitating 
their basic need of having clean drinking water by donating a 

water purification unit never the less, Kanrich could be able to 
save and secure more than 150 children’s life which could be 
in danger by consuming harmful chemicals

Vocational training
Being one of the leading micro finance provider in Sri 
Lanka. the company supports more than 150,000 women in 
rural and suburban area. Consequently the company has an 
opportunity to develop the Sri Lanka rural economy. Since 
economy development is a part of our CSR triple bottom line, 
the Company has planned to conduct vocational training for 
our micro members to train them the methods to utilise the 
loan given by Kanrich finance effectively to develop their 
business and to start up the most suitable business to achieve 
their goals. the concluded programs were done with join 
collaboration of ministry of science, technology and Research.

the company could be able to successfully conclude two 
training session in Anuradhapura and Borella on soap 
manufacturing and on to make sweets to sell in a larger snake. 
We could be able to train more than 150 women to become 
future entrepreneurs of the nation.

social capital & Relationship capital Contd.
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ouR commitment
We believe in creating a passionate and a committed 
workforce through trust, unity, customer focus and 
engagement. We continuously strive ourselves in committing 
towards living our values and uplifting our service standards.

do what is Right
Our decisions are made in the best interests our employees, 
customers and stakeholders, we ensure in complying with all 
regulatory requirements and social norms.

We uphold the highest standards of professionalism and 
ethics. Our KFL Code of Conduct outlines highest standards 
of corporate behaviour, business ethics and integrity. We 
set clear expectations and principles in guiding professional 
excellence and make each employee aware of their 
obligations towards creating professional work environment.

We make each employee aware of their obligations and rights 
under the code of conduct

ouR woRkFoRce at a glance

category male Female total

Corporate Management 10 2 12

Chief Manager 8 0 8

Senior Manager 14 1 15

Manager 51 11 62

Assistant Manager 112 10 122

Senior Executives 225 23 248

Executive 250 48 298

Junior Executive 555 113 668

Other Grade 105 12 117

total 1330 220 1550

Age Analysis – Composition of work force across age ranges for 
2016/17

building meaningFul caReeRs
Building talent and brining the best out of everyone through 
professional development and personal support is the core 
in our HR philosophy. We encourage each one in enhancing 

their careers by engaging in professional development 
initiatives.
 

key training highlight 2016/17 2015/16

Investment in training (Rs) 8,802,000.00 10,072,500.00

Average training hours per 
Employee

8 8

training no of 
training

no of 
participant

Leadership 2 77

Motivational training 1 75

Compliance and Regulation 9 58

Finance Related 7 43

Strategic Management and 
Decision Making

8 11

Custom Care 1 2

Marketing and 
Communication skill 
Development

11 35

Product Development and 
process training

34 1997

Other training 3 43

we make a Real diFFeRence
Our unwavering commitment in living the KFL values is 
reflected in how we serve our customers, communities and 
other stakeholders. We treat each one with dignity and 
respect. We passionately indulge in shaping the future of each 
stakeholder.

Maintaining an Organisation Based on Good Governance
Our sustainable growth is a result of maintaining highest 
standards of good governance. Our HR related policies and 
procedures reflects the essentials of good governance and 
we build awareness among our employees on areas related 
to money laundering, bribery, confidentiality and information 
security.

human capital
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maintaining woRkplace health & saFety
Maintaining the health and safety of our employees are 
of paramount of importance to us. We have set in place 
appropriate policies, procedures and guidelines for the 
maintenance of a healthy and a safe working environment 
free from any type hazards, injuries and accidents.

Our employees are provided with a comprehensive medical 
and welfare facilities enabling towards healthy life style.

upholding human Rights
We are committed towards respecting human rights and 
related principles. All employees, customers and other 
stakeholders would be treated with dignity and respect. All 
our decisions are made purely on the needs of business, 
regulatory requirements and social norms and frown upon any 
form discrimination

cReating a diveRse & inclusive woRkplace
We have a diverse group of individuals working in the 
Company from various professional circles age groups with 
a balance mix of skills and experience, who contribute in 
creating a sustainable work environment. this gives us the 
edge in creating innovative business solutions and practices 
which we deliver to our customers.

nuRtuRing ouR people thRough tRaining & 
development
We consider our employees as an asset. Providing structured 
learning and development initiatives to elevate the level of 
skills, competencies, knowledge, mindset towards delivering 
business value and organisational capability is an integral part 
of our HR philosophy.

the learning initiatives are instilled both off job and on the job 
training as well as learning through feedback and educational 
sessions.

managing employee peRFoRmance
We consider having a performance related culture within the 
Company is an important element in the entire talent managing 
process. Performance is linked to the reward and career 
management process and its ensured of the transparency.-

Productive Indicators and KPI’s related to each Productive 
Indicator has been assigned to all categories of employment. 
Indicators are monitored monthly and quarterly and feedback 
for performance improvement is provided.

KFL is proud to have a rich culture of sports. Employees who 
aspires to participate in sports activity is encouraged and 
provided with an equal opportunity.

basketball
 N Mercantile Basketball 'C' Division – Champions

athletics

name event place category

Kanishka 
Wijesinghe

High Jump 1st (New 
Record)

Novices 

Rukmal Shantha Javelin and 
Discuss 

1st Novices

Rukmal Shantha Shot putt 2nd  '' 

thivanka Bandara 400m and 
200m

1st Championship

thivanka Bandara 100m 2nd  '' 

Rumesh 
Premathilaka

110 
Hurdles 

2nd Novices

Namal Bandara 1500m 2nd Novices

Sanjeeva Gayan 800m 2nd Novices

cricket
 N Mercantile Cricket tournament 2016 - A team Champions

volleyball
 N Finance Houses Association meet- Champions
 N Mercantile Volleyball Super League- Champions

netball
 N FHA Netball Championship - Champions
 N Mercantile Netball tournament C Division - Champions

motor sports
Kasun Kodippiliy of Colombo branch emerged victorious in 
Colombo Challenge Rally Leg 1 and Leg 2 of the NPR Category

human capital Contd.
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natuRal capital

enviRonment
We are committed to protecting the environment for the well-
being of our people, customers and the wider community for 
the long term. Our approach is to reduce the environmental 
footprint of our operations across the company, focusing 
on energy efficiency, waste management and resource 
conservation at our office buildings and branches.

Reducing our environmental Footprint
Operations at our office buildings and branches contribute the 
most to KFL’s direct environmental impact. Besides promoting 
energy efficiency, we are also committed to saving resources, 
including water and paper, and managing waste effectively.

managing of our Resources
Paper
Our recyclable waste includes mainly paper and used or 
decommissioned technology equipment. In encouraging our 
employees to use paper carefully, we have started monitoring 
paper use across our network to minimise consumption and 
to encourage recycling.

Electricity
All bulbs across the organisations were replaced to LED bulbs 
aiming reducing electricity consumption and strict supervision 
was carried out throughout year to monitor unwanted 
electricity consumption. In this regard, we also took steps to 
switch off air-conditioning, fans and lights during off-peak 
hours. It was also mandated that the office premises and 
braches should monitor electricity and record usage with swift 
remedial action taken to address unusually high consumption.

Disposal of plastic items
Strict waste segregation is practiced to separate plastics from 
other disposable waste. to ensure the responsible disposal 
of plastic waste, we have partnered with a licensed recycling. 
Further, we have clearly instructed to our people to minimise 
the usage of plastic replacing it with other alternatives.

Water
We have installed water-efficient fittings in our organisation 
and action has been take to repair water leakages and to stop 
unnecessary water usage.

our environment awareness
We conducted several environment friendly programs to 
raise environment awareness and encourage environmental 

protection among the community. Collection of polythene & 
plastic bottles Kandy perahera

With polythene and plastic are becoming a major threat to 
the environment, KFL launched “urumaya”, a project aimed 
at protecting Sri Lanka’s heritage sites. Phase 1 of the project, 
which was aimed promoting a plastic free zone in Kandy 
during the sacred Dalada Perahera was successfully carried 
out during the Randoli Perahera for 5 days. Our dedicated 
employees voluntarily got involved in this worthy cause by 
collecting plastic and polythene from the public who came to 
witness the sacred event. All the non-biodegradable items in 
the area were collected daily after the conclusion of perahera 
and sent for recycling.

Gewathuwagawa (Gardening towards self-sufficiency)
the main objective of this project is to promote gardening in 
order to fulfil day-to-day household food requirement. KFL 
conducted a series of seminars to educate the Company’s 
micro customers on home gardening techniques.

More than 300 rural and suburban women in Kandy, Kegalle 
and Ruwanwella participated in the three programmes 
conducted during this financial year 2016/2017.

“urumaya Surakimu” 2nd Project Sri Padha Cleaning Project
As the second largest initiative taken from the CSR unit of the 
company to protect the environment. the sacred Sri Padha was 
cleaned by the volunteer employees of the company on the 
very first Poya day in 2017. the nature of this program was 
to clean the Sri Padha forest and the path where the pilgrims 
use to worship the sacred footprint. there were two another 
initiatives taken on the same project. One is the company 
has printed 4000 biodegradable bags and distributed among 
the pilgrims taking their polythene bags. this initiative was 
taken to reduce polythene bag disposal to the Sri Padha forest 
where there is a very rich biodiversity.

Other initiative taken was, the company has conducted a 
banner campaign in all the railway stations in Sri Lanka where 
most of the pilgrims come through more than 100 banners 
were displayed with a joint collaboration of Sri Lanka Railways 
and Central environment authority.

to educate the pilgrims to avoid taking polythene and plastic 
stuff when they worship Sri Padha.
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the financial environment in recent past has been changing 
and new regulation has come to operation in light of 
challenges arising from changing consumer behaviour and 
disruptive technologies, and increased risks of financial crime 
including money laundering, financing of terrorism, etc.

KFL maintains a robust system and internal culture to assist in 
complying with applicable laws and regulations in the country 
as well as those aimed at preventing financial crimes such as 
money laundering, terrorism financing, fraud, insider trading, 
tax evasion, bribery and corruption.

the alternative responsibility to introducing and maintain 
a robust system for complying with low and regulation is 
with the board of directors. the boards often oversees how 
he system is structured across the organisation and how 
effectively the system is operated.

the CEO plays an important role in promoting developing 
and establishing policies and procedures in complying with 
laws and regulations. the CEO holds regular meetings with 
senior management and others where necessary, in order 
to gather knowledge and develop overall policies and 
procedures to manage compliance risk. the compliance 
function comes under the purview of the CEO and is tasked 
with identifying, assessing, monitoring compliance function in 
managing compliance risk.

Internal auditor regular basis carried out their review on the 
system and provide independent assurance on system with 
their consultation to improve the process.

anti-money laundering and countering terrorism 
Financing
KFL maintains a firm stand against financial crimes such 
as money laundering and terrorism financing. We have a 
robust and dynamic Anti-Money Laundering/Countering the 
Financing of terrorism framework and programmes that 
identifies, assesses, mitigates and manages the risks associated 
with money laundering, terrorist financing and sanctions. 
the framework and programmes are reviewed and audited 
regularly by our internal auditors.

All employees are required to comply with Anti-Money 
Laundering Policy and applicable laws. A dedicated Senior 
Management committee provides governance oversight on the 
process. We also monitor regulatory developments to assess 
the potential implications on our policies and processes. 
Significant events are escalated to the committee and Senior 
Management on a timely basis.

anti-bribery and anti-corruption
the company adopts a zero tolerance approach to bribery and 
corruption. Our Code of Conduct includes policies relating 
to anti-bribery including facilitation payments, restrictions on 
gifts and entertainment expenses where there is conflicts of 
interest. In addition, our whistle-blowing procedures enable 
employees to report any instances of potential bribery in a 
private, confidential and secure manner,.

shaReholdeR
Active engagement with our investors plays a key role in 
ensuring we understand their concerns and address them in a 
timely and effective manner.

pRoduct diveRsiFication
Over the past two years, the company stepped out extra 
mile for diversify the product portfolio away from the micro 
lending with the aim of ensuring that long term sustainable 
profitability to the shareholders. the company changed their 
product mixed equal balance with secured non secured, long 
term short term, high risk and low risk, and vital correlation 
among the products, to build well diverse product’s portfolio 
those are reduced risks acceptable level with reasonable 
return to investors. As results Company reduced, it’s solely 
depend on micro lending which is given high inherent risk 
and spread it to such products as Finance leasing, Mortgage 
Loan, Pawning, business loan etc.

RegulatoRs



Kanrich Finance Ltd | Annual Report 2016/17 69

CEO’s Message
Business Profile

Management Discussion & Analysis
Capital Management Report

Corporate Governance Report
Committee Reports

Risk Management Report
Financial Statements

About this Report
Key Highlights for the year 

Company Overview
Board of Directors
Corporate Profile

Management Team
Chairman’s Message

Kanrich Finance is proud have adopted constantly evolving, 
modern ethical practices in its business strategy, utilizing 
a performance-driven culture and a dynamic governance 
structure that enables the Company to stay ahead even in the 
most demanding times.

Over the years, the company has been able to successfully 
win over and maintain the loyalty and trust of shareholders, 
customers, employees and other stakeholders thanks to a 
board approved set of principles and procedures that ensure 
integrity, fairness, transparency and accountability at all times.

boaRds oF diRectoRs
the board comprises a balanced blend of professionals from 
diverse areas of proficiency which business strategies and 
operational performance. the Board is led by the Chairman, 
who is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Sri Lanka with over 30 years of experience 
in Accounting, Finance and Auditing, including the eminent 
positions of Director public Enterprises, Director Public 
Enterprise reforms, Additional Director General of treasury 
Operations, Director General of State Accountants of the 
General treasury and Auditor General.

KFL’s Board of Directors collectively bear the overall 
responsibility for guiding the Company’s governance policies 
and have put in place a robust mechanism in order achieve 
accountability between the Board, the Senior Management, the 
Shareholders and other stakeholders.

subcommittees
the Board is supported by several independent Board 
Subcommittees that provide an unbiased perspective that aim 
to enhance the functions of the Board in areas pertaining to 
the good governance operational principles.

Aligned with industry standards, the Subcommittees are 
instrumental in effecting dynamic policies and overseeing 
diverse operational areas while referring to the Board for 
approval and guidance.

the Company’s Audit Committee is charged with the task 
of reviewing internal controls, legal and ethical compliance, 

coRpoRate goveRnance RepoRt

integrity of financial reporting and monitoring the Company’s 
risk management framework. the Audit Committee meets 
regularly to ensure continued efficiency in these areas.

the remuneration Committee meets when the need arises to 
review the performance of the CEO and Management staff 
and agree on their remuneration by considering performance 
indicators, company objectives and industry best practices.

three Management Committees; Asset and Liability Committee, 
Credit Committee and the integrated Risk Management 
Committee are charged with the responsibility of monitoring 
the asset and liability position, their maturities, Management 
of risk in all aspects of the business, credit policies and their 
application and other related tasks.

the Credit committee consists of key personnel of credit 
operations. the Committee meets Monthly and operates with 
an aim of ensuring that existing policies are implemented 
while discussing and recommending innovative policy 
changes to strengthen the company’s core micro finance 
operation.

the Company also has a Management Committee that 
meets on a monthly basis. Comprising of Senior Managers 
of the Company and chaired by the CEO, the Management 
Committee deliberated on the implementation of strategic 
policy, initiations of the Board Subcommittees and other 
key aspects of the business that call for the attention of this 
subcommittee.

coRpoRate stRuctuRe and engagement
the Governance structure followed by Kanrich Finance 
Ltd. reflects the Company’s history, its core values and its 
cooperate social responsibilities, while being in line with best 
practices of good cooperate governance.

KFL’s corporate structure is based on transparency and 
complements its responsible governance principles. Every 
unit within in the structure bears responsibility for the assets 
and liabilities of their branches or clusters, while relevant staff 
members are constantly updated on the mobilized fund and 
their utilization.
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the well planned decision making process provides allowance for Branch Managers to seek staff opinions and the advice 
of the Senior Management when making key decisions. the entire team, including the Management is continually apprised 
of the general company outlook at a monthly meeting, where the management teams from each branch review targets and 
performance. KFL staff relay all relevant decisions or information to customers and also updates them on the Company’s outlook, 
its investments and performance. these interactions are further enhanced by social media platforms such as the Company’s Face 
book page, which provides a convenient and transparent medium of communication.

the Company engages with shareholders and stakeholders through its annual general meeting, while consistently providing 
important updates via it’s cooperate website. the Company also engages with the regulators on a periodic basis where they 
meet with the board and the CEO to peruse mandatory monthly updates. the Company further extends its engagement to a 
community level, through public events, CSR projects and corporate sponsorships.

the joint code of best 
practice issued by 
icasl and sec

companies (cooperate 
governance) direction 
no.03 of 2008

kFl extent of adoption

a. directors

A.1 the Board 
should Direct, Lead 
and Control the 
Company

A.1 2(1) and 2(2) At present, the Board of Directors of the
Company comprises of three Non-Executive
Directors and two Executive Directors. the 
Board possesses members who have adequate 
knowledge and skills to direct, lead and control 
its operations. the Profiles of the  Directors 
are presented on pages 10 to 12 of this Annual 
Report. the Board plays an active role in 
setting the directions for the Company and 
the process of Implementation of strategies. 
Senior Managers are given the authority and 
responsibility to implement strategies. Annual 
budgets and corporate plans are the key 
tools in this process. the Board ensures that 
the Company’s plans are directed towards 
achievement of set objectives which are 
regularly monitored and updated through 
a well-established planning process. Key 
Performance Indicators are used to assess the 
performance at each Board meeting.

Board meetings A.1.1 3(1) Board meetings are held once every month to review 
and evaluate the performance of the Company. 
Special meetings are held based on the requirement 
to discuss specific matters. Number of Board 
meetings held during the period and the individual 
attendance by each member of the Board there at is 
presented on page 178 of this Annual Report.

corporate governance Report Contd.



Kanrich Finance Ltd | Annual Report 2016/17 71

CEO’s Message
Business Profile

Management Discussion & Analysis
Capital Management Report

Corporate Governance Report
Committee Reports

Risk Management Report
Financial Statements

About this Report
Key Highlights for the year 

Company Overview
Board of Directors
Corporate Profile

Management Team
Chairman’s Message

the joint code of best 
practice issued by 
icasl and sec

companies (cooperate 
governance) direction 
no.03 of 2008

kFl extent of adoption

Responsibility of the 
Board

A.1.2 Not Fully complied. the Board is responsible 
for setting the strategy and risk appetite 
in governing KFL and that  reflect KFL’s 
governance principles the Board  also approves 
capital and operating plans  resented by 
management for the achievement of the strategic 
objectives. It has set. this ensures the efficient 
application of our resources for the achievement 
of these objectives. the Board discharges 
these responsibilities through continuous 
meetings that cover regular reviews of financial 
performance, non-financial performance, 
critical business issues, and the annual strategy 
review process. the Board also recognises its 
responsibility towards other key stakeholders 
including its depositors when directing the 
affairs of the Company. In effectively discharging 
its obligations for prudent running of business, 
the KFL Board takes responsibility for matters 
that are of strategic nature, and key financial and 
non-financial decisions Necessary adjustments 
will be are made to the plans and budgets and 
the strategies will be altered accordingly. the 
changes by the Board will be are based on the 
Internal Strengths,
Weaknesses and the Opportunities and threats 
prevailing in the macro-environment. In 
addition, competitor actions would are also be 
considered in prior to finalizing any changes

Compliance with 
laws and access to 
independent
professional advice

A.1.3 No such service has been obtained during the 
year.
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the joint code of best 
practice issued by 
icasl and sec

companies (cooperate 
governance) direction 
no.03 of 2008

kFl extent of adoption

Company Secretary A.1.4 3 (5),6,7,8 the Company Secretary possesses the required
qualifications as per the Companies Act and
only the Board has the authority to change the
Secretary. All the Directors have access to the 
advice and services of the Company Secretary. 
the Secretary ensures that Board procedures are
followed and are in compliance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007, 
Finance Business Act No. 42 of 2011 and other 
applicable rules and regulations. the Secretary 
is responsible for maintaining Minutes of Board 
Meetings.

Independent 
Judgment

A.1.5 4(6) Any member of the Board is entitled to seek 
independent professional opinion at the 
company’s expenses with the approval of the 
Board. No such services has been obtained 
during the year.

training Needs of 
Directors

A.1.7 knowledge, skills and dynamism to deal with 
matters of the Board. the Directors have 
sufficient exposure and, expertise in their 
relevant areas to fulfil their collective duties and 
responsibilities owing to the Board. Company 
Secretary informed the Board about CBSL 
rules and regulations issued in the financial 
year 2016/17, by circulating such requirements 
promptly. In addition, Executive Directors 
constantly deal with corporate management and 
keep abreast of latest developments.

a.2 chairman and chief executive officer

Keeping separate the 
role of Chairperson 
and Chief Executive

A.2.1 7(1) the Role of the CEO and Chairman has been
defined and approved by the Board of Directors. 
the Chairman is a Non-Executive Director 
while the CEO serves as an Executive Director 
of the Company. this is to ensure a balance of 
power and authority such that no one possesses 
unfettered powers of decisions.

corporate governance Report Contd.
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the joint code of best 
practice issued by 
icasl and sec

companies (cooperate 
governance) direction 
no.03 of 2008

kFl extent of adoption

a.3 chairman’s Role

Chairperson’s role in
conducting Board 
proceedings

A.3 7(2),(4),(6),(7)(8) the Chairman, who is a Non-Executive 
Independent Director, provides leadership and
facilitates the effective functioning of the 
Board. the Chairman encourages the effective 
participation of the Directors towards the strategic 
decision-making process in order to make 
collective decisions and ensure that the Directors 
utilise their maximum potential in favour of the 
Company. therefore, Chairman ensures that 
Directors are informed adequately and in a timely 
manner about the issues arising at Board meetings. 
Different views of the Directors are evaluated to 
take strategically viable decisions and to ensure 
that stakeholder interest is not adversely affected. 
the Board has complete control over the affairs of 
the Company, by way of reviewing and analyzing 
performance on a monthly basis.

a.4 Financial acumen

Availability of 
Sufficient Financial 
Acumen and
Knowledge

A.4 4(6) the Directors hold the required qualifications
and experience in the financial service sector
as set out in their Profiles given on page 10
and 12 of this Annual Report and provide the
Company with the necessary financial
guidance in conducting its business. 

a.5 board balance

Presence of
Non-Executive 
Directors

A.5.1 4 (1) & (3) the Board of Directors of the Company
comprise of three(3) Non-Executive Directors
and two Executive Directors, including the CEO 
of the Company and their views carry significant
weight in the Board decisions.
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the joint code of best 
practice issued by 
icasl and sec

companies (cooperate 
governance) direction 
no.03 of 2008

kFl extent of adoption

Independence of the
Directors

A.5.2 4 (4) & (8) At present, there are three Directors who are
Independent Non-Executive Directors and they are 
free of any business or other relationship with the 
Company that could materially interfere with the 
exercise of their unfettered and independent judgment.

Criteria for evaluating
Independence of
Non-Executive 
Directors

A.5.3 All three Independent Non-Executive Directors 
remained distant from management and free from 
any other business relationships that could impair 
independence in decision-making

Signed independence
declaration by the
Non-Executive Directors

A.5.4 Every Non-Executive Director of the Company 
has made written submissions as to their 
independence as per schedule J of the Code. 

Appointment of an
Alternate Director by a 
Non-Executive Director

A.5.6 N/A

Senior Independent
Director (SID)

A.5.7 7.2 N/A
No requirement to appoint Senior Independent 
Director since the chairman is an independent 
Non Executive Director.

Recording of 
concerns in
Board minutes

A.5.8 Any concerns raised by the Directors during the year, 
are recorded in the minutes of Board meetings with 
necessary details by the Company Secretary. However, 
there were no concerns raised that could not be 
unanimously resolved requiring same to be minute.

a.6 supply of information

Information to 
the Board by 
Management

A.6.1 7(6) the Board receives regular reports and presentations 
on strategies and developments in relation to its 
business lines and geographical areas and overall 
plans and performance. Regular reports also provide 
the Board and Board subcommittees information 
on risk appetite profile, emerging risks, risk 
management aspects, credit exposures, asset and 
liability management including liquidity, compliance 
and other vital matters.  the agenda and supporting 
papers are distributed in advance to the Board 
and Subcommittee meetings to allow the members 
time to appropriately review and to facilitate full 
discussion at the meetings. All Directors have full 
and timely access to all relevant information

corporate governance Report Contd.
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the joint code of best 
practice issued by 
icasl and sec

companies (cooperate 
governance) direction 
no.03 of 2008

kFl extent of adoption

Adequate time for
effective meetings

A.6.2 the Company Secretary ensures that the 
required notice of meeting, agenda and 
information documents including Board papers 
are circulated to all Directors at least seven days 
prior to holding of Board meetings. this ensures 
that the Board members have adequate time 
to study and analyses the related papers and 
prepare thoroughly for Board meetings

a.7 appointments to the board

Nominations 
Committee 

A.7.1 the Nomination Committee under its terms of 
reference handles all new appointments to the 
Board in an effective manner. the Nominations 
Committee report for the financial period 
2016/2017 is given on page 90.

Board assessment by
the Nominations 
Committee

A.7.2 the Nominations Committee carried out an 
annual assessment of KFL Board’s composition to 
ascertain the level of experience, skills, knowledge 
and qualifications the members possess to deal 
with growing strategic needs of the Company.

Disclosure of
appointments to 
shareholders

A.7.3 4 New appointments were dully informed.

a.8 Re-election

Appointment of
Non-Executive 
Directors

A.8.1 the Nomination Committee provides 
recommendation on Directors who are retiring
by rotation for shareholder approval at the AGM.

Election of Directors 
by Shareholders

A.8.2 At the AGM shareholders will appoint nominees 
given by Nomination committee.

a.9 appraisal of board performance

Appraisal of Board
performance

A.9.1 A self-assessment was carried out by each Director 
at the end of the financial year, based on a specified 
evaluation checklist. A summary report of all the 
assessments made was tabled at the Board meeting, 
which highlighted areas requiring improvement to 
ensure the efficiency and effectiveness of the Board.

Annual self-assessment 
of the Board and its 
committees

A.9.2 Please refer A.9.1 code.
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the joint code of best 
practice issued by 
icasl and sec

companies (cooperate 
governance) direction 
no.03 of 2008

kFl extent of adoption

Disclosure of method 
of appraisal

A.9.3 Please refer A.9.1 code.

a.10 disclosure of information on directors

Director information A.10.1 Brief profile of each Director is provided on pages 10 
to 12 under the Section on ‘Board of Directors’. Details 
of Director participation status at Board meetings and 
at subcommittee meetings with information on such 
committee s are given later in this report.

a.11 appraisal of the chief executive officer

targets for CEO A.11.1 Chief Executive officer the Company is entrusted by 
the Board to conduct day-to-day operations effectively 
to attain broad strategic targets/goals after giving 
necessary consideration to market reality and changes 
in relevant variables. the Board upon approving the 
Strategic Plan of the Company in 2016 specified its 
corporate objectives and annual forecasted targets 
and expects to attain these aspirations through the 
CEO and Corporate Management team. Performance 
of the CEO is reviewed on an ongoing basis by 
the Chairman, evaluating the extent to which 
organisational objectives have been achieved from an 
overall perspective.

Appraisal of CEO A.11.2 CEO’s performance is formally appraised.

b. directors Remuneration

Remuneration 
Committee

B.1.1 In keeping to specific terms of reference, 
the Board has established a Remuneration 
Committee authorized to evaluate, assess, 
decide and recommend, to the Board, Executive 
Directors’ remuneration.

Remuneration 
Committee
composition

B.1.2 the Remuneration Committee composition 
and details of meetings held and participation 
status is given on page 178. the Report of the 
Remuneration Committee is given on page 91 of 
this Annual Report.

corporate governance Report Contd.



Kanrich Finance Ltd | Annual Report 2016/17 77

CEO’s Message
Business Profile

Management Discussion & Analysis
Capital Management Report

Corporate Governance Report
Committee Reports

Risk Management Report
Financial Statements

About this Report
Key Highlights for the year 

Company Overview
Board of Directors
Corporate Profile

Management Team
Chairman’s Message

the joint code of best 
practice issued by 
icasl and sec

companies (cooperate 
governance) direction 
no.03 of 2008

kFl extent of adoption

Remuneration of
Non-Executive 
Directors

B.1.3 the Board has authority for deciding of Non-
Executive Directors’ remuneration packages 
which is made as a collective decision. the Non-
Executive Directors are paid a fee for attending 
Board or other Committee meetings or carrying 
out other non-executive duties based on the 
responsibilities assigned

Remuneration
Committee’s access 
to CEO and
professional advice

B.1.4 Based on the Remuneration Committee 
composition, the advice of the Chairman
of the Company is already available since he 
chairs the Committee as well. When deciding on 
remuneration of other Executive Directors, the 
Committee also obtains advice from the CEO as 
necessary.

B.2 the level and 
make-up
of remuneration 
structure

B.2.1 the Board together with the Remuneration 
Committee aims to attract, retain and motivate 
high caliber individuals for top executive 
positions. As trust and relationships are vital 
in our business our broad policy is to identify 
those who are committed in either devoting 
their time towards the Board or making a 
lifelong career with the organisation.

CEO’s
Remuneration

B.2.2 Remuneration is determined through an 
assessment of performance made against both 
annual and long-term objectives.

Comparison of
remuneration with 
other institutions

B.2.3 KFL always benchmarks remuneration levels 
with competitors and remuneration levels will 
be maintained. However, KFL does not have a 
subsidiary company.

CEO’s performance-
related payments

B.2.4 Please refer Principle B.2 and Code B.2.1 above.

Executive share 
options

B.2.5 there was no executive share options scheme 
offered to any Director During 2016/2017 
period.
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the joint code of best 
practice issued by 
icasl and sec

companies (cooperate 
governance) direction 
no.03 of 2008

kFl extent of adoption

Deciding Executive
Director - 
Remuneration

B.2.6 Not applicable.

Early termination 
clauses
in service contracts of
Directors

B.2.7 Not applicable

Early terminations of
Directors

B.2.8 No terminations were effected during this 
period.

Level of 
remuneration of
Non-Executive 
Directors

B.2.9 the Non-Executive Directors are paid a fee for 
their services as mentioned in Code
B.1.4. No share options schemes were afforded 
to Non-Executive Directors during
2016/2017.

b.3 disclosure of Remuneration

Names of members 
in the Remuneration 
Committee and
remuneration paid to 
Directors

B.3.1 10(2)e Page 178 provides composition details of the 
Remuneration Committee with meetings held 
and participation status of members.

c Relations with shareholders

C.1 Constructive use
of Annual General
Meeting (AGM)

C.1 KFL Board is able to facilitate effective 
communication by holding the Annual General 
Meeting with shareholders. the Board always 
encouraged all shareholders to participate at 
the AGM and convey their views and make 
suggestions.

Level of proxies at 
AGMs

C.1.1 Proxy forms are made available in the Annual 
Report that is released with adequate prior 
notice to all shareholders in accordance with 
Companies Act.

Propose separate
resolutions for each 
separate issue

C.1.2 KFL has separate resolution for all significantly  
separate matters to provide shareholders an 
opportunity to deal with each material issue 
separately.
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the joint code of best 
practice issued by 
icasl and sec

companies (cooperate 
governance) direction 
no.03 of 2008

kFl extent of adoption

Availability of 
Chairmen of all 
Board subcommittees
at AGMs

C.1.3 Chairman of the Board ensures that Chairmen 
of all Board Sub committees namely, Audit 
Committee, Integrated Risk Management 
Committee, Nomination Committee, 
Remuneration Committee, Assets and Liabilities 
Management Committee and Credit Committee 
are present at the AGM to answer any questions 
coming under their purview.

Adequate notice of 
the AGM

Complying with the Companies Act, Annual 
Report including Financial Statements and the 
Notice of Meeting are sent to shareholders at 
least 21 working days prior to the date of the 
AGM by Company Secretaries division

Voting procedures at
General Meetings

Except for the AGM, there were no other 
general meetings held during the 2016/2017 
financial period.

c.2 communication with shareholders

Channel to reach all
shareholders of the 
Company

Communication policy of the Company financial 
information such as Annual Reports sends to 
shareholders soft copies and would be posted.
All shareholders are encouraged to attend the 
Annual General Meeting and extra ordinary 
meetings of shareholders.

Disclosure of the
shareholder 
Communication
Policy, Methodology 
and Implementation

C.2.2 & C.2.3
No policy was adopted in the year under 
review.

Disclosure of contact
person for 
shareholders

C.2.4 Main point of contact for shareholders is 
the Company’s Secretary who will act as the 
intermediary between shareholders and the Board.
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the joint code of best 
practice issued by 
icasl and sec

companies (cooperate 
governance) direction 
no.03 of 2008

kFl extent of adoption

Process to make 
aware of major issues 
and concerns of
shareholders

C.2.5 Chairman, CEO and General Managers 
are available to handle and inform the 
Board regarding issues and concerns of the 
shareholders.

Person to contact in
relation to 
Shareholders matters

C.2.6 Company Secretary is the main point of contact 
for shareholders’ to raise matters. According to the 
open door policy of the Company, shareholders are 
at the same time welcome to contact any Executive 
Director or members of the corporate management 
to obtain clarifications for their concerns.

Responding process 
of shareholder 
matters

C.2.7 Chairman, CEO and General Managers are 
responsible to convey shareholder enquiries to 
Board and revert back to shareholders

c.3 major transactions

Disclose material 
facts of major 
transactions

C.3 there were no major transactions during the 
period.

d. accountability and audit

Balanced and
understandable 
assessment
of the Company

D.1.1 10.1(a) and 10(2) & (b) In presenting a true and fair set of Financial 
Statements that provide a sound overview of 
KFL’s financial performance and position for 
the financial year ended 31st March 2017, the 
has Company complied with applicable Sri 
Lanka Accounting Standards (SLFRS) and other 
regulations specified in the Finance Business Act 
No. 42 of 2011,

Directors’ Report D.1.2 Company’s compliance to laws and regulations, 
confirms the going concern assumption and the 
effectiveness of Internal Control System that is 
in place.

Directors’ 
and Auditors’ 
responsibility 
statements

D.1.3 the Directors’ Responsibility for Financial 
Reporting given on page 112 provides a 
statement setting out the responsibilities of the 
Board for t he preparation and Presentation of 
the Financial Statements.

Management 
Discussion and 
Analysis

D.1.4 10(2) Please refer the page 34 to 68
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the joint code of best 
practice issued by 
icasl and sec

companies (cooperate 
governance) direction 
no.03 of 2008

kFl extent of adoption

Directors’ affirmation 
of going concern

D.1.5 the Directors Responsibility for Financial 
Reporting given on page 111

Calling of an AGM 
when net assets fall 
below 50% of
shareholders’ funds

D.1.6 Not Applicable.

Adequacy and 
accuracy of
related third party 
transaction
disclosures

D.1.7 KFL maintains the records of related party 
transactions. All Directors submit signed and 
dated declarations to Company Secretary on an 
annual basis.

the external auditor’s 
certification on the 
effectiveness of 
the internal control 
mechanism

10.2.c Compiled

the external auditors 
certification on 
the compliance 
with cooperate 
governance direction 
published in report 

10.2j Compiled

d.2 internal controls - maintaining a sound system of internal controls

Reviewing 
effectiveness
of Internal Control 
System

D.2.1 2(1) e Periodic review of adequacy and effectiveness of 
internal controls of the Company are carried out 
by Internal Auditors reviewed and followed up 
by the higher level Audit Committee.

the Board has established an effective system 
of internal controls to safeguard the assets of 
the Company. the system of internal controls in 
place has been designed to counter various risks 
that could either arise from dealing in financial 
transactions or from other events and changes in 
environment and business conditions
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the joint code of best 
practice issued by 
icasl and sec

companies (cooperate 
governance) direction 
no.03 of 2008

kFl extent of adoption

Internal Audit 
Function

D.2.2 Internal Audit Division, comprises well 
qualified and experienced officers’ to conduct 
independent audits, in areas involving high risk 
such as in branch level by aligning to the annual 
audit plan .

d.4 code of business conduct and ethics

Compliance to 
requirements on 
business conduct and 
ethics

D.4.1 During last year a formal document that 
incorporates aspects on employee conduct was 
issued to all employees through the HR Division.

Affirmation by 
Chairman that 
no individual has 
violated business 
conduct and ethical
requirements of the 
Company

D.4.2 the Chairman’s affirmation that he is not 
aware of any violations to requirements of the 
Company on specified business conduct and 
ethics

d.5 corporate governance disclosures

Disclosure on 
Corporate
Governance

D.5.1 Corporate Governance Report for 2016/2017 
provides a comprehensive disclosure on 
Company’s Corporate Governance Practices 
against recommended best practices and 
prevailing regulations.

section 2: shareholders
e. institutional investors

Constructive dialog
between shareholders 
and
Company

E.1.1 KFL has a history of active involvement of 
shareholders at general meetings. Shareholders 
have the liberty to express their views at  GMs, 
and to convey any matters even outside such 
meetings. under the supervision of the Chairman, 
Company Secretary’s division minutes discussions 
and views of all that is present at AGMs.

E.2 Evaluation
of Governance
Disclosures

E.2.1 As mentioned in Code E.1.1. above, views 
and other material matters of shareholders are 
subsequently taken up at Board meetings as 
necessary
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the joint code of best 
practice issued by 
icasl and sec

companies (cooperate 
governance) direction 
no.03 of 2008

kFl extent of adoption

Audit Committee to 
review process and 
effectiveness of
risk management and 
internal controls and 
to report to the
Board

D.2.3 Risk management framework including use of the 
risk and controls assessment process that provides 
business areas and functions with a forward 
looking view of key risks and an assessment of the 
effectiveness of controls, and a tracking mechanism 
for action plans so that they can pro-actively manage 
risks within acceptable levels. the composition of 
the Risk Management Committee Report is presented 
on page 88 of this Annual Report. As per the terms 
of Reference of the Committee adopted by the 
Board of Directors, the following functions are 
being performed by the Integrated Risk Management 
Committee:
(I) Assess all risks to the Company on a monthly 

basis through appropriate risk indicators and 
management information.

(II) Review the adequacy and effectiveness of 
all management level committees to address 
specific risks and to manage those risks within 
quantitative and qualitative risk limits as specified 
by the Committee.

(iii) take prompt corrective action to mitigate the 
effects of specific risks in case such risks are at 
levels beyond the prudent limits decided by the 
Committee on the basis of the Company’s policies 
and regulatory and supervisory requirements.

(iv) Meet at least quarterly to assess all aspects of 
risk management including updated business 
continuity plans and takes prompt corrective 
action to mitigate such effects.

(v) take appropriate actions against the officers 
responsible for failure to identify specific 
risks and take prompt corrective actions as 
recommended by the Committee, and/or as 
directed by the Director of the Department of 
Supervision of Non-Bank Financial Institutions of 
the Central Bank of Sri Lanka.

(vi) Submit a risk assessment report to the Board 
seeking the Board’s views, concurrence and/or 
specific directions.

(vii)the Committee shall establish a compliance function 
to assess the finance company’s compliance with 
laws,regulations, directions, rules, regulatory 
guidelines, internal controls and approved policies 
on all areas of business operations.
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the joint code of best 
practice issued by 
icasl and sec

companies (cooperate 
governance) direction 
no.03 of 2008

kFl extent of adoption

d.3 audit committee - a committee to review financial reporting aspects, internal controls and maintain 
relationship with company auditors

Audit Committee
composition

D.3.1 7.10.6.(a) the Audit Committee consists of three members 
of the Board. Out of the three all members are 
Independent and Non-Executive Directors. the 
other members of the Committee are also Non-
Executive Directors. the composition of the Audit 
Committee is presented on page 86 of this Annual 
Report.

Reviewing objectivity,
effectiveness and
independence of 
External Auditors

D.3.2 the Audit Committee in keeping to its terms of 
reference monitors the objectivity, effectiveness 
and independence of the External Auditor of the 
Company.

terms of Reference 
of the
Audit Committee

D.3.3 As set out in the terms of Reference of the
Audit Committee, all members are collectively
empowered to carry out the following tasks:
(i) Review the reliability and integrity of financial 

and operating information and the means 
used to identify, measure, classify and report 
such information.

(ii) Review the systems established to ensure 
compliance with those policies, plans, 
procedures, laws and regulations which 
could have a significant impact on 
operations and reports, and determine 
whether the organisation is in compliance.

(iii) Review the means of safeguarding, as 
appropriate, verify the existence of such 
assets.

(iv) Appraise the productivity, efficiency and 
effective utilization of resources by the 
management.

(v) Review operations or programs to ascertain 
whether results are consistent with 
established objectives and goals and whether 
the operations or programs are being carried 
out as planned.
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the joint code of best 
practice issued by 
icasl and sec

companies (cooperate 
governance) direction 
no.03 of 2008

kFl extent of adoption

(vi) Review whether the Company is exposed to 
operational risk by neglect, omission, human 
error, and or system fault, particularly at 
vital control points and whether the existing 
procedures and practices are effective in 
achieving efficiency in the day-to-day operations 
for the best advantage of Kanrich Finance Ltd.

Disclosures of the 
Audit
Committee

D.3.4 Please refer Section 8.2 (a) to 8.2 (q) in part 2 
of this supplement on pages 86 to 87 to obtain 
further information regarding the composition, 
objectives and duties of the Audit Committee. 
the names of Directors forming the Audit 
Committee and their participation level at 
meetings are disclosed on page 178.

F. Other Investors
F.1 Individual
Shareholders

F.1 Individual shareholders can seek independent 
advice on investing or divesting decisions.

F.2 Shareholder
Voting

F.2 All investors are encouraged to participate in 
general meetings of the Company .
Refer code C.1.5

principle sec & ca
sri lanka code 
Reference

compliance & 
implementation

status

g. sustainability Reporting

(92) the Environment G.1.2 Please refer pages 68. Complied

(93) Labour Practice G.1.3 Please refer pages 63. Complied

(94) Society G.1.4 Please refer pages 60. Complied

(95) Product & Service 
Responsibility

G.1.5 Please refer pages 74. Complied

(96) Stakeholder identification, 
engagement & effective 
communication

G.1.6 Please refer pages 56. Complied

(97) Sustainability G.1.7 Please refer pages 53. Complied
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composition oF the audit committee
the ‘Board Audit Committee’ appointed by and responsible to 
the Board of Directors of Kanrich Finance Limited comprises 
of three Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely, 
Mr. K.K.D. Ranawaka, Mr. P. A. Pematilaka and Mr. t.L.B. 
Hurulle. Each Member possesses wide ranging financial, 
commercial and management experience and brief profiles of 
the Members are given in the Directors’ Profile of this Annual 
Report.

the Company Secretary functions as the Secretary to the Audit 
Committee.

Functions oF the audit committee
Functions of the Board Audit Committee are to assist the 
Board of Directors in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities 
in the financial reporting process and audit of the financial 
statements by monitoring the integrity and reliability of the 
financial statements. the Committee oversees the effectiveness 
of the system of internal controls and risk management, 
independence and performance of the external auditors 
while checking on the compliance with relevant laws, and 
regulations with a view for safeguarding the interests of all 
stakeholders of the Company.

Role oF the audit committee
the Committee conducts its independent reviews by bringing 
a systematic and disciplined approach to evaluate and 
improve the effectiveness of controls, risk management and 
governance processes of the Company to:

 N  Ensure that financial reporting systems in place are 
comprehensive, effective and well-managed in order to 
provide relevant and timely information to the Board of 
Directors, Regulatory Authorities, the Management and 
other Stakeholders;

 N Review the appropriateness of accounting policies 
and ensure their adherence to statutory and regulatory 
compliance requirements and applicable Accounting 
Standards;

 N  Evaluate the existence, adequacy, efficiency and 
effectiveness the Internal Control system of the Company 
in place to avoid or mitigate the evolving risks;

RepoRt oF the boaRd audit committee

 N  Review Internal and External Audit Reports for follow up 
with the Management on the basis of their findings and 
recommendations; and

 N  Review the Annual Financial Statements of the Company 
in order to monitor the integrity and reliability of such 
statements.

meetings oF the audit committee
the Audit Committee meets monthly and had 12 meetings 
during the Financial Year. the Chief Executive Officer, 
Executive Director, General Managers, Head of Finance, 
Compliance Officer, Chief Internal Auditor and other senior 
executives attend the meetings of the Committee by invitation. 
the Chief Internal Auditor presents a summary of the main 
findings of all internal audits and investigations conducted 
by his department during the period. the responses from the 
Chief Executive Officer to those findings were reviewed and 
where necessary corrective action was recommended and 
their implementation monitored.

During the meetings, the Committee reviewed the adequacy 
and the effective implementation of internal control systems 
in place to safeguard the assets of the company, external 
audit reports for follow up with the management and the 
financial reporting systems and governance practices to ensure 
that the financial reporting system can be relied upon in the 
preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements. 
On the invitation of the Committee, External Auditors of the 
Company, M/s. KPMG, Chartered Accountants, attended a 
Committee meeting during the year.

inteRnal audit and inspection
the Committee makes its reviews to ensure that the Internal 
Audit Function has been independent of the operational 
management of the Company and it is performed diligently 
with due professional care. the Audit Committee also 
reviewed the adequacy of the coverage and the frequency 
of carrying out internal audits in approving the internal audit 
plan by the Committee. In order to fulfill its responsibility to 
monitor the effectiveness of the internal audit function, the 
Committee received regular reports from the Chief Internal 
Auditor during the year and reviewed those reports to ensure 
the independence, objectivity and performance of the internal 
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audit function and reviewed the findings of the internal audits 
for the evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control 
systems. It also assessed the internal audit department’s 
resource requirements, including its succession planning. the 
Committee reviewed audit reports covering various functions 
of the Company and followed up the implementation of the 
audit recommendations confirmed by the Committee.

Risk management and inteRnal contRol
Keeping in mind that the existence of an adequate risk 
management process would facilitate to have a proactive 
approach to risk management, from risk identification to 
risk mitigation at all levels of the Company, the Committee 
reviewed the risk management framework of the Company for 
its adequacy and completeness in identifying, assessing, and 
quantifying the risks affecting the Company.

It also considered the Internal Audit reports to ascertain the 
effectiveness of the internal controls, significant deviations 
that involves the employees of the Company and took actions 
to strengthen the internal controls where necessary. the 
Committee also played an oversight role by reviewing the 
reported situations and highlighted some weaknesses in the 
internal control systems that could expose the Company to 
operational risk and possible fraud risk.

statutoRy and RegulatoRy compliance
the Committee also reviewed the procedures established 
by the Management for compliance with the statutory and 
regulatory requirements of the Central Bank of Sri Lanka and 
due compliance with all other requirements.

exteRnal audit
Prior to the commencement of the annual audit by the 
external auditors of the Company, M/s. KPMG, Sri Lanka, the 
Committee discussed with them with regard to their audit 
plan, audit approach and matters relating to the scope of the 
annual audit. the Audit Committee also undertakes the annual 
evaluation of the independence and objectivity of the External 
Auditors and the effectiveness of the audit process.

conclusion
Based on the reviews of the reports presented by the 
external and internal auditors, the information obtained 
by the Committee and having examined the adequacy 
and effectiveness of the internal controls which have been 
designed to provide a reasonable assurance to Directors that 
the control environment prevailing in the company provides a 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of the financial 
reporting of the Company and safeguarding the assets of the 
Company, the Audit Committee is satisfied that the financial 
position of the Company is regularly monitored and steps 
are being taken continuously to improve the controls, risk 
management and governance environment in which the 
Company operates.

k. k. d. Ranawaka
Chairman of the Board Audit Committee

06th June 2017
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the Board appointed Integrated Risk Management Committee was established in terms of the Finance Companies (Corporate 
Governance) Direction No. 03 of 2008 issued by the Monetary Board of the Central Bank of Sri Lanka under the Finance 
Business Act No. 42 of 2011.

the Board Integrated Risk Management Committee, comprised of the following Members, at the end of the financial year.

Mr. P A Pematilaka Chairman Chairman / Director*

Mr. Shiran Weerasinghe Member Executive Director / CEO

Mr. Aloka Wahalawatta Member General Manager - Operations

Mr. Sadeepa Ratnayake Member General Manager - Investment

Mr. Eranda Godage Member General Manager - Marketing

Mr. Ravi Joshep Member Assistant General Manager - It

Mr. Thushara Member Assistant General Manager - Credit

Mr. Harshadeva Abayajeewa Member Chief Manager Finance

Mr. V Banduwansa Member Acting Compliance Officer
*Independent Non-Executive Director

boaRd integRated Risk management committee

the Board Integrated Risk Management Committee (BIRMC) 
assess all risks in terms of credit, market, liquidity, operational 
and strategic risks to the Company almost on monthly basis 
through the appropriate risk indicators and management 
information, in order to take prompt and appropriate action 
to mitigate the effects of such specific risks and manage those 
risks within tolerable quantitative and qualitative risk limits. 
And also to establish a compliance function to assess the 
Company level compliance, with laws, regulatory directions 
and guidelines in all areas of business operations.

activities peRFoRmed duRing 2016 / 2017
BIRMC held seven Meetings during the year under review 
and the attendance of Committee Members at meetings held 
is stated on page 116. the Committee assessed all key risks 
such as Credit, Operational, Market, Liquidity etc., which are 
tracked on a monthly basis through a set of risk indicators. In 
order to discharge the above duties and responsibilities, the 
Committee carried out the following activities;

 N  Monitored the actions initiated by Senior Management, to 
test the adequacy and effectiveness of the measures taken 
by the respective Committees referred to above;

 N  Reviewed the annual work plans, related strategies, 
policies and frameworks of the above Committees, to 
ensure that these Committees have a good understanding 
of their mandates and adequate mechanisms to identify, 
measure, avoid, mitigate, transfer or manage risks within 
the qualitative and quantitative parameters set by the 
BIRMC;

 N  Reviewed periodically the compliance function, risks 
associated with the information system reporting 
requirements and the disaster recovery plan;

 N  Evaluation of risk associated with the real estate stock and 
made appropriate recommendations to reduce the stock 
on a gradual basis;

 N  Followed up on the implementation status on proposed 
strategies related to the business operations;

 N  Reviewed the Business Continuity Plan and the Disaster 
Recovery Plan; and
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 N  Reviewed the effectiveness of the compliance function to 
assess the Company’s compliance with laws, regulations, 
regulatory guidelines and corrective actions were taken 
where necessary.

During the year, based on the aforementioned activities 
performed, BIRMC submitted quarterly returns to the Board 
of Directors on risk-related matters, seeking the Board views, 
concurrence and specific directions.

mr. p. a. pematilaka
Chairman

Board Integrated Risk Management Policy

06th June 2017
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composition oF the committee
the Board Nomination Committee, BNC, comprised of the 
following Independent

Non-Executive Directors of the Company.

Mr. P. A. Pematilaka Chairman of the Committee
Mr. R. S. Goonethilake  Member
Mr. K. K. D. Ranawaka  Member

the Board Nomination Committee operates in pursuant to 
the Board Nomination Committee Charter approved by the 
Board of Directors. the objective of the Committee is to 
lead the process of selection of the most suitable candidate 
or candidates for appointing to the Board and to make 
recommendations to the Board for its consideration, after 
taking into account the plans for succession for both executive 
and non-executive Directors, whilst maintaining the balance 
of skills and experience on the Board and its Committees, and 
also to make recommendations for appointing Chief Executive 
Officer and Officer / Officers performing executive functions.

chaRteR oF the committee
the mandate of the Committee includes inter alia the 
following:

 N  to implement a procedure to elect / appoint new 
Directors, Chief Executive Officer and Officers performing 
executive functions as defined in the Finance Companies 
(Assessment of Fitness and Propriety of Directors and 
Officers Performing Executive Functions) Direction No. 03 
of 2011.

 N  to consider and make recommendation to re-elect current 
Directors, after taking into account the performance and 
contribution made by them towards the overall discharge 
of the Board’s responsibilities.

 N  to set the criteria such as qualifications, experience and 
key attributes required to gain eligibility, to be considered 
for an appointment or promotion to the post of Chief 
Executive Officer and Officer/ Officers performing 
executive functions.

 N  to ensure that Directors, Chief Executive Officer and 
Officer / Officers performing executive functions are 
fit and proper persons to hold office, as per the criteria 
set out in the said Direction No. 3 of 2011 issued by the 
Central Bank of Sri Lanka and relevant statutes.

 N  to consider and recommend, from time to time, the 
requirements of additional / new expertise and the 
succession arrangements for retiring Directors and Officer/ 
Officers performing executive functions.

 N  to make recommendations on any other relevant matter/s 
referred to the Committee, by the Board of Directors.

During the year under review, the Committee met on 2nd 
September, 2016 and 10th January, 2017, to select and make 
recommendations to the Board of Directors for appointing 
the Head of Human Resources, and new Independent Non-
Executive Director, Mr. t.L.B. Hurulle, respectively.

mr. p. a. pematilaka
Chairman

06th June 2017

boaRd nomination committee RepoRt
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boaRd RemuneRation committee 
RepoRt

the Board Remuneration Committee (BRC) comprised of the 
following three Independent Non-Executive Directors of the 
Company.

Mr. P. A. Pematilaka Chairman of the Committee
Mr. R. S. Goonethilake  Member
Mr. K. K. D. Ranawaka  Member

the Remuneration Committee operates in pursuant to the 
guidelines set out in the Remuneration Committee Charter 
approved by the Board of Directors. the Charter sets out 
the role of the Committee, its objectives, membership, and 
the remuneration framework to be considered in making its 
recommendations to the Board of Directors.

the objective of the Committee is to assist the Board by 
making suitable recommendations, for fulfilling its corporate 
governance responsibilities with regard to the remuneration 
matters including the following:

a.  the remuneration framework to be applicable for Non-
Executive Directors.

b.  the remuneration and incentive framework applicable for 
the Chief Executive Officer / Executive Director / Directors 
and officers performing executive functions.

c.  Make recommendations on the remuneration and all-
inclusive packages to be offered for the Chief Executive 
Officer / Executive Director / Directors and officers 
performing executive functions.

During the year under review, the Committee met on 
2nd September, 2016; and 10th January, 2017, to select 
and make recommendations to the Board of Directors on 
the remuneration packages to be offered and paid to the 
new Head of Human Resources, and new Non-Executive 
Independent Director Mr. t. L. B. Hurulle, respectively.

mr. p. a. pematilaka
Chairman

06th June 2017
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Risk management function is a vital component in the financial industry, particularly given 
the rising complexity and rapid changes in regulations, technology, operations and economic 
environment. A proper risk management mechanism that has been linked to strategic objectives 
therefore provides a roadmap for the management of specific risks in line with the Company’s 
risk appetite.

1. Risk management objectives
 N  Recognize and understanding emerging risks in relation to strategic objectives.
 N  Determine risk appetite levels
 N  Identify risk tolerance levels in line with the strategic objectives of the company
 N  Ensure that business operations and decision making are shaped by the risk appetite 

framework.
 N  Facilitate effective decision making
 N  Strengthen the risk management culture at various decision making levels

2. enterprise Risk management (eRm)
As far as Kanrich Finance Limited (KFL) is Concerned, ERM is an on-going process that 
provides a consistent frame of reference by which risks are identified, described, measured, 
mitigated and reported. this process originates at board level and cascades down to all levels 
including senior management. A dedicated ERM team facilitates proper implementation through 
their expertise, commitment of time, resources, training and support to ensure ERM objectives 
are met.

the Board of directors holds the ultimate responsibility for managing risk and the board is 
supported by Integrated Risk Management Committee (IRMC), which deliberated on risk 
related matters. Risk is monitored and managed at departmental and business unit level and 
is overseen by the CEO. Moreover, the risk and compliance department coordinates with risk 
management function to in providing expertise to departments and units while the internal 
audit department conducts regular audits to gauge the effectiveness of the risk management 
process. these reports are presented to Board audit committee and reviewed by the board of 
directors.
 

Risk management 



Kanrich Finance Ltd | Annual Report 2016/17 93

CEO’s Message
Business Profile

Management Discussion & Analysis
Capital Management Report

Corporate Governance Report
Committee Reports

Risk Management Report
Financial Statements

About this Report
Key Highlights for the year 

Company Overview
Board of Directors
Corporate Profile

Management Team
Chairman’s Message

Risk management oveRsight stRuctuRe oF kanRich Finance limited
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the main elements of KFL’s risk governance structure is as 
follows

 N  the board of directors remains the ultimate authority 
responsible for Risk Management within the Company. 
the role of the Board includes; understanding and 
prioritizing risks, approving risk management policies for 
critical risk s and determining suitable risk responses for 
specific risk profiles. In conducting its Risk Management 
duties, the Board is assisted by the Company’s key 
Assurance units (Refer below). 

 N  ceo is ultimately responsible for setting ERM priorities, 
strategies and policies, and is responsible for aligning 
objectives, strategies and risk appetite, eliminating gaps 
and overlaps in the risk management responsibilities and 
authorities, and resolving significant internal conflicts.

 N  IRMC (Integrated Risk Management Committee) 
coordinates decision-making, evaluates risk measurement 
methodologies and develops enterprises enterprise 
wide and risk policies. the IRMC is also responsible for 
evaluating the effectiveness of the infrastructure in place 
for managing specific risk and ensure that necessary 
improvement and made to close any gaps. the IRMC 
assembles once a month.

key objectives Represented by chaired by
Implementation 
of risk 
management 
strategies
Close monitoring 
of risk events of 
the company

 N Non-executive 
Independent 
Chairman

 N Chief executive 
Officer

 N General Manager 
Marketing

 N General Manager 
Investments

 N General Manager 
Operations

 N Head of Finance
 N Head of Credit
 N Head of Information 

technology
 N Risk & Compliance 

Officer

Non-Executive 
Independent 
Deputy 
Chairman

 N  Risk and Compliance officer (RCO) is a member of the 
IRMC and reports to IRMC. An important link of the 
entire ERM process, the RCO oversees the business risk 
management function and has authority for managing 
selected risk on enterprises wide. the RCO also facilitates 
the integration of risk assessment and management into 
the day-to-day strategic and business planning process of 
the organisation.

 N  Business units (Zones) are lines of operations of 
organisation with specific objectives, strategies, Markets, 
customer and products. As part of the ERM process, all 
business units are expected to;

1. Align their risk priorities, tolerance levels and strategies  
 with Company-wide policies.
2. target business and product development activities to  
 create new sources of value consistent with the Company’s  
 overall risk appetite.
3. Identify, source and measure risk
4. Benchmark processes and share best practices with the  
 objectives of continuously improving measures and  
 processes.
5. Assign risk management responsibilities and accountability  
 to key managers.
6. Report of overall quality of risk Responses control activities 
 and information and communication as applied to specific  
 risk.

 N  Supporting units consist of activities such as Human 
Resources, Information system function , Finance function, 
administration function, Corporate Communication and 
Research and development functions. Supporting units 
work closely with business units and risk units to manage 
risk that are relevant to specialized skill sets.

 N  Assurance units comprise of the risk management 
compliance department and internal audit department. 
they perform periodic or continuous reviews to provide 
IRMC and board on the effectiveness and efficiency of 
risk management processes that critical processes and 
established policies.

Risk management Contd.
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Risk identiFication pRocess
KFL identify risk events through risk indicators, process analysis 
and data tracking etc. to determine the impact that certain risk 
aspects may have on strategic and business objectives.

Risks are first assessed, considering likelihood and impact of 
such, as a basis for determining how they should be managed. 
Further risks are assessed on an inherent and residual basis.

Risk tolerance levels are derived from the risk appetite of the 
Company. Compliance with risk tolerance levels are strictly 
monitored by the IRMC and reported on monthly basis to the 
board. Further risk constraints are imposed on departments 
and operational units based on overall risk tolerance limits.

In determining risk appetite and tolerance limits, the company 
maintains a two-fold approach which considers risks within 
it’s control and beyond it’s control. the risks that are outside 
the control of the company are;

 N  Macro-Economic Risk
 N  Regulatory and Legal Risk 

the following risks are within the control of KFL and the risk 
appetite framework has been set in such way to cover; 

1. Credit Risk
2. Market Risk
3. Liquidity Risk
4. Compliance Risk
5. Operational Risk
6. Strategic Risk
7. Reputational Risk

the current risk appetite of KFL can be defined in terms of 
following motives;

 N  Improve asset quality
 N  Compliance, internal controls and good governance
 N  Maintain an optimum level of profitability while reducing 

overheads
 N  Refine product mix to ensure greater diversification
 N  Optimize funding mix

Certain risk tolerance ranges of KFL would be as follows 

Risk 
category

Risk indicator tolerance 
limits

Credit risk NPL Ratio 6%

Provision Cover Above 70%

Impairment Charge ratio 2% - 4%

Single Borrower Limit 50 Mn

Market Risk 
(Interest Rate 
Risk)

Net Interest Margin Above 25%

Liquidity Risk Liquid Assets Ratio Above 100%

CBSL Liquidity 
requirement

As per CBSL

Maturity mismatches 
(below one year)

Below 5% of 
total Financial 
Assets

Compliance 
Risk

Capital Adequacy ratio As per CBSL

Strategic Risk Return on Equity Above 35%

Return on Assets Above 5%

Earnings Per share Above 5/-

Capital Adequacy As per CBSL

Operational 
Risk

Cost to Income Ratio Below 60%

Staff turnover Below 20%

Value of  Frauds 
and Cash robberies 
committed during the 
year as a percentage of  
Operational expenses

Below 0.5%

Number of system 
break-downs

Zero
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Risk management Contd.

Risk management pRocess

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

t
io

n
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
su

l
t

a
t

io
n

Set the Context

Risk assessment

Risk Identification

Risk Analysis

Risk Evaluation

Risk treatment

establish the context
 N Define the scope of enquiry/ objectives requires analysis
 N Identify relevant stakeholders/ areas involved or impacted
 N Internal and external environment factors

Risk identiFication
 N What could happen?
 N How and where it could happened?
 N Why it could  happened?

Risk analysis
 N Identify the causes, Contributing factors and actual or 

potential consequences
 N Identify existing or current controls
 N Assess the likelihood & impact/ consequence to determine 

the risk rating

Risk evaluation
 N Is the risk acceptable or unacceptable?
 N Does the risk need treatment or further action?
 N Do the Opportunities outweigh the threats?

Risk tReatment
 N If existing controls are inadequate identify further 

treatment
 N Devise a treatment plan
 N Seek endorsement & support for treatment
 N Determine the residual risk rating once the risk is treated

communication and consultation
 N Ensure those responsible for managing risk, and those 

with vested interests, understand the basis on which 
decisions are made, why particular treatment options are 
selected or why risk are accepted/ tolerated at all stages of 
the process.

monitoRing and Review
 N Continually review
 N Effectiveness of risk controls and/ or treatments
 N Changes in context or circumstances, and 
 N Document & report this activity accordingly
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managing Risks
credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of loss resulting from a counter party 
being unable to meet its contractual obligations to the Company 
in respect of loans or other financial transactions. this risk 
comprises default risk, recovery risk, exposure risk, concentration 
risk and settlement risk. At the portfolio level, credit risk is 
assessed in relation to the degree of name, sector and geographic 
concentration with a view to setting of appropriate risk mitigation 
and transfer mechanisms and to assess risk capital requirements. 
the manner in which the company’s exposure to credit risk 
arises, its policies and processes for managing it and the methods 
used to measure and monitor it are set out below.

Credit risk arises from loans and advances to customers. It 
comprises both drawn exposures and exposures the Company 
has committed to extend.

credit concentration Risk
Credit concentration risk is the risk of loss due to exposure 
to a single entity, or group of entities, engaged in similar 
activities and having similar economic characteristics that 
would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be 
similarly affected by changes in economic or other conditions. 
undue

Concentrations could lead to increased or unexpected 
volatility in the company’s earnings. the company imposes 
control limits and complies with CBSL directions regarding 
borrowing limits to mitigate significant concentration risk.

the company decided to lower the maximum lending 
exposure for any single borrower up to Rs. 50 Mn though 
statutory single borrower limit, a new threshold introduced 
during the year under review in order to manage the credit 
concentration risk. Further the company has restricted lending 
on certain industries negatively impacted by macro-economic 
variables and as a consequence, the company may encounter 
a default risk.

to broad-base the composition of secured lending portfolio, 
Gold Loans and pawning were introduced during the year, 
while the exposure to micro lending was reduced to 50% from 
59% in the previous year.

 

 

 

 

 
 

product mix 2016/17

Personal Loans against FD  

& Pro Note 3%

Corporate term Loans 0%

Staff Loans 1%

Welada Warama 3%

Lease and Hire Purchase 17%

Micro Loans 49%

Ran Sihina Loans 0%

Real Estate Loans 1%

Mortgage Loans 7%

Business Loans 7%

Consumer Loans 8%

Personal Loans 2%

Gold Loans 2%

product mix 2015/16

Personal Loans against FD  

& Pro Note 2%

Corporate term Loans 0%

Staff Loans 0%

Welada Warama 6%

Lease and Hire Purchase 16%

Micro Loans 59%

Ran Sihina Loans 0%

Real Estate Loans 1%

Mortgage Loans 3%

Business Loans 9%

Consumer Loans 3%

Personal Loans 1%

Gold Loans 0%
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credit evaluation process
As depicted below, the credit evaluation process takes place at head office level, branch level and Zone level as well. 
Authorisation limits for the credit approval process have been assigned according to the levels of the hierarchy.

credit committee
KFL has an active credit committee, which convenes frequently to evaluate credit facilities granted and review credit policies. 
the committee consists of the Chief Executive Officer, General Manager-Operations, General Manager-Marketing, General 
Manager-Investments, Head of Finance and Head of Credit.

One of main objectives of the Credit Committee is to improve the credit quality and reduce NPL’s. Steps taken in this regard, 
included regular “credit evaluation” training programs conducted throughout the year, to improve credit knowledge of staff 
at branch level. to further improve credit quality, it was decided to fully automate credit evaluation process fully and related 
developments are now in progress, while a new file indexing methodology was also introduced to improve the quality of 
documentation of credit facilities. A comprehensive credit manual is currently being developed to bring greater clarity with regard 
to the credit evaluation process, including clear guidelines for carrying out Customer due diligence for larger facilities. In the year 

Risk management Contd.

marketing officers

Branch Managers Zone HeadsProduct Heads

Head of Credit

General Managers

CEO

Credit Committee

Board of Directors

head office level branch level Zone level
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under review, the credit department has taken initiative to 
develop comprehensive internal credit rating methodology, 
which would facilitate evaluation of customers on regular basis.

credit disbursement process
the centralised credit department, with the assistance of 
the legal department ensures that all the relevant security 
documents are up-to-date. thereafter the finance department 
has been entrusted with the task of making all disbursements 
in order to minimise disbursement related risks.

monitoring of credit portfolio
the monitoring of the credit portfolio takes place at various 
levels. the head of credit evaluates the credit portfolio at 
the overall level with a greater focus on potential flags. At 
the same time, Product heads closely monitor their product 
portfolios and identify negative signals. And finally the IRMC 
reviews the credit portfolio against the risk tolerance limits.

Recovery process
Several recovery units (Product specific and general) have 
been formed at the central level to deal with recoveries. these 
units work along with the respective affected branches to sort 
out recovery related problems. Normally the affected branch 
or product department is expected to handle recovery matters 
themselves. In case they are confronted with any difficulty, 
such matters are referred to recovery units for further 
attention. If recovery efforts are not successful, the matter is 
referred to the legal department as a last resort in order to 
initiate legal action for recovery as the last resort.

During the year under review, the company took number 
of steps to strengthen and restructure the recovery process. 
A new rescheduling program was introduced specifically 
for the Welada Warama and Micro loans segments. under 
the program customers who could not meet repayment 
requirements as they have undergone financial difficulties due 
to negative economic conditions prevailing in the country, 
were offered concessionary repayment schemes in line with 
their repaying Capacity. this has been successful during the 
year under review. Further company paid more attention 
to improve recovery ratio and more resources allocated for 
recovery purpose during last quarter.

Steps have been taken during the year under review to set up 
a call center to initiate continuous action that would improve 
the efficiency of the recovery process. A comprehensive 
recovery process manual is also being developed to streamline 
the recovery process further.

impairment process
In determining provisioning for impairment as at the reporting 
date, the company considers possible objective evidence that 
would trigger impairment losses of the credit portfolio such as

 N  Financial difficulties of customers
 N  Higher number of instalments in arrears
 N  Possibility of going bankrupt
 N  Loss of active Market or negative economic impacts

Individual Impairment
the company makes provisions for impairment by taking into 
account significant loan accommodation individually, and if 
objective evidence of probable default events as mentioned 
above exist.

Collective Impairment
the provision for collective impairment is determined by 
taking into account both portfolio factors as well as external 
environmental factors. Portfolio factors relate to negative 
signals emanating from the borrowers with regard to recovery 
patterns. External environmental factors relate to possible 
economic, political or geographical factors that affect the 
recovery patterns of the borrowers . .

Portfolio factors
 N  Aging of the portfolio
 N  Collateral value in comparison with portfolio value
 N  Loss given default ratio of the portfolio

External Environmental factors
 N  Interest rates
 N  Inflation rate
 N  unemployment rate
 N  Change in disposable income of borrowers
 N  Changes in tax structure
 N  Industry related matters such as changes in prices of a 

crop that affects the disposable income of the borrower
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 N  Change in government policies such as encouraging or 
discouraging certain industries

the Company Performs the impairment analysis on regular 
basis and individually impaired accommodations are further 
analyzed in such a way grouping them as materially impaired 
and materially not impaired. Materially impaired contracts are 
further examined in line with industry conditions, economic 
conditions etc. these facts are communicated to recovery 
units also so that those can be considered in implementing 
their recovery plan.

Sensitivity between Impairment charge on Profitability

Despite the increasing trend of the impairments at the 
beginning of the year, the company has managed to reverse 
this trend to some extent during the last quarter of the year, 
thanks to the recovery plan that was implemented during the 
year.

liQuidity Risk
Liquidity risk is that risk that the Company experiences while 
encountering difficulties in financing its assets and meeting its 
contractual payment obligations when due, or is only able to 
do so at a cost substantially above the prevailing market cost 
of funds.

Liquidity risks can arise from imbalances in cash inflows 
and outflows. Cash inflows are driven by the maturity 
structure of loans disbursed by the Company and outflows 
(from withdrawals of deposits and lending disbursements). 
Liquidity risk can increase due to the unexpected extending of 
maturities, non-repayment of assets or sudden withdrawal of 
deposits.

Funding risk that Company faces when it does not have 
sufficiently stable and diverse sources of funding or has an 
inefficient funding structure.

 
 

concentration on Funding 2015/16

Due to banks and Financial 

Institutions 4%

Deposit Due to customers 10%

Debt Instruments Issued and 

Other Borrowed Funds 86%

Risk management Contd.
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risks. Further, deposit concentration risk and sensitivity 
between maturity gap and deposit renewal rate and collection 
efficiency ratio are also reviewed at ALCO to foresee related 
risks.

During the year, the company took initiatives to lower 
the deposit concentration risk and shift on to intuitional 
borrowings instead of public borrowings. Further 
arrangements were negotiated with banks as part of the 
contingency funding arrangements.

the company made structural changes during the year with 
the intention of managing the liquidity risk whereby the 
deposit portfolio was subdivided into four zones, with Zone 
heads entrusted with responsibility to manage the borrowing 
portfolio vis-à-vis lending portfolio.

the company has been able to manage the deposit renewal 
ratio beyond 75% and as a consequence, a healthy level of 
liquid assets was maintained right throughout the financial 
year.

In order to Maintain liquidity, the company has invested in 
lending products with short-term maturities (more than 65% 
of the lending portfolio consists micro loans, Welada Warama, 
Gold loan and business loans and repayment periods of such 
are less than one year).

 

 
 

the company maintains an adequate reserve of liquid assets 
in line with CBSL requirements, which are monitored by 
the finance department on a daily basis. the forecasted 
cash flows and maturity analysis are submitted to ALCO and 
IRMC on a monthly basis in order to foresee liquidity related 
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maturity gap 31.03.2016
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exposures to large borrowers 2016/17

Large Borrowers 10%

Other Borrowers 90%

exposures to large borrowers 2015/16

Large Borrowers 8%

Other Borrowers 92%

maRket Risk
interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk refers to the risk that occurs when there is a 
change in future levels of income and expenses or fair value 
of assets and liabilities of the statement of financial position 
due to the volatility of interest rates.

the company’s Asset-liability Committee (ALCO) is tasked 
with reviewing changes in the yield curve and deposit rate of 
competitor firms on regular basis, in order to map possible 
interest rate related risks.

trends in tB rates
 

Risk management Contd.
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sensitivity of interest Rate on profitability
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the ALCO also monitors the Lending Weighted Average Cost 
of Capital (WACC), Borrowing WACC and net interest margins 
on regular basis and also monitors regulatory compliance 
regulations with regard to deposit rates.

commodity price Risk
Commodity price risk refers to the uncertainties of future 
market values or future income, as a consequence of 
fluctuations in the prices of commodities. For example, the 
fluctuations in gold prices in local and global context affects 
the recoverability of Gold Loans as such loans are backed 
with gold articles.

the ALCO reviews the maximum exposure limits for Gold 
Loans once every two-weeks, with due consideration of the 
prevailing gold prices in local and global context to minimise 
credit related losses. On the other hand, Gold Loans product 
has been designed with short term maturities to avoid adverse 
impacts of commodity prices in the long run.

compliance Risk
the company operates in a highly regulated industry and non-
compliance with any of these regulations could result in the 
imposing of caps, sanctions and/or penalties, besides damage 
to the company’s reputation. ultimately such non-compliance 
could affect the business operations, financial position and 
strategic objectives of the company adversely.

All the departments are equally responsible for compliance 
with applicable rules and regulations stipulated by the Central 
Bank, Finance Business Act, Company Act, tax laws and other 
regulations. the compliance officer continuously monitors 

all the compliance aspects of the company and changes 
in regulatory environment and reports thereon to board of 
directors and IRMC on regular basis.

the company has taken steps during the year to develop a 
more comprehensive compliance framework and allocate 
more resources in order to strengthen the risk and compliance 
function.

operational Risk
Operational risks arise due to inadequate and inappropriate 
internal processes, systems and people or from external 
events. Operational risk can be correlated with other risks 
such as credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and compliance 
risk and arise when these risks are not managed in a precise 
and timely manner.

A mechanism is in place to monitor, identify, evaluate, treat 
and report operational risk events pertaining to processes, 
systems, people and external events. A bottom- up approach 
is used while implementing this monitoring mechanism. 
In assessing operational risk, KFL monitors the following 
operational risk indicators.

People
Staff turnover ratio
Number of  frauds committed 
by employees
Number of disciplinary 
actions taken against 
employees

Systems
Number of system break 
downs reported
Number of system errors 
reported

Processes
Repeated process 
weaknesses reported by 
internal audit
Percentage of unsatisfactory 
credit files returned by HO to 
branches

External Events
Number of Cash robberies 
that occur 

the Company considers it’s employees as its major strength, 
for it is the knowledge, experience and commitment of KFL’s 
employees that drives the success of the organisation. KFL has 
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a mechanism to retain those who demonstrate high level of 
skills. While it has been observed that staff turnover at entry 
level is higher than tolerance limits, at the middle level , the 
turnover has been lower.

KFL has various incentive schemes in place to reward 
employees. the achievement of targets are kept in mind 
while evaluating the employee’s performance with a view 
to awarding incentives and promotions. the company also 
offers valuable training opportunities to it’s employees in 
order to develop and enhance job related skills. the company 
has ensured work place safety and health care of the staff 
by providing them with an insurance cover in the event of 
hospitalization as well as reimbursement of OPD claims. In 
addition to the above, KFL also provides financial assistance 
at concessionary rates in improving the quality of their lives. 
the company currently continues the process of automating 
many manual and semi-manual processes in order to reduce 
employee stress. the top management of KFL always adopts 
an “open door” policy in handling employee grievances.

the risk of fraud by the staff arises as a consequence of 
weaknesses in the internal control systems and lack of 
integrity of the staff. the internal audit department frequently 
monitors the controls in place and report to the board audit 
committee on weaknesses of the control systems, supported 
by ongoing efforts to rectify and strengthen the internal 
control systems. the human resources department conducts a 
comprehensive reference checks to ensures the recruitment of 
right people with high levels of integrity.

the company has obtained a fidelity guarantee policy, which 
covers all the employees against frauds. Further internal audit 
carry out surprise checks on routine basis and on adherence 
to procedures etc in order to minimise the risk of employee 
fraud.

the internal audit department periodically reviews the 
effectiveness and efficiency of processes and their design 
and reports to the Board audit committee which then takes 
action to rectify or improve controls and processes should 
they be found to be deficient in any manner. At the same time 

continuous staff training sessions are carried out among the 
employees regarding processes and procedures with a view 
to increasing staff awareness of the processes and improving 
their efficiency levels.

the company is currently developing comprehensive product 
and functional manuals with a view to provide very clear 
guidelines for functions and ensure a proper segregation of 
duties.

the Company has obtained insurances covers against the 
risk of fire and burglary to ensure the safety of it’s property, 
equipment and money utilised in the course of daily business 
processes. KFL has now commissioned CCtV surveillance 
system across a majority of its fully-fledged branch network to 
ensure the safety of it’s property, equipment and money.

KFL has an internal tender board committee comprising of the 
General Manager-Investments, Head of Finance and the head of 
Administration. the committee is empowered to take decisions 
regarding procurement of items thereby mitigating the risks 
related to the procurement processes as collective decisions 
are made. the committee takes procurement decisions after a 
careful evaluation of multiple supplier bids so that maximum 
benefit would flow into company. During the year under 
review, the company took initiative to register those suppliers 
who supply items on recurring manner and the quality of 
suppliers and prices are evaluated on regular basis.

Information technology plays an important role in the context 
business operations resulting in a greater degree of It risk, 
prompting the company initiate steps to mitigate such risks. 
the company has an adequate level of general controls and 
access controls over the system, which ensure continuance, 
confidentiality, and integrity of data. the company has a 
password mechanism, which avoids unauthorized access to 
data and unauthorized modification to data. the user rights 
of the system are assigned according to a predetermined 
structure, which considers the designation and level of 
authority requires for each user and reviews of user rights are 
carried out on regular basis.

Risk management Contd.
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the service and maintenance agreements with vendors with 
regard to hardware items have been signed and renewed on 
timely manner to ensure proper functioning of hardware items

the It department conducts post reviews on system 
modifications and get the feedback of respective departments 
to ensure that anticipated objectives has been achieved

Access to the server room has been restricted and the 
temperature continuously monitored. An appropriate firewall 
mechanism is in place to avoid possible hacking.

the Company maintains a daily off-site back-up in order to 
ensure the continuance of business operations in case of any 
disaster. Further the company maintains a disaster recovery 
site in a remote location so that business operations can 
continue without interruptions in the event of unexpected 
events. Data is automatically encrypted when it is transmitted 
to branches and vise versa.

the It department organizes training sessions among user 
staff frequently to raise their awareness on the existing system 
facilities and newly developed facilities and how to use the 
system in a manner which minimise possible system errors 
and damage data integrity.

the Internal audit department carries out frequent system 
audits and reports to the board audit committee which takes 
precautionary action when needed.

the frequency of cash robberies has become low in compare 
to previous year. In order to mitigate risks of cash robberies, 
the company increased the insurance cover during the year 
under review. Further the company adopted the practice 
of depositing collections in the banks immediately from 
collection points instead of bringing the collection to micro 
centers in order to minimise the cash related risk. Further 
steps taken to get the assistance of cash transporters to bank 
cash for more branches whose collections are significantly 
high to avoid risk of cash robberies.

strategic Risk
Strategic risk can be defined as a possible source of loss that 
arises as a consequence of poor business plans. It could be due 
to poor decision making, inadequate resource allocation or failure 
to respond to changes prevailing in the business environment.

KFL is managed by an experienced and well educated set of 
board members from different disciplines. the Board of KFL 
consists of two Chartered Accountants, a Lawyer and two 
engineers. All the board decision are taken collectively after 
in-depth analysis in various perspectives and the expertise and 
experience of all the board members are made to use.

the company prepares a three- year corporate plan and 
accordingly people and resources are directed towards these 
strategic objectives. Necessary amendments are made to the 
corporate plan in a timely manner as a response to changes in 
the prevailing business environment. the board of directors 
reviews the performance of the company against the corporate 
plan and deviations are reviewed on regular basis and actions 
are taken to rectify if any malfunctions exist. .

the corporate research division carries out an internal and 
external environmental analysis in a timely manner and 
provides information to the corporate management with regard 
to prevailing marketing conditions, threats from rivals and 
strengths, weaknesses and core-competencies of the company 
which facilitates effective decision making. Further they conduct 
research on various internal and external matters, which have 
an impact on strategic objectives and come-up with findings 
and recommendations to board so that the negative impact 
of such would be minimised. Further the finance department 
provide timely information with regard to the direction of the 
company and market information enhancing the board of 
directors to make their decisions effectively.

In order to minimise the risk of capital funds, the budgetary 
controls have been linked with anticipated levels of capital 
adequacy. In other words, investing and other activities are 
planned considering the capital adequacy. Further statutory 
requirement of capital adequacy is closely monitored and 
maintained.
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Reputational Risk
Reputational risk arises as a result of events and behaviours, 
which send negative signals to general public about the 
company. Approach of the company to manage reputational 
risk has been managing all other risks properly as reputational 
risk is correlated with all other risks. the company takes 
customer complains very seriously and formal channels have 
been made to get customer feedback about the company.

the company strategy was rely on “publicity” rather than 
“advertising” during the year under review and to action 
the strategy, company formed a separate unit to undertake 
CSR activities with the intention of raising the awareness 
of the general public about the company. Further sufficient 
budgetary allocations are also made for CSR activities.

Research and Development department also engage in surveys 
and researches with regard to customer tastes, expectations 
and satisfactions in order to minimise reputational risk

Risk management Contd.



Kanrich Finance Ltd | Annual Report 2016/17 107

Financial Reports



Kanrich Finance Ltd | Annual Report 2016/17108

Financial content 

the Annual Report of the Board of Directors on the Affairs of the Company 109
Directors’ Responsibility for Financial Reporting 111
Directors’ Statement on Internal Controls 112
Independent Auditors’ Report 113
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income 114
Statement of Financial Position 115
Statement of Changes in Equity 116
Statement of Cash Flows 117
Notes to the Financial Statements 119
Five Year Summary 177
Attendances of Board Meeting/ ACM/ BRIMC 178
Share Holders Analysis 179
Notice of Meeting 180
Corporate Information 181
Notes 182
From of Proxy 183



Kanrich Finance Ltd | Annual Report 2016/17 109

CEO’s Message
Business Profile

Management Discussion & Analysis
Capital Management Report

Corporate Governance Report
Committee Reports

Risk Management Report
Financial Statements

About this Report
Key Highlights for the year 

Company Overview
Board of Directors
Corporate Profile

Management Team
Chairman’s Message

the Board of Directors of Kanrich Finance Limited has 
pleasure in presenting their Report on the affairs of the 
Company together with the Summary of the Financial 
Statements for the year ended 31st March 2017. the Financial 
Statements have been prepared in accordance with Sri Lanka 
Accounting Standards.

legal status
Incorporated as a Limited Liability Company on October, 27, 
1971 under Chapter 145 of the Company Ordinance No.51 of 
1938 and a Licensed Finance Company with the Central Bank 
of Sri Lanka under the Finance Business Act, No.42 of 2011 
and re-registered under the Companies Act No.07 of 2007 and 
changed its name as Kanrich Finance Limited on 06th October, 
2010.

pRincipal activities
the Company accepts deposits from the public and engages 
in Leasing, Hire Purchase, Loans, Microfinance Loans and Real 
Estate.

Financial statements
the Summary of the Financial Statements of the Company is 
attached herewith.

independent auditoR’s RepoRt
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements is 
attached.

tuRnoveR
the turnover of the Company was Rs. 3,532,575,677/- as 
compared with a turnover of Rs. 4,396,400,737/- during 
previous Financial Year.

accounting polices
the accounting policies adopted in the preparation of 
Financial Statements are given in the Financial Statements. 
there were no significant changes in the Accounting Policies 
adopted during the Year ended 31.03.2017.

stated capital
the Stated Capital of the Company as per the Audited 
Accounts as at 31st March 2017 was Rs. 672,993,044/-.

diRectoRate
the names of the Directors of the Company who served 
during the year are given below.

Mr. P. A. Pematilaka
Dr. K. M. S. B. Rekogama
Mr. D. S. I. Weerasinghe
Mr. K. K. D. Ranawaka
Mr. t. L. B. Hurulle ( Appointed w.e.f. 16.01.2017)
Mrs. R. S. Goonetilleke (Retirement w.e.f. 16.01.2017)

executive diRectoRs
Mr. D. S. I. Weerasinghe
Dr. K. M. S. B. Rekogama

non-executive / independent diRectoRs
Mr. P. A. Pematilaka
Mr. K. K. D. Ranawaka
t.L.B. Hurulle

the RemuneRation and otheR beneFits oF the 
diRectoRs
Directors’ remuneration and other emoluments in respect 
of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2017 was 
Rs. 32,211,119/- as compared with the remuneration of Rs. 
29,171,855/- during previous Financial Year.

coRpoRate goveRnance
the Board has taken necessary measures to ensure proper 
systems and procedures are in place within the Company by 
adopting sound Corporate Governance practice.

auditoRs
the Financial Statements for the year has been audited by 
Messrs. KPMG is deemed to have been re-appointed as 
auditors in terms of the Section 158 of the Companies Act, 
No.7 of 2007.

the annual RepoRt oF the boaRd  
oF diRectoRs on the aFFaiRs oF  
the company
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the Auditors, Messrs. KPMG was paid Rs. 1,656,000/- as audit 
fees by the Company.

As far as the Directors are aware, the Auditors do not have 
any relationships (other than that of an auditor) with the 
Company other than those disclosed above. the Auditors also 
do not have any interests in the Company.

Signed on behalf of the Board
kanrich Finance limited
 

Director 

Director

chart business systems (pvt) ltd
Secretaries

06th June 2017

the annual Report of the board of directors on the affairs of the company Contd.
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diRectoRs’ Responsibility FoR  
Financial RepoRting

the following statement sets out the responsibilities of 
the Board of Directors in relation to the preparation and 
presentation of the Financial Statement of the Company. these 
responsibilities differ from those of the Auditors, which are set 
out in their Report appearing on page No 101 of this Annual 
Report.

the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 and the Finance 
Companies Act, No. 78 of 1988, requires that the Directors 
are required to prepare financial statements for each financial 
year, giving a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
company as at the end of the financial year and the profit or 
loss of the Company for the financial year.

the Board of Directors is responsible for ensuring that the 
Company maintains adequate accounting records, which 
are sufficient enough to prepare financial statements that 
disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the 
Company. Further the Directors have the responsibility for the 
general supervision, control and administration of the affairs 
and business of the Company.

the overall responsibility for the Company’s internal control 
systems lies with the Board of Directors. Whilst recognizing 
the fact that there is no single system of internal control 
that could provide absolute assurance against material 
misstatements and fraud, the Directors confirm that the 
prevalent internal control systems are so designed that, 
there is reasonable assurance that the assets are safeguarded 
and transactions properly authorized and recorded so that 
materials misstatements are irregularities are either prevented 
or detected within a reasonable period of time. the Finance 
Committee under the guidance of the Management to monitor 
the effectiveness of the system of internal controls and 
recommends modifications where necessary.

the Directors are responsible to ensure that the Financial 
Statements presented in the Annual Report give a true and fair 
view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 
2017 and the profit /loss for the year then ended.

the Directors confirm that the financial statements have 
been prepared and presented in accordance with Sri Lanka 
Accounting Standards and that they provide the information as 
required by the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007.

the Directors confirm that suitable accounting policies have 
been use and applied consistently and that all applicable 
accounting standards have been followed in the preparation 
of the Financial Statements. Furthermore, reasonable and 
prudent judgments and estimates have been made in the 
preparation of these Financial Statements.

Directors confirm that to the best of their knowledge all taxes, 
statutory dues and levies payable by the Company as at the 
Balance Sheets date have been paid for or where relevant 
provided for.

By order of the Board,

secretaries
Chart Business Systems (Private) Limited

06th June 2017
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Responsibility
In line with the section 10(2)(b) of the Finance Companies 
Direction No 03 of 2008 as amended by the direction No 06 
of 2013, the board of directors present this report on internal 
controls over Financial Reporting.

the Board Directors is responsible for the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the internal control mechanism in place at 
Kanrich Finance Limited (“Company”)

the Board has established an on going process for identifying, 
evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the 
company and this process includes the system of internal 
controls over Financial Reporting. the process is regularly 
reviewed by the Board.

the Board is on the view that the systems of internal control 
over financial reporting in place is sound and adequate to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 
financial reporting, and that the preparation of Financial 
statements for external purposes is in accordance with 
relevant accounting principals and regulatory requirements.

the management assists the board of directors in the 
implementation of Board’s policies and procedures pertaining 
to internal controls over Financial Reporting. the management 
is continuously in the process of enhancing the documentation 
of the system of internal controls over Financial Reporting. In 
assessing the internal control system over financial reporting, 
identified officers of the company collated all procedures over 
and controls that are connected with significant accounts and 
disclosures of the Financial Statements of the Company. these 
in turn are being checked by Internal Audit Department of 
the company for suitability of design and effectiveness on an 
on-going basis.

the processes and procedures initially applied to adopt Sri 
Lanka Accounting standards comprising LKAS and SLFRS 
were further strengthened during the year based on the 
feedback received from the Board audit committee, Internal 
Audit Department, External Auditors and the regulators. the 
company is in the process of further upgrading the relevant 
processes embedding all requirements into existing processes 

to comply with requirements of recognition, measurement, 
classification and disclosures required under Sri Lanka 
Accounting Standards, based on the recommendations made 
by internal and external auditors.

conFiRmation
Based on above processes, the board confirms that the 
financial reporting system of the company has been designed 
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements 
for external purposes and has been done in accordance with 
Sri Lanka Accounting Standards and regulatory requirements 
of the Central Bank of Sri Lanka.

Review oF the statement by exteRnal auditoRs
the external auditors have submitted a certification on the 
process adopted by the directors on systems of internal 
controls over financial reporting. the matters highlighted by 
external auditors in this regard are being looked into

mr. k. k. d. Ranawaka
Chairman-Board Audit Committee

mr. p. a. pematilaka
Chairman

06th June 2017

diRectoRs’ statement on inteRnal contRols
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independent auditoRs’ RepoRt

to the shaReholdeRs oF kanRich Finance limited
Report on the Financial statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kanrich 
Finance Limited, (“the Company”), which comprise the statement of 
financial position as at 31 March 2017, and the statements of profit or 
loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and, cash 
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information.

board’s Responsibility for the Financial statements
the Board of Directors (“Board”) is responsible for the 
preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair 
view in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, and for 
such internal control as Board determines is necessary to enable 
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards. those standards 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. the 
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 
entity’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair 
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 

the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by Board, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of 
the financial position of the Company as at 31 March 2017, and of 
its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.

Report on other legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by section 163 (2) of the Companies Act No. 07 of 
2007, we state the following:

a) the basis of opinion and scope and limitations of the audit 
are as stated above.

b) In our opinion we have obtained all the information and 
explanations that were required for the audit and, as far as 
appears from our examination, proper accounting records 
have been kept by the Company and the financial statements 
of the Company, comply with the requirements of section 151 
of the Companies Act.

chartered accountants

Colombo
06 June 2017
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statement oF pRoFit oR loss and otheR compRehensive income

For the year ended 31 march,    2017 2016

   notes Rs. Rs.

gross income   4 3,532,463,427 4,396,400,738

Interest Income   4.1 3,411,322,995 4,252,396,976

Interest Expenses   4.2 (1,006,711,604) (1,059,511,331)

net interest income    2,404,611,391 3,192,885,645

Fee and Commission Income   5 45,488,897 117,157,349

Net Income from Real Estate Sales   7 74,482,260 26,440,892

Fair Value Loss from Investment Properties   21 - (3,994,959)

Net Other Operating Income   6 1,169,275 405,521

total operating income    2,525,751,823 3,332,894,448

Net Impairment Charge for Loans and Other Losses   8 (227,855,481) (507,774,827)

Loans and Receivables Write Off    (69,903,591) -

net operating income    2,227,992,751 2,825,119,621

operating expenses

Personnel Expenses   9 (670,897,877) (600,443,430)

Depreciation and Amortization    (70,103,724) (38,487,144)

Other Operating Expenses   10 (864,615,551) (926,824,899)

operating profit before value added tax (vat) & nation building  

 tax (nbt) on Financial services   11 622,375,599 1,259,364,148

VAt and NBt on Financial Services    (150,833,250) (223,472,436)

profit before tax    471,542,349 1,035,891,712

Income tax Expense   30 (160,110,350) (387,828,379)

profit for the year    311,431,999 648,063,333

other comprehensive income/(expense)

items that are or may be Reclassified to profit or loss 

Net change in Fair Value of Available for Sale Financial Assets   18.1 7,212,831 (9,534,393)

items that will never be Reclassified to profit or loss

Actuarial Gain/(Loss) arising on Employee Benefits   32 (8,488,178) (4,838,829)

tax Effect on Other Comprehensive Income   29.1 2,376,690 1,354,872

other comprehensive income/(expense) for the year, net of tax   1,101,343 (13,018,350)

total Comprehensive Income for the Year    312,533,342 635,044,983

earnings per share

Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share (Rs.)   12 4.01 8.34

the notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.
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statement oF Financial position

as at 31 march,    2017 2016
   note Rs. Rs.

assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents   14 182,029,574 398,997,332
Placement with Banks & Other Financial Institutions   15 866,665,646 803,388,882
Loans and Receivables   16 7,562,970,762 8,036,898,305
Lease Rental and Hire Purchase Receivables   17 1,675,933,302 1,668,695,075
Financial Investments - Available for Sale   18 28,615,012 43,519,700
Other Financial Assets   19 163,695,242 79,813,352
Real Estate Stock   20 537,501,697 536,521,700
Investment Properties   21 70,921,000 70,921,000
Other Non Financial Assets   22 142,556,021 108,590,453
Intangible Assets   23 27,454,133 31,694,263
Property, Plant & Equipment   24 212,398,507 168,554,458
Deferred tax Assets   29 63,156,481 108,071,396
total assets    11,533,897,377 12,055,665,916

liabilities
Due to Banks & Financial Institutions   25 944,573,983 406,862,758
Deposits Due to Customers   26 954,162,177 948,716,811
Debt Instruments Issued and Other Borrowed Funds   27 7,170,277,824 8,197,352,445
Other Financial Liabilities   28 48,565,949 64,499,015
Current tax Liabilities    159,919,579 361,630,675
Other Liabilities   31 411,062,438 503,695,790
Employee Benefits   32 51,476,163 23,327,932
Micro Insurance Reserve Fund   33 537,393 -
total liabilities    9,740,575,506 10,506,085,426

eQuity
Stated Capital   34 672,993,044 672,993,044
Reserves   35 47,280,851 24,496,420
Retained Earnings    1,073,047,976 852,091,026
total equity    1,793,321,871 1,549,580,490
total liabilities and equity    11,533,897,377 12,055,665,916
net assets per share (Rs.)    23.08 19.94

the notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.

certification
I certify that these financial statements are prepared and presented in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007.

a. k. h. h. abayajeewa
Head of Finance

the Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements.
Approved and signed for and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

p. a. pematilaka s. i. weerasinghe

Chairman Director/Chief Executive Officer

Colombo.
06th June 2017
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 stated  statutory general available investment Retained total

 capital Reserve Reserve  for sale Fund earnings equity

  Fund  Reserve Reserve

 Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

balance as at 01 april 2015 672,993,044 1,347,646 280,000 - 39,935,482 205,247,286 919,803,458

total comprehensive income for the year 

Profit for the Year - - - - - 648,063,333 648,063,333

other comprehensive income

Net change in Fair Value of Available for Sale  

 Financial Assets - - - (9,534,393) - - (9,534,393)

Actuarial Gain/(Loss) arising on Employee Benefits - - - - - (4,838,829) (4,838,829)

tax Effect on Other Comprehensive Income - - - - - 1,354,872 1,354,872

total comprehensive income for the year - - - (9,534,393) - 644,579,376 635,044,983

transactions with equity holders of the company 

transfers to Micro Insurance Reserve Fund - - - - - (5,267,951) (5,267,951)

Re-transfer from Investment Fund Reserve - - - - (39,935,482) 39,935,482 -

transfers to Statutory Reserve Fund - 32,403,167 - - - (32,403,167) -

balance as at 31 march 2016 672,993,044 33,750,813 280,000 (9,534,393) - 852,091,026 1,549,580,490

balance as at 01 april 2016 672,993,044 33,750,813 280,000 (9,534,393) - 852,091,026 1,549,580,490

total comprehensive income for the year 

Profit for the Year - - - - - 311,431,999 311,431,999

other comprehensive income

Net change in Fair Value of Available for Sale  

 Financial Assets - - - 7,212,831 - - 7,212,831

Actuarial Gain/(Loss) arising on Employee Benefits - - - - - (8,488,178) (8,488,178)

tax Effect on Other Comprehensive Income - - - - - 2,376,690 2,376,690

total comprehensive income for the year - - - 7,212,831 - 305,320,511 312,533,342

transactions with equity holders of the company 

transfers to Statutory Reserve Fund - 15,571,600 - - - (15,571,600) -

Dividend Paid - - - - - (68,791,961) (68,791,961)

balance as at 31 march 2017 672,993,044 49,322,413 280,000 (2,321,562) - 1,073,047,976 1,793,321,871

the notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.

statement oF changes in eQuity
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statement oF cash Flows

For the year ended 31 march,    2017 2016

    Rs. Rs.

cash Flow from operating activities

Profit before tax    471,542,349 1,035,891,712

Adjustments for;

Depreciation and Amortizations    70,103,724 38,487,143

Net Impairment Charge for Loans and Other Losses    227,855,481 507,774,826

Write-off - Loans and Receivables    69,903,591 -

Provision for Defined Benefit Plans    19,660,052 7,641,509

Loss on Disposal of Property & Equipment    - 209,823

Fair value Loss on investment Property    - 3,994,959

Provision for Available For Sale investment    - 768,280

Provision for Investment Properties    - 742,578

Provision for Real Estate Stock    - 18,271,276

Provision for Placement with Banks & Other Financial Institutions   - 4,707,489

Dividend Income    (27,495) (25,380)

operating profit before working capital changes    859,037,702 1,618,464,215

changes in,

Real Estate Stock    (979,997) (352,327,885)

Loans and Advances    214,257,908 868,518,506

Lease Rental & Hire Purchase Receivables    (51,554,680) (1,611,558,479)

Other Financial Assets    (83,881,890) 23,079,936

Non-financial Assets    (33,965,568) 14,955,906

Amounts Due to Customers    5,445,366 (674,345,844)

Debt Instruments Issued and Other Borrowed Funds    (1,027,074,621) 941,585,173

Other Financial Liabilities    (15,933,067) 14,011,775

Other Liabilities    (77,153,853) 429,092,572

Micro Insurance Reserve Fund    537,393 (10,222,063)

cash generated (used in)/From operations    (211,265,307) 1,261,253,814

Retirement Benefit Liabilities Paid    - (62,500)

taxes Paid    (323,782,315) (320,651,201)

net cash flows generated from/(used in) operating activities   (535,047,623) 940,540,114

cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment    (103,797,894) (127,983,459)

Acquisition of Intangible Assets    (5,909,753) (3,993,456)

Proceeds from Sales of Property, Plant and Equipment    - 12,643,096

Net investment in financial instruments- Available for Sale    22,117,519 (53,049,393)

Net withdrawals in financial instruments- Held to Maturity    - 121,589,821

Net withdrawals of Placement with Banks & Other Financial Institutions   109,009,868 121,569,234

Net acquisition in Placement  with Banks & Other Financial Institutions   - (226,301,789)

Net acquisition in Repurchase Agreements and Reverse Repurchase Agreements   (172,286,632) (203,213,632)

Dividend Received    27,495 25,380

net cash flows used in investing activities    (150,839,397) (358,714,198)
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statement of cash Flows Contd.

For the year ended 31 march,    2017 2016

    Rs. Rs.

cash flows from / (used in) Financing activities 
Payment under Finance Lease Obtained    (8,521,952) (18,323,609)
Leases Obtained during the Year    - 26,853,970
Loans Obtained during the Year    822,509,255 245,675,000
Loans Repaid during the Year    (203,849,645) (725,936,064)
Dividend Paid    (68,791,961) -
net cash flows generated from/(used in) Financing activities   541,345,698 (471,730,703)

net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents   (144,541,324) 110,095,213

cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year   232,078,309 121,983,096
cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year    87,536,985 232,078,309
 
cash and cash equivalents For the purpose of cash Flow statement 
Cash and Bank Balances    182,029,574 398,997,332
Bank Overdrafts    (94,492,589) (166,919,023)
total Cash and Cash Equivalents For the Purpose of Cash Flow Statement   87,536,985 232,078,309

the notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.
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2.2. Responsibility for Financial statements
the Board of Directors of the company is responsible for the 
preparation and presentation of these Financial Statements as 
per the provisions of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 and 
SLFRSs and LKASs.

the Board of Directors acknowledges their responsibility 
for Financial Statements by Certification on the Statement of 
Financial Position.

these Financial Statements include the following components:

 N  Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive 
Income providing the information on the financial 
performance of the Company for the year under review.

 N  a Statement of Financial Position providing the information 
on the financial position of the Company as at the year-
end.

 N  a Statement of Changes in Equity depicting all changes in 
shareholders’ funds during the year under review of the 
Company.

 N  a Statement of Cash Flows providing the information to the 
users, on the ability of the Company to generate cash and 
cash equivalents and utilization of those cash flows.

 N  Notes to the Financial Statements comprising Accounting 
Policies and other explanatory information.

2.3  approval of Financial statements by the board of 
directors

the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 
31 March 2017 were approved and authorised for issue by 
the Board of Directors in accordance with Resolution of the 
Directors on 06 June 2017.

2.4. basis of measurement
the Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical 
cost basis and applied consistently with no adjustments being 
made for inflationary factors affecting the Financial Statements, 
except for the following,

 N Available-for-Sale Financial Assets are measured at Fair 
Value

1.  RepoRting entity
1.1.  corporate information
Kanrich Finance Limited (“Company”), regulated under the 
Finance Business Act No. 42 of 2011, was incorporated on 27 
October 1971 as a Limited Liability Company domiciled in Sri 
Lanka under the provisions of the Companies Act No. 17 of 
1982 and re-registered under the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007.

the registered office of the Company is located at 69, Ward 
Place, Colombo 07 and the principal place of business is 
situated at the same place.

the Staff strength of the Company as at 31 Match 2017 was 
1519 (1746 as at 31 March 2016).

1.2. principal business activities and nature of 
operations

the principal business activities of the Company are granting 
micro loans, welada warama loans, finance leases, hire 
purchase, real estate business, assets financing, granting of 
mortgage loans, Business loans, mobilisation of deposits and 
other credit facilities.

there were no significant changes in the nature of the 
principal business activities of the company during the 
financial year under review.

1.3. parent entity and ultimate parent entity
In the opinion of Directors, the Company’s immediate and 
ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party is Mutual 
Holdings Limited, which is incorporated in Sri Lanka.

2. basis oF pRepaRation
2.1. statement of compliance
the Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared 
and presented in accordance with the Sri Lanka Accounting 
Standards (SLFRSs and LKASs) laid down by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and in compliance with 
the requirements of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 and 
the Finance Business Act No. 42 of 2011 and amendments 
thereto. these Financial Statements, except for information on 
cash flows have been prepared following the accrual basis of 
accounting.

notes to the Financial statements
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 N Liability for Defined Benefit Obligation carried at present 
value of Defined Benefit Obligations, calculated using 
projected unit credit method.

 N  Investment Property measured at fair value.

2.5. Functional and presentation currency
the Financial Statements are presented in the Sri Lankan 
rupees being, the functional and presentation currency unless 
indicated otherwise.

there was no change in the Company’s Presentation and 
Functional Currency during the year under review.

2.6 presentation of Financial statements
the assets and liabilities of the Company presented in the 
Statements of Financial Position are grouped by nature and 
listed in an order that reflects their relative liquidity and 
maturity pattern.

2.7. materiality and aggregation
Each material class of similar items is presented separately 
in the Financial Statements. Items of dissimilar nature or 
function are presented separately unless they are immaterial 
as permitted by the Sri Lanka Accounting Standard - LKAS 01 - 
“Presentation of Financial Statements”.

2.8. going concern basis for accounting
the Management has made an assessment of its ability to 
continue as a going concern and is satisfied that it has the 
resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. 
Furthermore, the Management is not aware of any material 
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. therefore, 
the Financial Statements of the Company continue to be 
prepared on a going concern basis.

2.9 offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the 
net amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position, 
only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the 
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on 
a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities 
simultaneously.

Income and expenses are not offset in the Income Statement, 
unless required or permitted by an Accounting Standard or 
Interpretation (issued by the International Financial Reporting 
Interpretations Committee and Standard Interpretation 
Committee) and as specifically disclosed in the Accounting 
Policies of the Company.

2.10 Rounding
the amounts in the Financial Statements have been rounded 
off to the nearest Rupee, except where otherwise indicated as 
permitted by the Sri Lanka Accounting Standard – LKAS 01 - 
“Presentation of Financial Statements”.

2.11 comparative information
Comparative information is disclosed in respect of the 
previous period in the Financial Statements in order to 
enhance the understanding of the current period’s Financial 
Statements and to enhance the inter period comparability. 
the presentation and classification of the Financial Statements 
of the previous year are amended, where relevant for better 
presentation and to be comparable with those of the current 
year.

2.12 events after the Reporting date
Events after the reporting date are those events, favorable and 
unfavorable, that occur between the Reporting date and the 
date when the Financial Statements are authorised for issue.

In this regard, all material and important events that occurred 
after the Reporting Period have been considered and 
appropriate disclosures are made in the Financial Statements 
where necessary.

2.13 use of Judgments and estimates
In preparing the Financial Statements of the Company in 
conformity with SLFRSs and LKASs the management has 
make judgments, estimates and assumptions which affect the 
application of Accounting Policies and the reported amounts 
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results 
may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

notes to the Financial statements Contd.
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the most significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and 
critical judgments in applying Accounting Policies that have 
most significant effect on amounts recognised in the Financial 
Statements of the Company are as follows:

2.13.1 Fair Value of Financial Instruments
the determination of fair values of financial assets and 
financial liabilities recorded on the Statement of Financial 
Position, for which there is no observable market price are 
determined using a variety of valuation techniques. the 
inputs to these models are derived from observable market 
data where possible, but if this is not available, judgment is 
required to establish their fair values.

the Company measures fair value using the fair value 
hierarchy that reflects the significance of input used in making 
measurements.

2.13.2 Impairment Losses on Loans and Receivables
the Company reviews its individually significant loans and 
receivables at each reporting date to assess whether an 
impairment loss should be provided in the Income Statement. 
In particular, management’s judgment is required in the 
estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows 
when determining the impairment loss.

these estimates are based on assumptions about a number of 
factors and hence actual results may differ, resulting in future 
changes to the provision made.

the individual impairment provision applies to financial 
assets evaluated individually for impairment and is based on 
Management’s best estimate of the present value of the future 
cash flows that are expected to be received. In estimating 
these cash flows, Management makes judgments about a 
borrower’s financial situation and the net realizable value of 
any underlying collateral. Each impaired asset is assessed on 
its merits, and the workout strategy and estimate of cash flows 
considered recoverable.

Loans and receivables that have been assessed individually 
and found to be not impaired and all individually insignificant 
loans and receivables are assessed collectively, in groups of 

assets with similar risk characteristics, to determine whether 
provision should be made based on incurred loss events for 
which there is objective evidence, but the effects of which are 
not yet evident.

the collective assessment takes account of data from the 
loan portfolio (such as loan type, levels of arrears etc.), 
and judgments on the effect of concentrations of risks and 
economic data (including levels of unemployment, inflation, 
interest rates).

the accuracy of the provision depends on the model 
assumptions and parameters used in determining the collective 
provision.

2.13.3 Impairment Losses on Available for Sale Investments
the Company reviews the equity investments & debt securities 
classified as available-for-sale investments at each Reporting 
date to assess whether they are impaired. this requires similar 
judgments as applied on the individual assessment of loans 
and advances.

the Company records impairment charges on available for 
sale equity investments & debt securities when there has 
been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value 
below their cost. the determination of what is ‘significant’ 
or ‘prolonged’ requires judgment. In making this judgment, 
the Company evaluates, among other factors, historical price 
movements and duration and extent to which the fair value of 
an investment is less than its cost.

2.13.4. Impairment Losses on Non Financial Assets
the Company assesses whether there are any indicators of 
impairment for an asset or a cash-generating unit (CGu) at 
each Reporting date or more frequently, if events or changes 
in circumstances necessitate to doing so. this requires the 
estimation of the ‘Value in use’ of such individual assets or 
the CGus. Estimating ‘Value in use’ requires management to 
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the 
asset or the CGu and also to select a suitable discount rate in 
order to calculate the present value of the relevant cash flows. 
this valuation requires the Company to make estimates about 
expected future cash flows and discount rates, and hence, 
they are subject to uncertainty.
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2.13.5. Defined Benefit Obligation
the cost of the defined benefit pension plan is determined 
using an actuarial valuation. the actuarial valuation involves 
making various assumptions determining the discount rates, 
future salary increases, mortality rates etc. Due to the long 
term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject to 
significant uncertainty. All assumptions are reviewed at each 
reporting date.

In determining the appropriate discount rate, management 
considers the interest rates of Sri Lanka Government bonds 
with extrapolated maturities corresponding to the expected 
duration of the defined benefit obligation.

the mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality 
tables. Future salary increases are based on expected future 
inflation rates and expected future salary increase rate of the 
Company.

2.13.6. Deferred tax Assets
Deferred tax assets are recognised in respect of loan 
impairment allowances which will be recovered in the 
foreseeable future and tax losses to the extent it is probable 
that future taxable profits will be available against which 
such losses can be set off. Judgment is required to determine 
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, 
based on the likely timing and level of future taxable profits, 
together with the future tax planning strategies.

2.13.7 useful Life time of Property, Plant & Equipment
the Company reviews the residual values, useful lives and 
methods of depreciation of Property, Plant & Equipment 
at each Reporting date. Judgment of the Management is 
exercised in the estimation of these values, rates, methods and 
hence they are subject to uncertainty.

2.13.8 Fair Value of Investment Property
the Company determines the fair value of investment 
property at each reporting date. Judgment of the Management 
is exercised in the estimation of these values, rates, methods 
and hence they are subject to uncertainty.

3. summaRy oF signiFicant accounting policies
the accounting policies set out below have been applied 
consistently to all periods presented in the Financial 
Statements of the Company, unless otherwise indicated.

3.1. Financial instruments – initial Recognition, 
classification and subsequent measurement

3.1.1. Date of Recognition
the Company initially recognizes micro loans, Lease and Hire 
Purchase receivables, other loans and advances, deposits 
and debt securities issued on the date on which they are 
originated. All other financial instruments (including regular 
way purchases and sales of financial assets) are recognised 
on the trade date, which is the date on which the Company 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument.

3.1.2. Initial Measurement of Financial Instruments
the classification of financial instruments at initial recognition 
depends on their purpose and characteristics and the 
management’s intention in acquiring them.

All financial instruments are initially measured at their fair 
value plus transaction costs, that are directly attributable to 
acquisition or issue of such financial instruments except in 
the case of financial assets and financial liabilities as per 
the Sri Lanka Accounting Standard – LKAS 39 on “ Financial 
Instruments : Recognition and Measurement” recorded at fair 
value through profit or loss.

transaction cost in relation to financial assets and financial 
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are dealt with 
through the Income Statement.

3.1.2.1 “Day 1” Profit or Loss
When the transaction price differs from the fair value of other 
observable current market transactions in the same instrument, 
or based on a valuation technique whose variables include 
only data from observable markets, the Company recognises 
the difference between the transaction price and fair value (a 
'Day 1' profit or loss) in 'Interest Income and Interest Expenses'. 
In cases where fair value is determined using data which is 
not observable, the difference between the transaction price 

notes to the Financial statements Contd.
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and model value is only recognised in the profit or Loss 
when the inputs become observable, or when the instrument 
is derecognised. the 'Day 1 loss' arising in the case of loans 
granted to employees at concessionary rates under uniformly 
applicable schemes is deferred and amortised using Effective 
Interest Rates (EIR) over the remaining service period of the 
employees or tenure of the loan whichever is shorter.

3.1.3. Classification and Subsequent Measurement of Financial 
Assets

Company classifies financial assets into one of the following 
categories:

 N Financial Assets at Fair value through Profit or Loss,  
and within this category as :

 N Held for trading ; or
 N Designated at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

 N Loans and Receivables;
 N Held-to-Maturity;
 N Available for Sale

the subsequent measurement of the financial assets depends 
on their classification.

3.1.3.1. Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include 
financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated 
upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss 
which are discussed below.

3.1.3.1.1. Financial Assets Held for Trading
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are 
acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing 
in the near term or they hold as a part of a portfolio that is 
managed together for short-term Profit or position taking.

Financial assets held for trading are recorded in the Statement 
of Financial Position at fair value. Changes in fair value are 
recognised in profit or loss. Interest and dividend income are 
recorded in interest Income and Net Gains/ (Losses) from 
trading respectively in the income statement according to 
the terms of the contract, or when the right to receive the 
payment has been established.

the Company evaluates its financial assets held for trading, 
to determine whether the intention to sell them in the near 
term is still appropriate. When the Company is unable to 
trade these financial assets due to inactive markets and 
management’s intention to sell them in the foreseeable 
future significantly changes, the Company may elect to 
reclassify these financial assets in rare circumstances. During 
the reporting financial year Company has not classified any 
financial asset as asset held for trading.

3.1.3.1.2. Financial Assets Designated at Fair Value through  
  Profit or Loss

the Company designates financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss in the following circumstances:

 N the assets are managed, evaluated and reported internally 
at fair value; or

 N the designation eliminates or significantly reduces an 
accounting mismatch, which would otherwise have arisen; 
or

 N the asset contains an embedded derivative that 
significantly modifies the cash flows which would have 
been required under the contract.

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or 
loss are recorded in the Statement of Financial Position at 
fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded in ‘Net gain or 
loss on financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value 
through profit or loss’. Interest earned is accrued in ‘Interest 
Income’, using the EIR, while dividend income is recorded 
in ‘other operating income’ when the right to receive the 
payment has been established.

the Company has not designated any financial assets upon 
initial recognitionas at fair value through profit or loss.

3.1.3.2. Loans and Receivables
‘Loans and receivables’ comprised of non derivative financial 
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not 
quoted in an active market, other than:

 N those that the Company intends to sell immediately or in 
the near term and those that the Company, upon initial 
recognition, designates as at fair value through profit or loss
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 N those that the Company, upon initial recognition, 
designates as available for sale

 N those for which the Company may not recover 
substantially all of its initial investment, other than because 
of credit deterioration

‘Loans and receivables’ include Placements with Banks and 
other Finance Companies, Lease Receivable and Hire Purchase 
Receivables, Micro Loans, Weleda Warama, Other Loans and 
Receivables from Customers, Reverse Repurchase Agreements 
and other financial investments classified as loans and 
receivables of the Company.

Assets leased to customers which transfer substantially all the 
risks and rewards associated with ownership other than legal 
title, are classified as finance leases. Amounts receivable under 
finance leases are included under “Lease Rentals Receivable”. 
Leasing balances are stated in the Statement of Financial 
Position after deduction of initial rentals received, unearned 
lease income and the provision for impairment.

Assets sold to customers under fixed rate hire agreements, 
which transfer all risk and rewards as well as the legal title 
at the end of such contractual period are classified as ‘Hire 
Purchase Receivable’. Such assets are accounted for in a 
similar manner as finance leases.

After initial measurement, ‘loans and advances’ are 
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR, 
less provision for impairment except when the Company 
designates loans and receivables at fair value through profit or 
loss. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any 
discount or premium on acquisition and fees and costs that 
are an integral part of the EIR. the amortization is included 
in ‘Interest Income’. the losses arising from impairment are 
recognized in the Income Statement in ‘Impairment charges 
for loans and other losses’ in the Income Statement.

Securities purchased under agreements to resale at a specified 
future date are not recognized in the Statement of Financial 
Position. the consideration paid, including accrued interest, is 
recorded in the Statement of Financial Position, within ‘reverse 
repurchase agreements’, reflecting the transaction’s economic 

substance as a loan by Company. the difference between the 
purchase and resale prices is recorded in ‘Net interest income’ 
and is accrued over the life of the agreement using the EIR.

3.1.3.3 Held to Maturity Financial Investments
Held to Maturity financial investments are non-derivative 
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and 
fixed maturities, which the Company has the intention and 
ability to hold to maturity. After initial measurement, held to 
maturity financial investments are subsequently measured 
at amortised cost using the EIR, less impairment. Amortised 
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or 
premium on acquisition and fees that are an integral part of 
the EIR. the amortisation is included in ‘Interest Income’ in 
the Income Statement. the losses arising from impairment of 
such investments are recognised in the Income Statement in 
‘Impairment charges for loans and other losses’.

If the Company were to sell or reclassify more than an 
insignificant amount of Held to Maturity investments before 
maturity (other than in certain specific circumstances 
permitted in the Sri Lanka Accounting Standard - LKAS 39 
on ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’), 
the entire category would be tainted and would have to be 
reclassified accordingly. Furthermore, the Company would 
be prohibited from classifying any financial asset as Held to 
Maturity during the following two years.

3.1.3.4 Available for Sale Financial Investments
Available-for-sale investments include equity securities and 
Government debt securities. Equity investments classified as 
Available-for-Sale are those which are neither classified as 
held for trading nor designated at fair value through profit or 
loss. Government Debt securities in this category are intended 
to be held for an indefinite period of time or in response to 
changes in the market conditions.

After initial measurement, available for sale financial 
investments are subsequently measured at fair value.

unrealised gains and losses are recognised directly in Equity 
through Other Comprehensive Income in the ‘Available-
For-Sale Reserve’. When the investment is disposed of, the 

notes to the Financial statements Contd.
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cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in Equity is 
recycled to Income Statement in ‘Other operating income’. 
Interest earned whilst holding Available-for-Sale financial 
investments is reported as ‘Interest Income’ using the EIR.

Interest earned whilst holding Available-for-Sale financial 
investments are recognised in the Income Statement as 
‘Interest income’ when the right to receive the payment has 
been established. the losses arising from impairment of such 
investments too are recognised in the Income Statement in 
‘Impairment losses on financial investments’ and removed 
from the ‘Available for Sale reserve’.

3.1.3.5 Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand and cash 
at bank and other highly liquid financial assets which are held 
for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments with 
original maturities of less than three months which are subject 
to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value.

Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an 
integral part of the Company’s cash management are included 
as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose 
of the statement of cash flows.

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortised cost in the 
Statement of Financial Position.

3.1.4. Classification and Subsequent Measurement of Financial 
Liabilities

Company classifies financial liabilities into one of the 
following categories:

 N  Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
 N Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost

the subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends 
on their classification.

3.1.4.1. Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or  
    Loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include 
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities 

designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through 
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are 
acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing 
in the near term or holds as a part of a portfolio that is 
managed together for short-term profit or position taking. 
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in 
the Income Statement.

Interest paid/ payable is accrued in Interest Expense using the 
EIR. the Company has not designated any financial liabilities 
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

3.1.4.2. Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost
Financial instruments that are not designated at fair value 
through profit or loss, are classified as liabilities under 
‘Deposits Due to Customers’, ‘Debt Instruments Issued 
and Other Borrowed Funds’ or ‘Due to Banks & Financial 
Institutions’ as appropriate, where the substance of the 
contractual arrangement results in the Company having an 
obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset 
to the holder, or to satisfy the obligation other than by the 
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset 
for a fixed number of own equity shares.

After initial recognition, such financial liabilities are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR 
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account 
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that 
are an integral part of the EIR.

the EIR amortisation is included in ‘Interest Expenses’ in the 
Income Statement. Gains and losses are recognised in Income 
Statement when the liabilities are derecognised as well as 
through the EIR amortisation process.

3.1.5. Reclassification of Financial Assets and Liabilities
the Company may reclassify non-derivative financial 
assets out of the ‘held for trading’ category and into the 
‘available-for-sale’, ‘loans and receivables’, or ‘held to 
maturity’ categories as permitted by the Sri Lanka Accounting 
Standards - LKAS 39 on ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition 
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and Measurement’. Further, in certain circumstances, the 
Company is permitted to reclassify financial instruments out 
of the ‘available-for-sale’ category and into the ‘loans and 
receivables’ category. Reclassifications are recorded at fair 
value at the date of reclassification, which becomes the new 
amortised cost.

For a financial asset with a fixed maturity reclassified out of 
the ‘available-for-sale’ category, any previous gain or loss on 
that asset that has been recognised in Equity is amortised to 
profit or loss over the remaining life of the asset using the 
EIR. Any difference between the new amortised cost and the 
expected cash flows is also amortised over the remaining life 
of the asset using the EIR. In the case of a financial asset does 
not have a fixed maturity, the gain or loss is recognised in the 
profit or loss when such financial asset is sold or disposed 
off. If the financial asset is subsequently determined to be 
impaired, then the amount recorded in Equity is recycled to 
profit or loss.

the Company may reclassify a non-derivative trading asset 
out of the ‘held for trading’ category and into the ‘loans and 
receivables’ category if it meets the definition of loans and 
receivables and the Company has the intention and ability 
to hold the financial asset for the foreseeable future or until 
maturity. If a financial asset is reclassified, and if the Company 
subsequently increases its estimates of future cash receipts as 
a result of increased recoverability of those cash receipts, the 
effect of that increase is recognised as an adjustment to the 
EIR from the date of the change in estimate.

Reclassification is at the election of management, and is 
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

the Company does not reclassify any financial instrument 
into the fair value through profit or loss category after initial 
recognition. Further, the Company does not reclassify any 
financial instrument out of the fair value through profit or loss 
category if upon initial recognition it was designated as at fair 
value through profit or loss.

An entity shall not classify any financial assets as held to 
maturity if the entity has, during the current financial year or 

during the two preceding financial years, sold or reclassified 
more than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity 
investments before maturity (more than insignificant in 
relation to the total amount of held-to-maturity investments) 
other than sales or reclassifications that:

(i) are so close to maturity or the financial asset’s call date that 
changes in the market rate of interest would not have a 
significant effect on the financial asset’s fair value;

(ii) occur after the entity has collected substantially all of 
the financial asset’s original principal through scheduled 
payments or prepayments; or

(iii) are attributable to an isolated event that is beyond the 
entity’s control, is non-recurring and could not have been 
reasonably anticipated by the entity.

3.1.6. De Recognition of Financial Assets and Financial 
Liabilities

3.1.6.1. Financial Assets
Financial assets (or, where applicable or a part of a financial 
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is 
derecognised when;

 N  the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have 
expired; or

 N  the Company has transferred its rights to cash flows from 
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received 
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party 
under a ‘pass- through’ arrangement; and either:

 N the Company has transferred substantially all the risks 
and rewards of the assets, or

 N the Company has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but 
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive 
cash flow from an asset or has entered in to a pass through 
arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the assets nor 
transferred control of it, the asset is recognised to the extent 
of the Company’s continuing involvement in it. In that case, 

notes to the Financial statements Contd.
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the Company also recognises an associated liability. the 
transferred assets and the associated liabilities are measured 
on a basis that reflects the right and obligation that the 
Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over 
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original 
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of 
consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

3.1.6.2. Financial Liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under 
liability is discharged or cancelled or expired.

3.1.7. Offsetting of Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net 
amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position if, and 
only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset 
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on 
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities 
simultaneously.

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when 
permitted under SLFRSs, or for gains and losses arising from a 
group of similar transactions such as in the company’s trading 
activity.

3.1.8. Amortised Cost Measurement
An 'Amortised Cost' of a financial asset or financial liability is 
the amount at which the financial asset or liability is measured 
at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or 
minus the cumulative amortisation using the EIR method of 
any difference between the initial amount recognised and the 
maturity amount, minus any reduction for impairment.

3.1.9. Determination of Fair Value
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset 
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date.

the fair value measurement is based on the presumption that 
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes 
place either:

 N  in the principal market for the asset or liability or
 N  in the absence of a principal market, in the most 

advantageous market for the asset or liability.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or 
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the 
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest 
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as 
a whole:

 N  level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted)market prices in active 
markets for identical assets or liabilities

 N  level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 
directly or indirectly observable

 N  level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 
unobservable

level 1
When available, the Company measures the fair value of 
an instrument using active quoted prices or dealer price 
quotations (assets and long positions are measured at a bid 
price; liabilities and short positions are measured at an ask 
price), without any deduction for transaction costs. A market 
is regarded as active if transactions for asset or liability take 
place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing 
information on an ongoing basis.

level 2
If a market for a financial instrument is not active, then 
the Company establishes fair value using a valuation 
technique. Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s 
length transactions between knowledgeable, willing parties 
(if available), reference to the current fair value of other 
instruments that are substantially the same, discounted 
cash flow analyses, credit models, option pricing models 
and other relevant valuation models. the chosen valuation 
technique makes maximum use of market inputs, relies 
as little as possible on estimates specific to the Company, 
incorporates all factors that market participants would 
consider in setting a price, and is consistent with accepted 
economic methodologies for pricing financial instruments. 
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Inputs to valuation techniques reasonably represent market 
expectations and measures of the risk-return factors inherent 
in the financial instrument. the Company calibrates valuation 
techniques and tests them for validity using prices from 
observable current market transactions in the same instrument 
or based on other available observable market data.

the best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument 
at initial recognition is the transaction price, i.e. the fair value 
of the consideration given or received, unless the fair value 
of that instrument is evidenced by comparison with other 
observable current market transactions in the same instrument, 
i.e. without modification or repackaging, or based on a 
valuation technique whose variables include only data from 
observable markets.

When transaction price provides the best evidence of fair 
value at initial recognition, the financial instrument is initially 
measured at the transaction price and any difference between 
this price and the value initially obtained from a valuation 
model is subsequently recognised in profit or loss on an 
appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but not later 
than when the valuation is supported wholly by observable 
market data or the transaction is closed out.

level 3
Certain financial instruments are recorded at fair value using 
valuation techniques in which current market transactions or 
observable market data are not available. their fair value is 
determined by using valuation models that have been tested 
against prices or inputs to actual market transactions and 
also using the best estimate of the most appropriate model 
assumptions. Models are adjusted to reflect the spread for 
bid and ask prices to reflect costs to close out positions, 
credit and debit valuation adjustments, liquidity spread and 
limitations in the models. Also, profit or loss calculated when 
such financial instruments are first recorded (‘Day 1’ profit or 
loss) is deferred and recognised only when the inputs become 
observable or on derecognition of the instrument.

3.1.10. Identification and Measurement of Impairment of  
  Financial Assets

At each Reporting date, the Company assesses whether there 
is objective evidence that financial assets not carried at fair 
value through profit or loss are impaired.

A financial asset or a group of financial assets is ‘impaired’ 
when objective evidence demonstrates that a loss event has 
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset(s) and that 
the loss event has an impact on the future cash flows of the 
asset(s) that can be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets (including equity 
securities) are impaired can include:

 N  Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer,
 N  Re schedulement of credit facilities,
 N  Default or delinquency by a borrower,
 N  Restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on 

terms that the Company would not otherwise consider,
 N  Indications that a borrower or issuer will enter bankruptcy,
 N  the disappearance of an active market for a security, or
 N  Other observable data relating to a group of assets such 

as adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or 
issuers in the group, or economic conditions that correlate 
with defaults in the group.

In addition, for an investment in an equity security, a 
significant or prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost 
is considered as an objective evidence of impairment.

3.1.10.1. Impairment of Financial Assets carried at Amortised     
 Cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost (such as lease 
rental and hire purchase receivables, loans and receivables 
to other customers as well as held to maturity investments) 
, the Company first assesses individually whether objective 
evidence of impairment exists for financial assets that are 
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that 
are not individually significant. If the Company determines 
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an 
individually assessed financial asset, it includes the asset in a 
group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics 

notes to the Financial statements Contd.
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and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that 
are individually assessed for impairment and for which an 
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not 
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been 
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference 
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of 
estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit 
losses that have not yet been incurred). the carrying amount 
of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance 
account and the amount of impairment loss is recognised in 
the Income Statement.

For the purpose of collective evaluation of impairment, 
financial assets are grouped on a basis which takes in to 
consideration credit risk characteristics.

Future cash flows on a group of financial assets that are 
collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the 
basis of historical loss experience for assets with credit risk 
characteristics similar to those in the group. Historical loss 
experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable 
data to reflect the effects of current conditions on which the 
historical loss experience is based and to remove the effects of 
conditions in the historical period that do not exist currently.

3.1.10.2. Impairment of Financial Investments - Available for  
 Sale

For available for sale financial investments, the Company 
assesses at each Reporting date whether there is objective 
evidence that an investment is impaired.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available-for-
sale, the Company assesses individually whether there is 
objective evidence of impairment based on the same criteria as 
financial assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount 
recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as 
the difference between the amortised cost and the current fair 
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously 
recognised in profit or loss. Future interest income is based on 
the reduced carrying amount/impaired balance and is accrued 
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows 

for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. the interest 
income on such assets too is recorded within ‘Interest income’.

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument 
increases and the increase can be objectively related to 
a credit event occurring after the impairment loss was 
recognised in the Income Statement, the impairment loss is 
reversed through the Income Statement.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for 
sale, objective evidence would also include a ‘significant’ 
or ‘prolonged’ decline in the fair value of the investment 
below its cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the 
cumulative loss measured as the difference between the 
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment 
loss on that investment previously recognised in the Income 
Statement is removed from equity and recognised in the 
Income Statement. However, any subsequent recovery in the 
fair value of an impaired available-for-sale equity security is 
recognised in Other Comprehensive Income.

3.1.10.3 Collateral Valuation
the Company seeks to use collateral, where possible to 
mitigate the risks on Financial Assets. the Collateral comes in 
various forms such as vehicles, gold, real estate, inventories 
and other non –financial assets. the fair value of collateral is 
generally assessed, at a minimum, at inception and based on 
Company’s valuation policy.

3.1.10.4 Collateral Repossessed
the Company’s policy is to sell the repossessed assets at the 
earliest possible opportunity. Such collateral repossessed are 
held on a memorandum basis without de recognising the 
underlying receivable.

3.2. property, plant & equipment
the Company applies the requirements of the Sri Lanka 
Accounting Standard – LKAS 16 on ‘Property, Plant & 
Equipment’ in accounting for its owned assets (including 
buildings under operating leases where the Company is the 
lessor) which are held for and use in the provision of services, 
for rental to others or for administrative purposes and are 
expected to be used for more than one year.
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3.2.1. Basis of Recognition and measurement
Property, Plant & Equipment are recognised if it is probable 
that future economic benefits associated with the asset will 
flow to the Company and cost of the asset can be reliably 
measured.

the Company applies the Cost Model to all Property, Plant & 
Equipment and records at cost of purchase together with any 
incidental expenses thereon, less accumulated depreciation 
and any accumulated impairment losses.

An item of Property, Plant & Equipment that qualifies for 
recognition as an asset is initially measured at its cost. Cost 
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the 
acquisition of the asset and subsequent costs (excluding the 
costs of day-to-day servicing).the cost of self-constructed 
assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any 
other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to a 
working condition for its intended use and the costs of 
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site 
on which they are located and capitalised borrowing costs. 
Purchased software which is integral to the functionality of 
the related equipment is capitalised as part of Computer 
Equipment.

When parts of an item of property or equipment have 
different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items 
(major components) of property and equipment.

3.2.2. Subsequent cost
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it is probable 
that the future economic benefits of the expenditure will 
flow to the Company. Ongoing repairs and maintenance are 
expensed as incurred.

3.2.3. Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated to write-off the cost of items of 
Property, Plant & Equipment less their estimated residual 
values using the straight-line method over their estimated 
useful lives, and is recognised in profit or loss. Leased assets 
under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of 
the lease term and their useful lives. Freehold land is not 

depreciated. the estimated useful lives for the current and 
comparative years are as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Computer Equipment 4 years
Furniture & Fittings 4 years
Office Equipment 5 years
Freehold Motor Vehicles 4-8 years
Leasehold Motor Vehicles 8 years
Leasehold Improvements 4 years

the depreciation rates are determined separately for each 
significant part of an item of Property, Plant & Equipment 
and commence to depreciate when it is available for use, 
i.e., when it is in the location and condition necessary for it 
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the 
management. Depreciation of an asset ceases at the earlier of 
the date that the asset is classified as held for sale or the date 
that the asset is derecognised.

3.2.4. Change in Depreciation Rate
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are 
reassessed at each Reporting date and adjusted, if required.

3.2.5. De-recognition
An item of Property, Plant & Equipment is derecognised upon 
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected 
from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the 
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset), is recognised 
in ‘Other Operating Income’ in profit or loss in the year the 
asset is derecognised. When replacement costs are recognised 
in the carrying amount of an item of Property, Plant & 
Equipment, the remaining carrying amount of the replaced 
part is derecognised as required by Sri Lanka Accounting 
Standard – LKAS 16 on ‘Property, Plant & Equipment’.

3.3. intangible assets
the Company’s intangible assets include the value of 
Computer Software.

notes to the Financial statements Contd.
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3.3.1. Basis of Recognition
An intangible asset is recognised if it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the 
entity and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably in 
accordance with the Sri Lanka Accounting Standard – LKAS 38 
on ‘Intangible Assets’.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial 
recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, these assets 
are stated in the Statement of Financial Position at cost, less 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, 
if any.

3.3.2. Subsequent Expenditure
Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets is capitalised 
only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied 
in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is 
expensed as incurred.

3.3.3. Amortisation of Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are amortised using the straight line method 
to write down the cost over its estimated useful economic 
lives specified below:

Computer Software 10 years

3.3.4. Derecognition of Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are derecognised on disposal or when no 
future economic benefits are expected from their use. Gains 
or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are 
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds 
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in 
profit or loss.

3.4 investment property
Investment property is properly held either to earn rental 
income, for capital appreciation or for both, but not for sale 
in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or 
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.

Investment property is measured at cost on initial recognition 
and subsequently at fair value with any change therein 
recognized in profit or loss.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the 
acquisition of the investment property. the cost of self-
constructed investment property includes the cost of materials 
and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to 
bringing the investment property to a working condition for 
their intended use and capitalized borrowing costs.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an investment property 
(calculated as the difference between the net proceeds from 
disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognized 
in profit or loss. When an investment property that was 
previously classified as property, plant and equipment is sold, 
any related amount included in the revaluation reserve is 
transferred to retained earnings.

When the use of a property changes such as that it is 
reclassified as property, plant, equipment, its fair value at 
the date of reclassification becomes its cost for subsequent 
accounting. When the use of a property changes from owner-
occupied to investment property, the property is re measured 
to fair value and reclassified as investment property. Any 
gain arising on re measurement is recognized in profit or loss 
to the extent that it reverses a previous impairment loss on 
the specific property, with any remaining gain recognized in 
other comprehensive income and presented in the revaluation 
reserve in equity. Any loss is recognized immediately in profit 
or loss.

Where the group companies occupy a significant portion of 
the investment property of a subsidiary such as investment 
properties, are treated as property, plant and equipment 
in the consolidated Financial Statements, Accounted for in 
accordance with LKAS 16 – Property, Plant and Equipment.

3.5. Real estate inventory
Lands purchased for real estate business are classified as 
real estate inventory. Costs includes purchase price and 
development & construction costs. Inventories are measured 
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the 
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of 
completion and selling expenses.
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3.6. leases
the determination of whether an arrangement is a lease or it 
contains a lease, is based on the substance of the arrangement 
and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the 
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or 
assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

3.6.1. Operating Leases
3.6.1.1. Operating Leases – Company as a Lessee
Leases that do not transfer to the Company substantially all 
risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased assets 
are operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised 
as an expense in the Income Statement on a straight line basis 
over the lease term. Contingent rental payable is recognised as 
an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

3.6.1.2. Operating Leases – Company as a Lessor
Leases where the Company does not transfer substantially all 
risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as 
operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating 
operating leases are added to the carrying amount of the 
leased asset unrecognized over the lease term on the same 
basis as rental income.

Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in 
which they are earned.

3.6.2. Finance Leases
3.6.2.1. Finance Leases – Company as a Lessee
Finance leases that transfer substantially all risks and benefits 
incidental to ownership of the leased item to the Company, 
are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the 
fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present 
value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are 
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the 
lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the 
remaining balance of the liability.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. 
However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company 
will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset 
is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of 
the asset and the lease term.

3.6.2.2. Finance Leases – Company as a Lessor
When the Company is the lessor under finance leases the 
amounts due under the leases, after deduction of
unearned charges, are included in ‘ Lease rentals receivables , 
as appropriate. the finance income receivable is recognised in 
‘interest income’ over the periods of the leases so as to give a 
constant rate of return on the net investment in the leases.

3.7. impairment of non-Financial assets
At each Reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying 
amounts of its non – financial assets (other than inventories 
and deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any 
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then 
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the 
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from 
continuing use that is largely independent of the cash inflows 
of other assets or CGus.

the ‘recoverable amount’ of an asset or CGu is the greater of 
its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. ‘Value in 
use’ is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted 
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and 
the risks specific to the asset or CGu.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of 
an asset or its related Cash-Generating unit (CGu) exceeds its 
estimated recoverable amount.

the Company’s corporate assets do not generate separate cash 
inflows and are utilised by more than one CGu. Corporate 
assets are allocated to CGus on a reasonable and consistent 
basis and tested for impairment as part of the testing of the 
CGu to which the corporate asset is allocated.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. they are 
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill 
allocated to the CGu, and then to reduce the carrying 
amounts of the other assets in the CGu on a pro-rata basis.

notes to the Financial statements Contd.
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An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For 
other assets, an impairment loss is reversed only to the extent 
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation 
or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

3.8. dividends payable
Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability 
and deducted from equity when they are recommended and 
declared by the Board of Directors.

3.9. deposits due to customers debt instruments issued 
and other borrowed Funds

these include term deposits, Promissory notes & commercial 
papers. Subsequent to initial recognition, deposits are 
measured at their amortised cost using the effective interest 
method, except where the Company designates liabilities at 
fair value through profit or loss. Interest paid / payable on 
these deposits recognised in profit or loss.

3.10. debt securities issued and subordinated term 
debts

these represent the funds borrowed by the Company 
for long-term funding requirements. Subsequent to initial 
recognition debt securities issued are measured at their 
amortised cost using the effective interest method, except 
where the Company designates debt securities issued at 
fair value through profit or loss. Interest paid/payable is 
recognised in profit or loss.

3.11. other liabilities
Other liabilities are recorded at amounts expected to be 
payable at the Reporting date.

3.12. provisions
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the 
Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that 
can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow 
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. 
Provisions are determined by discounting the expected 
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 

to the liability. the unwinding of the discount is recognised in 
‘Interest Expense’ in profit or loss.

3.12.1 Provisions for Operational Risk Events
Provisions for operational risk events are recognised for losses 
incurred by the Company which do not relate directly to 
amounts of principal outstanding for loans and advances.

the amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate 
of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation 
as at the reporting date, taking into account the risks and 
uncertainties that surround the events and circumstances that 
affect the provision.

3.13. employee benefits
3.13.1. Defined Benefit Plan (DBP) - Gratuity
A defined benefit plan is a post employment benefit plan 
other than a defined contribution plan.

the liability recognised in the Statement of Financial Position 
in respect of a defined benefit plan is the present value of 
the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date. Benefit 
falling due more than 12 months after the reporting date are 
discounted to present value.

the defined benefits obligation is calculated annually by 
independent actuaries using Projected unit Credit Method 
(PuC) as recommended by LKAS-19, “employee benefits”.

Actual gains and losses in the period in which they occur have 
been recognise in the other Comprehensive income (OCI).

the assumptions based on which the results of actuarial 
valuation was determined, are included in notes to the 
financial statements.

Gratuity liability was computed from the first year of service 
for all employees in conformity with Sri Lanka Accounting 
Standards 19- “Employee Benefits”.

However, under the payment of Gratuity Act No. 12 of 1983, 
the liability to an employee arises only on completion of five 
years of continual service.
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the company is liable to pay gratuity in terms of the relevant 
statute.

the gratuity liability is not externally funded.

3.13.2. Employees’ Provident Fund (EPF)
the Company and employees contribute 12% and 8% 
respectively on the salary of each employee to the Employees 
Provident Fund managed by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka.

3.13.3. Employees’ trust Fund (EtF)
the Company contributes 3% of the salary of each employee 
to the Employees’ trust Fund managed by the Central Bank of 
Sri Lanka.

3.14. micro insurance Reserve Fund
the company maintains a insurance reserve fund to 
compensate for outstanding micro loan balances when the 
relevant micro member or his or her spouse is deceased and 
not in a position to service the accommodation. this insurance 
reserve fund is formed out of Loan Protection Premium 
collected from micro members at the time micro Loan facilities 
are granted to them

3.15. Recognition of income and expenses
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the 
economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue 
and associated costs incurred or to be incurred can be reliably 
measured. the following specific criteria are used for the 
purpose of recognition of revenue.

3.15.1. Interest Income and Expense
Interest income and expense are recognised in profit or loss 
using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. the EIR is the 
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments 
and receipts through the expected life of the financial asset 
or liability (or, where appropriate, a shorter period) to the 
carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. When 
calculating the EIR, the Company estimates future cash flows 
considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument, 
but not future credit losses.

the calculation of the EIR includes transaction costs and 
fees and points paid or received that are an integral part of 
the EIR. transaction costs include incremental costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of a financial 
asset or financial liability.

Interest income and expense presented in the Income 
Statement include:

 N  Interest on financial assets and financial liabilities 
measured at amortized cost calculated using EIR method;

 N  Held-for-trading calculated using EIR method;
 N  Interest on available-for-sale investment securities 

calculated using EIR method.

3.15.2. Fees and Commission Income
‘Net gain / (loss) from trading’ comprise gains less losses 
related to trading assets and liabilities, and include all realised 
and unrealised fair value changes and dividends.

(a) Fee income earned from services that are provided 
over a certain period of time

Fees earned for the provision of services over a period of time 
are accrued over that period. these fees include commission 
income and etc.

(b) Fee income from providing transaction services
Fees arising from negotiating or participating in the 
negotiation of a transaction for a third party, such as the 
purchase or sale of business is recognised on completion 
of the underlying transaction. Fees or components of fees 
that are linked to a certain performance are recognized after 
fulfilling the corresponding criteria

3.15.3. Income from Real Estate Sales
Revenue from the real estate sale is recognised when the 
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have 
passed to the buyer. However, when there is insufficient 
assurance as to the receipt of total consideration, the 
Company recognises revenue for outright sales after receipt of 
25% of the consideration. Further, any unrealized profit earlier 
recorded but not realized as a consequence of such sale of 
real estate contract terminated is immediately reversed.

notes to the Financial statements Contd.
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3.15.4. Other Operating Income
‘Other Operating Income’ comprise gain or (loss) on disposal 
of property plant & equipment, Sundry Income and dividends.

3.16. tax expense
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. 
Income tax expense is recognised in the Income Statement, 
except to the extent it relates to items recognised directly in 
Equity or in OCI.

3.16.1 Current taxation
‘Current tax’ comprises the expected tax payable or receivable 
on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment 
to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. It 
is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted, 
at the Reporting date.

Accordingly, provision for taxation is made on the basis of 
the accounting profit for the year, as adjusted for taxation 
purposes, in accordance with the provisions of the Inland 
Revenue Act No. 10 of 2006 and amendments thereto.

Notes to Financial Statements include the major components 
of tax expense, the effective tax rates and a reconciliation 
between the profit before tax and tax expense, as required 
by the Sri Lanka Accounting Standard – LKAS 12 on ‘Income 
taxes’.

3.16.2 Deferred taxation
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences 
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for 
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for 
taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for:

 N  temporary differences on the initial recognition of 
assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business 
combination and that affects neither accounting nor 
taxable profit or loss;

 N  temporary differences related to investments in 
subsidiaries to the extent that it is probable that they will 
not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

 N  taxable temporary differences arising on the initial 
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, 
unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to 
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be 
available against which they can be used. Deferred tax assets 
are reviewed at each Reporting date and are reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit 
will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to 
be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, using 
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the Reporting 
date.

the measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax 
consequences that would follow the manner in which the 
Company expects, at the Reporting date, to recover or settle 
the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

3.17. value added tax (vat) on Financial services
the value base for the computation of value added tax on 
financial services is calculated by adjusting the depreciation 
computed on rates prescribed by the Department of Inland 
Revenue to the accounting profit before Income tax and 
emoluments payable. Emoluments payable include benefits in 
money and not in money including contribution or provision 
relating to terminal benefits.

3.18. nation building tax (nbt) on Financial services
With effect from January 01, 2014, NBt of 2% was introduced 
on supply of Financial services via an amendment to the NBt 
Act No. 09 of 2009. NBt is chargeable on the same base used 
for calculation of VAt on Financial services as explained in 
notes to the Financial Statements.

3.19. crop insurance levy (cil)
As per the provisions of the Section 14 of the Finance Act No. 
12 of 2013, the CIL was introduced with effect from April 01, 
2013 and is payable to the National Insurance trust Fund. 
Currently, the CIL is payable at 1% of the profit after tax.

3.20 economic service charge (esc)
As per the provisions of the Economic Service Charge (ESC) 
Act No 13 of 2006, ESC was payable at 0.5% on company’s 
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liable turnover and was deductible from income tax payable. 
With effect from 01 April 2012 as per the ESC amendment Act 
No 11 of 2012 ESC is payable only on exempt turnover of the 
Company and is deductible from income tax payable. ESC is 
not payable on which income tax is payable.

3.21 deposit insurance scheme
In terms of the Finance Companies Direction No 2 of 2010 
“Insurance of Deposit Liabilities” issued on 27th September 
2010 all Registered Finance Companies are required to insure 
their deposit liabilities in the Deposit Insurance Scheme 
operated by the Monetary Board in terms of Sri Lanka Deposit 
Insurance Scheme Regulations No 1 of 2010 issued under 
Sections 32A to 32E of the Monetary Law Act with effect from 
1st October 2010.

Deposits to be insured include demand, time and savings 
deposit liabilities and exclude the following.

 N  Deposit liabilities to member institutions
 N  Deposit liabilities to Government of Sri Lanka
 N  Deposit liabilities to shareholders, directors, key 

management personnel and other related parties as 
defined in Finance Companies Act Direction No 03 of 
2008 on Corporate Governance of Registered Finance 
Companies

 N  Deposit liabilities held as collateral against any 
accommodation granted

 N  Deposit liabilities falling within the meaning of dormant 
deposits in terms of the Finance Companies Act, funds of 
which have been transferred to Central Bank of Sri Lanka

Registered Finance Companies are required to pay a premium 
of 0.15% on eligible deposit liabilities as at end of the month 
to be payable within a period of 15 days from the end of the 
respective month.

3.22. withholding tax on dividends distributed by the 
company

Withholding tax that arises from the distribution of dividends 
by the Company is recognised at the time the liability to pay 
the related dividend is recognised.

3.23. earnings per share (eps)
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss 
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 
during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the 
profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, for 
the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

3.24. commitments and contingencies
All discernible risks are accounted for in determining the 
amount of all known liabilities. Contingent liabilities are 
possible obligations whose existence will be confirmed only 
by uncertain future events or present obligations where the 
transfer of economic benefit is not probable or cannot be 
reliably measured. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in 
the Statement of Financial Position but are disclosed unless 
they are remote.

3.25. statement of cash Flows
the Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared using the 
“Direct Method” of preparing Cash Flows in accordance 
with the Lanka Accounting Standard LKAS- 07 “Cash Flow 
Statements”. Cash and cash equivalents comprise short term, 
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known 
amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of 
changes in value. the cash and cash equivalent include cash 
in hand and favourable balances with banks.

3.26. new accounting standards issued but not effective 
as at Reporting date

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka has issued 
the following new Sri Lanka Accounting Standard which will 
become applicable for financial periods beginning on or after 
1 January 2018. Accordingly, the Company has not applied 
the following new standards in preparing these consolidated 
financial statements.

 N  slFRs 9 - “Financial instruments: classification and 
measurement ”

SLFRS 9 – “Financial Instruments: Classification and 
Measurement” replaces the existing guidance in LKAS 39 
– “Financial Instruments: Recognition and measurement” 

notes to the Financial statements Contd.
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SLFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification 
and measurement of financial instruments including a new 
expected credit loss model for calculating impairment on 
financial assets.

SLFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 
01 January 2018 with early adoption permitted.

the Company is assessing the potential impact to the Financial 
Statements resulting from the application of SLFRS 9. Given 
the nature of the operations, this standard is expected to have 
pervasive impact on the Company’s Financial Statements.

 N  slFRs 15 - “Revenue from contracts with customers”
SLFRS 15, establishes a comprehensive framework for 
determining whether, how much and when revenue 
is recognised. It replaces exciting revenue recognition 
guidance, including LKAS 18 on “Revenue”, and LKAS 11 on 
“Construction Contracts”.
SLFRS 15 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning 
on or after 01 January 2018.

the Company’s is assessing the potential impact on its 
Financial Statements resulting from the application of SLFRS 
15.



Kanrich Finance Ltd | Annual Report 2016/17138

notes to the Financial statements Contd.

4 gRoss income
For the year ended 31 march,    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs.

Interest Income (Note 4.1)    3,411,322,995 4,252,396,976
Fee and Commission Income (Note 5)    45,488,897 117,157,349
Net Other Operating Income (Note 6)    1,169,275 405,521
Income from Real Estate Sales (Note 7)    74,482,260 26,440,892
    3,532,463,427 4,396,400,738

4.1 inteRest income
For the year ended 31 march,    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs.

Loans and Receivables    2,961,982,391 3,999,464,829
Lease Rental & Hire Purchase Receivables    289,204,112 136,141,518
Financial Investments - Available for Sale    3,729,530 69,922,302
Placements with Banks and Other Financial Institutions    83,492,047 37,187,254
Interest Income Received on Impaired Financial Assets    72,914,915 9,681,073
total Interest Income    3,411,322,995 4,252,396,976

4.2 inteRest expense
For the year ended 31 march,    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs.

Due to Banks and Financial Institutions    12,910,729 2,874,715
On Deposits Due to Customers    108,462,310 135,353,302
Debt Instruments and Other Borrowed Funds    885,338,565 921,283,313
    1,006,711,604 1,059,511,331

5 Fee and commision income
For the year ended 31 march,    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs.

Credit Related Fees and Commissions    15,303,652 10,878,868
Service Charges    13,866,881 79,123,481
Joining Fee    14,526,500 27,155,000
Other charges    1,791,864 -
total Fee and commission income    45,488,897 117,157,349
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6 net otheR opeRating income
For the year ended 31 march,    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs.

Loss on Disposal of Property & Equipment    - (209,823)
Dividend Income    27,495 25,380
Others    1,141,780 589,964
total other operating income    1,169,275 405,521

7 net income FRom Real estate sales
For the year ended 31 march,    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs.

Gross Income from Real Estate Sales    335,300,399 344,200,602
Less: Cost incurred in Acquiring and Developing Real Estates   (260,818,139) (317,759,710)
    74,482,260 26,440,892

8 net impaiRment chaRge / (ReveRsal) oF loans and otheR losses
For the year ended 31 march,    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs.

Hire Purchase Receivables    (1,212,063) 14,667,025
Lease Receivables    45,476,693 8,922,494
total impairment charge / (Reversal) for lease and hire purchase (note 17.2)  44,264,630 23,589,519

Corporate term Loans    - 3,043,570
Welada Warama    76,014,619 83,236,028
Micro Loans    43,633,200 319,009,714
Easy Payment loans    (7,889,385) 2,848,807
Mortgage Loans    5,589,573 1,066,839
Personnel Loans    37,342,993 59,303,896
Staff Loans    3,687,114 (355,532)
term Loans    4,027,861 -
Ran Sihinaya    96,380 -
Business Loans    22,532,773 -
Consumer Loans    4,730,917 -
total impairment charge / (Reversal) for loans and advances (note 16.3)  189,766,045s 468,153,322

Impairment Charges on Sundry Receivables    (6,175,194) 11,324,497
Fixed Deposits    - 4,707,489
total other impairment charges    (6,175,194) 16,031,986
    227,855,480 507,774,827
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9 peRsonnel expenses
For the year ended 31 march,    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs.

Salaries and Bonus    493,159,683 468,897,774
Contribution to Defined Contribution Plan 
 Employer’s Contribution to EPF    61,218,319 53,613,935
 Employer’s Contribution to EtF    15,304,580 11,266,373
Gratuity Charge for the Year (Note 32.1)    19,660,053 7,641,509
Other Allowances & Staff related Expenses    81,555,242 59,023,839
    670,897,877 600,443,430

10 otheR opeRating expenses
For the year ended 31 march,    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs.

Directors' Emoluments    32,211,119 29,171,856
Auditors' Fees - Statutory Audit and other Non-audit services   1,656,000 1,196,300
Professional and Legal Expenses    5,496,933 13,155,541
Office Administration and Establishment and Occupancy Expenses   224,631,110 194,197,134
Advertising and Business Promotion Expenses    103,524,286 128,359,106
Marketing and Distribution Expenses    466,275,514 426,943,069
Other Expenses    30,820,589 133,801,893
    864,615,551 926,824,899

11 opeRating pRoFit beFoRe tax expense
Operating Profit before Income tax expense is stated after charging all the expenses including the following:
For the year ended 31 march,    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs.

Professional Fees    5,496,933 13,155,541
Auditors Remuneration - Statutory Audit    1,173,000 1,196,300
           - Other Non Audit Services    483,000 -
Director's Emoluments    32,211,119 29,171,855
Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment    59,953,841 33,731,572
Amortization of Intangible Assets    10,149,884 4,755,571
Advertising & Related Expenses    34,703,234 61,234,800
Business Promotion Expenses    68,839,553 67,248,006
Deposit Insurance Premium    1,366,218 1,860,116
Crop Insurance Levy    173,020 11,412,106
Penalties    - 16,500,000
Personnel Expenses (Note 9)    670,897,877 600,443,430
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12 eaRnings peR shaRe
12.1 basic earnings per share
the calculation of Basic Earnings Per Share was based on the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders by dividing the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year as per the LKAS 33 - Earnings per Share. Calculation is 
as follows,

For the year ended 31 march,    2017 2016

Profit/ (Loss) attributable to Ordinary Shareholders of the Company (Rs.)   311,431,999 648,063,333
Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Shares    77,700,778 77,700,778
Basic Earnings per Ordinary share (Rs.)    4.01 8.34

12.2 diluted earnings per share
there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding at any time during the year. therefore, Diluted Earnings Per Share 
is same as Basic Earnings Per Share shown above.

13 dividend peR shaRe
Equity dividend Ordinary Shares declared and paid during the year.

For the year ended 31 march,    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs.

Ordinary Shares    0.73 -
Preference Shares    2.40 -

14 cash and cash eQuivalents
For the year ended 31 march,    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs.

Cash in Hand    94,415,189 231,706,492
Balances with Banks    68,629,214 32,962,572
Call Deposits    18,985,171 134,328,268
    182,029,574 398,997,332

15 placement with banks & otheR Financial institutions
For the year ended 31 march,    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs.

Repurchase Agreements and Reverse Repurchase Agreements   747,780,716 575,494,084
Investment in Fixed Deposits with Banks (Note 15.1)    118,884,930 227,894,798
Investment in Fixed Deposits with Finance Companies    4,707,489 4,707,489
Provision for Impairments of Investment in Fixed Deposits   (4,707,489) (4,707,489)
    866,665,646 803,388,882
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15 placement with banks & otheR Financial institutions (CONTD.)
15.1 investment in Fixed deposits
bank   type of investment 2017 2016
    Rs. Rs.

People's Bank   Fixed Deposit - 5,987,074
union Bank PLC   Fixed Deposit - 9,172,723
NDB Bank PLC   Fixed Deposit - 83,918,811
NtB Bank PLC   Fixed Deposit 86,685 76,180
Sampath Bank PLC   Fixed Deposit 84,901,715 92,729,448
PABC PLC   Fixed Deposit 33,896,530 36,010,562
    118,884,930 227,894,798

16 loans and Receivables
as at 31 march    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs. 

Loans and Advances (Note 16.1)    8,253,043,367 8,767,742,039
Less : Allowances for Impairment Losses (Note 16.2)    (690,072,605) (730,843,734)
net loans and advances    7,562,970,762 8,036,898,305

16.1 loans and advances
as at 31 march    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs. 

Personal Loans against Fixed Deposits    30,984,415 40,463,676
Personal Loans against Promissory Notes    221,346,362 191,074,740
Personal Loans against Commercial Papers    - 18,031,581
Corporate term Loans    13,885,098 18,368,508
Staff Loans    112,619,199 38,608,141
Welada Warama (Revolving Business Solutions)    340,563,643 587,845,623
Micro Loans    4,856,807,997 6,172,927,891
Ran sihinaya    15,018,324 55,081
Mortgage Loans    685,451,424 304,079,677
Business Loans    741,188,561 897,269,808
Easy Payment Loans    106,062,624 140,632,228
Consumer Loans    744,852,840 286,382,353
Personal Loans    207,596,941 72,002,732
Gold Loans    176,665,939 -
    8,253,043,367 8,767,742,039
Less : Allowance for Impairment Losses (Note 16.2)    (690,072,605) (730,843,734)
Net Loans and Advances    7,562,970,762 8,036,898,305
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16.2 module wise
as at 31 march    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs. 

Individual Impairment (Note 16.4)    362,131,702 526,717,081
Collective Impairment (Note 16.5)    327,940,903 204,126,653
    690,072,605 730,843,734

16.3 movement in allowance for impairment losses
as at 31 march    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs. 

Balance as at 01 April    730,843,734 262,690,412
Charge for the Year    189,766,044 468,153,322
Write-off during the Year    (230,537,173) -
Balance as at 31 March    690,072,605 730,843,734

16.4 movement in provision for individual impairment loss
as at 31 march    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs. 

Balance as at 01 April    526,717,081 172,462,125
Charge for the Year    33,504,871 354,254,956
Write-off during the Year    (198,090,250) -
Balance as at 31 March    362,131,702 526,717,081

16.5 movement in provision for collective impairment loss
as at 31 march    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs. 

Balance as at 01 April    204,126,653 90,228,287
Charge for the Year    156,261,173 113,898,366
Write-off during the Year    (32,446,923) -
Balance as at 31 March    327,940,903 204,126,653
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17 lease Rental & hiRe puRchase Receivables
as at 31 march    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs. 

gross Rental Receivables
 - Lease Rentals    2,321,852,629 2,324,947,041
 - Hire Purchase Rentals    16,097,075 28,348,655
Less : unearned Income    (588,841,735) (647,603,100)
net Rental Receivables    1,749,107,969 1,705,692,596
Less : Allowance for Impairment Losses (Note 17.1)    (63,293,910) (29,264,771)
Less : Overpayments / Rentals Received in Advance    (9,880,757) (7,732,750)
    1,675,933,302 1,668,695,075

17.1 module wise
as at 31 march    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs. 

Individual Impairment    59,042,376 27,787,507
Collective Impairment    4,251,534 1,477,264
    63,293,910 29,264,771

17.2 movement in allowance for impairment losses
as at 31 march    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs. 

Balance as at 01 April    29,264,771 5,675,252
Charge for the Year    44,264,630 23,589,519
Write-off During the Year    (10,235,491) -
Balance as at 31 March    63,293,910 29,264,771

17.3 movement in provision for individual impairment loss
as at 31 march    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs. 

Balance as at 01 April    27,787,507 -
Charge / (Reversal) for the Year    41,490,360 27,787,507
Write-off During the Year    (10,235,491) -
Balance as at 31 March    59,042,376 27,787,507
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17.4 movement in provision for collective impairment loss
as at 31 march    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs. 

Balance as at 01 April    1,477,264 5,675,252
Charge / (Reversal) for the Year    2,774,270 (4,197,988)
Write-off During the Year    - -
Balance as at 31 March    4,251,534 1,477,264

17.5 as at 31 march 2017  within one year 1 - 5 years over 5 years total
  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

gross Rental Receivables 
 - Lease Rentals  54,987,996 2,180,480,597 86,384,036 2,321,852,629
 - Hire Purchase Rentals  8,996,211 7,100,864 - 16,097,075
  63,984,207 2,187,581,461 86,384,036 2,337,949,704
Less: unearned Income  (5,051,468) (553,623,201) (30,167,066) (588,841,735)
net Rental Receivables  58,932,739 1,633,958,260 56,216,970 1,749,107,969

Add : Other Receivables/Charges     -
Less : Allowance for Impairment Losses     (63,293,910)
Less : Rentals Received in Advance     (9,880,757)
     1,675,933,302

as at 31 march 2016  within one year 1 - 5 years over 5 years total
  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

gross Rental Receivables 
 - Lease Rentals  17,703,847 1,862,837,402 444,405,792 2,324,947,041
 - Hire Purchase Rentals  13,229,759 15,118,896 - 28,348,655
  30,933,606 1,877,956,298 444,405,792 2,353,295,696
Less: unearned Income  (1,044,945) (503,229,823) (143,328,332) (647,603,100)
  29,888,661 1,374,726,475 301,077,460 1,705,692,596

Less : Allowance for Impairment Losses     (29,264,771)
Less : Rentals Received in Advance     (7,732,750)
     1,668,695,075
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18 Financial investments - available FoR sale
as at 31 march,    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs.

Government of Sri Lanka treasury Bills and Bonds (Note 18.1)   28,610,312 43,515,000
unquoted Equities - (Note 18.2)    4,700 4,700
    28,615,012 43,519,700

18.1 government of sri lanka treasury bills and bonds
as at 31 march,    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs.

Balance as at 01 April    43,515,000 121,589,821
Net Movement during the Year    (22,117,519) (68,540,428)
Gain / (Loss) on marked to Market valuation    7,212,831 (9,534,393)
Balance as at 31 March    28,610,312 43,515,000

product wise
Government of Sri Lanka treasury Bonds (Note 18.1.1)    15,837,566 8,356,285
Government of Sri Lanka treasury Bills (Note 18.1.2)    12,772,746 35,158,715
    28,610,312 43,515,000

18.1.1 Government of Sri Lanka treasury Bonds
 Face value year of cost of Fair value Rate of
   maturity investment  interest
 Rs.  Rs. Rs.

treasury Bond 1,650,000 2021 1,520,967 1,471,199 9.00%
treasury Bond 4,300,000 2021 3,889,406 3,834,033 9.00%
treasury Bond 4,069,812 2021 4,069,999 3,628,789 9.00%
treasury Bond 7,300,000 2022 8,215,508 6,903,546 11.00%
 17,319,812 17,695,880 15,837,566

18.1.2 Government of Sri Lanka treasury Bills
 Face value year of cost of Fair value Rate of
   maturity investment  interest
 Rs.  Rs. Rs.

treasury Bills 4,656,819 2017 4,449,898 4,330,440 9.30%
treasury Bills 1,219,027 2017 1,193,954 1,191,718 8.40%
treasury Bills 3,732,103 2017 3,563,718 3,460,691 9.45%
treasury Bills 4,087,128 2017 3,902,725 3,789,897 9.45%
 13,695,077  13,110,295 12,772,746
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18.2 unquoted equities 
as at 31 march, 2017 2016
  no. of carrying no. of carrying
  shares value shares value
   Rs.  Rs.

Credit Information Bureau  47 4,700 47 4,700
   4,700  4,700

19 otheR Financial assets
as at 31 march,    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs.

Refundable Deposits    22,643,000 22,312,600
Other Receivables    143,099,811 59,191,055
Provision for Impairments    (2,047,569) (1,690,303)
    163,695,242 79,813,352

20 Real estate stock
as at 31 march,    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs.

Real Estate Stock    555,772,973 554,792,976
Less : Allowance for Decrease in Net Realisable Value    (18,271,276) (18,271,276)
    537,501,697 536,521,700

21 investment pRopeRties
For the year ended 31 march,    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs.

Balance at 01 April    70,921,000 75,658,537
Disposal made during the Year    - (742,578)
Fair value adjustments during the Year    - (3,994,959)
Balance at 31 March    70,921,000 70,921,000

21.1 the Company owns lands and an apartment complex situated in Digana, Werahara, Kalpitiya and Kotte respectively held 
for capital appreciation.

21.2 the Company has no restrictions on the realisability of its investment properties.
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21 investment pRopeRties (CONTD.)
21.3 the last professional valuation of Investment properties (Lands and Buildings) have been determined based on valuations 

performed by, independent Chartered Valuation Surveyors, G.J. Sumanadasa - F.I.V (Sri Lanka) and Shiral I De Silva- F.I.V 
(Sri Lanka) on 31 March 2016.

 During the year Director's valuation was carried out for the investment properties of the company and determine the fair 
value of such properties are reasonably approximated to the fair value determined by the previous valuation.

21.4 Rental Income earned from Investment Property by the company amounted to Nill (2015/16-Rs Nill) and Direct Operating 
Expenses incurred in relation to the Investment Property amounted to Rs Nill (2015/16-Rs. Nill).

22 otheR non Financial assets
as at 31 march,    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs.

Prepayments    10,318,732 22,147,235
Prepaid cost -Easy Payment Loan    68,959,177 69,079,147
Prepaid cost -Staff Loan    16,793,142 3,533,854
Prepaid cost -Consumer Loan    119,335 628,621
Prepaid cost -Mortgage Loan    21,736,384 -
tax Receivables    23,550,339 10,365,044
Other Assets    1,078,912 2,836,552
    142,556,021 108,590,453

23 intangible assets 
as at 31 march    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs.

computer software
cost
Balance as at 01 April    43,833,140 39,839,684
Additions and Improvements    5,909,754 3,993,456
Balance as at 31 March    49,742,894 43,833,140

amortization
Balance as at 01 April    12,138,877 7,383,306
Charge for the Year    10,149,884 4,755,571
Balance as at 31 March    22,288,761 12,138,877

Carrying Amount as at 31 March    27,454,133 31,694,263
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24 pRopeRty, plant and eQuipment
  balance additions disposals/  balance
  as at  transfers as at
  01.04.2016   31.03.2017
  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

cost
Freehold assets
Freehold Land  - 11,655,000 - 11,655,000
Office Building  - 12,345,000 - 12,345,000
Furniture & Fittings  68,449,832 6,573,707 - 75,023,539
Office Equipment  44,975,629 33,844,961 - 78,820,590
Motor Vehicles & Accessories  29,629,759 - - 29,629,759
Computer Hardware  63,109,996 7,685,840 - 70,795,836
Leasehold Improvements (Fixtures and Fittings)  9,207,701 31,693,386 - 40,901,087
  215,372,917 103,797,894 - 319,170,811
 
assets on Finance leases 
Motor Vehicles  52,737,338 -  52,737,338
total Value of Depreciable Assets  268,110,255 103,797,894 - 371,908,149

  balance charge disposals balance
  as at for the  as at
  01.04.2016 year  31.03.2017
  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

accumulated depreciation
Freehold assets
Office Building  - 514,375 - 514,375
Furniture & Fittings  34,891,694 12,741,383 - 47,633,077
Office Equipment  15,219,279 12,463,275 - 27,682,554
Motor Vehicles & Accessories  14,221,187 2,003,751 - 16,224,938
Computer Hardware  26,777,025 14,108,916 - 40,885,941
Leasehold Improvements (Fixtures and Fittings)  - 11,529,974 - 11,529,974
  91,109,185 53,361,674 - 144,470,859

assets on Finance lease
Motor Vehicles  8,446,616 6,592,167  15,038,783
  99,555,801 59,953,841 - 159,509,642
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24 pRopeRty, plant and eQuipment (CONTD.)
24.1 carrying amounts
    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs.

Freehold Land    11,655,000 -
Office Building    11,830,625 -
Furniture & Fittings    27,390,462 33,558,138
Office Equipment    51,138,036 29,756,350
Motor Vehicles & Accessories    13,404,822 15,408,572
Computer Hardware    29,909,895 36,332,971
Leasehold Improvements (Fixtures and Fittings)    29,371,113 9,207,701

assets on Finance lease
Motor Vehicles    37,698,554 44,290,722
total Carrying Amount as at 31 March    212,398,507 168,554,454

24.2 Based on the assessment of potential impairment carried out internally by the Board of Directors as at 31 March 2017, no 
provision was required to be made in the Financial statements.

24.3 Property, Plant & Equipment included fully depreciated assets having a gross amount of Rs. 72,072,657/- as at 31 March 
2017 (2015/16 Rs. 31,734,669/-).

24.4 there were no capitalised borrowing costs related to the acquisition of Property, Plant & Equipment during the year  
(2015/16 - nil).

24.5 there were no restrictions on the title of the Property, Plant & Equipment as at 31 March 2017.

24.6 the items of Property,Plant and Equipment pledged as securities have been disclosed in Note 37.3 to these financial 
statements.

24.7 there were no items of Property, Plant & Equipment's retired from the active use as at 31 March 2017.

25 due to banks & Financial institutions
as at 31 march    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs.

Bank Overdrafts    94,492,589 166,919,023
Securitised Borrowings and Other Bank Facilities (Note 25.1 )   819,515,860 200,856,250
Finance Leases (Note 25.2)    30,565,534 39,087,485
total    944,573,983 406,862,758
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25.1 securitised borrowings & term loans

 as at  loans  interest   Repayments  as at  period security 

pledged

01.04.2016  obtained Recognized  capital  interest 31.03.2017 

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

secured borrowings

Hatton National Bank 

PLC

  16,706,250                -         815,106  16,706,250       815,106                -   12 Months Real estate 

Stock

Seylan Bank PLC  

(term Loan 01)

166,600,000                -     14,672,310 100,200,000   14,672,310   66,400,000 24 Months Lease Rental

Receivables of 

250 Mn

Sampath Bank PLC   17,550,000                -         947,303   17,550,000       947,303                -   12 Months Real Estate 

Stock

Seylan Bank PLC  

(term Loan 02)

               -   300,000,000               -                  -                  -   300,000,000 24 Months Lease Rental 

Receivables of 

Rs 250 Mn

Commercial Bank PLC                -     19,200,000    2,016,619    3,200,000    2,016,619   16,000,000 60 Months Kaduwela 

Branch Prop-

erty

Facility arranged by  

Agora Securities (Pvt) 

Ltd.

               -   223,309,255               -                  -                  -   223,309,255 14 Months Micro Loan 

Receivables of 

Rs 440 Mn

Seylan Bank PLC  

(Revolving Loan)

200,000,000                -                  -                  -   200,000,000 06 Months Lease Rental 

Receivables of 

250 Mn

200,856,250 742,509,255   18,451,338 137,656,250   18,451,338 805,709,255 

unsecured borrowings

Richard Pieris Finance 

Ltd

               -     80,000,000    4,983,152   66,193,395    4,983,152   13,806,605 6 Months

               -    80,000,000    4,983,152  66,193,395    4,983,152   13,806,605 

200,856,250 822,509,255   23,434,490 203,849,645   23,434,490 819,515,860 

25.2 Finance leases 
  as at new leases Repayments as at
  01.04.2016 obtained  31.03.2017
  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

NDB Bank PLC  39,087,485 - (8,521,951) 30,565,534
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25 due to banks & Financial institutions (CONTD.)
25.2 Finance leases (Contd.)
as at 31 march    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs.

Gross Liability    36,674,938 48,928,604
Less: Finance Charges allocated for Future Periods    (6,109,404) (9,841,119)
Net Liability    30,565,534 39,087,485

Repayable with in one year
Gross Liability    10,469,021 13,469,159
Less: Finance Charges allocated for Future Periods    (2,699,677) (4,357,637)
Net Liability    7,769,344 9,111,522

Repayable after one year before Five years
Gross Liability    26,205,917 35,459,445
Less: Finance Charges allocated for Future Periods    (3,409,727) (5,483,482)
Net Liability    22,796,190 29,975,963

26 deposits due to customeRs
as at 31 march    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs.

Fixed Deposits    919,132,050 926,579,321
Accrued Interest on Fixed Deposits    35,030,127 22,137,490
    954,162,177 948,716,811

27 debt instRuments issued and otheR boRRowed Funds
as at 31 march    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs.

Promissory Notes    6,669,486,377 7,640,981,340
Commercial Papers    321,015,806 401,618,285
Accrued Interest on Promissory Notes    154,480,871 135,971,578
Accrued Interest on Commercial Paper    25,294,770 18,781,242
    7,170,277,824 8,197,352,445



Kanrich Finance Ltd | Annual Report 2016/17 153

CEO’s Message
Business Profile

Management Discussion & Analysis
Capital Management Report

Corporate Governance Report
Committee Reports

Risk Management Report
Financial Statements

About this Report
Key Highlights for the year 

Company Overview
Board of Directors
Corporate Profile

Management Team
Chairman’s Message

28 otheR Financial liabilities
as at 31 march    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs.

Accrued Expenses    48,565,949 64,499,015
    48,565,949 64,499,015

29 net deFeRRed tax asset/ (liability)
29.1 summary of net deferred assets
as at 31 march,    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs.

Balance as at 01 April    108,071,396 (7,199,760)

Recognized in the profit or loss
Amounts Originating during the Year    (47,291,605) 113,916,285

Recognized in the other comprehensive income
Amounts Originating / (Reversing) during the Year    2,376,690 1,354,871
Balance as at 31 March    63,156,481 108,071,396

29.2 movement in Recognized deferred tax assets and liabilities
For the year ended 31 march, 2017
  balance  charged/ (credited) in  balance 
  as at 01  profit or loss oci as at 31 
  april 2016     march 2017
 
Property, Plant and Equipment  (78,294,086) 32,887,198 - (45,406,888)
Retirement Benefit Obligation  6,531,820 5,504,815 2,376,690 14,413,325
tax Losses  64,784,063 1,453,513 - 66,237,576
Carried Forward Impairment Provision  115,049,599 (87,137,131) - 27,912,468
  108,071,396 (47,291,605) 2,376,690 63,156,481

For the year ended 31 march, 2016
  balance  charged/ (credited) in  balance 
  as at 01  profit or loss oci as at 31 
  april 2015     march 2016
 
Property, Plant and Equipment  (12,631,900) (65,662,186) - (78,294,086)
Retirement Benefit Obligation  3,078,627 2,098,322 1,354,871 6,531,820
tax Losses  2,353,513 62,430,550 - 64,784,063
Carried Forward Impairment Provision  - 115,049,599 - 115,049,599
  (7,199,760) 113,916,285 1,354,871 108,071,396
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29 net deFeRRed tax asset/ (liability) (CONTD.)
29.3 Reconciliation of deferred tax asset/ (liability)
 2017 2016
  temporary  tax effect temporary tax effect 
  differences  differences 
  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

deferred tax liabilities on :
Property, Plant and Equipment  (162,167,461) (45,406,888) (279,621,739) (78,294,086)
  (162,167,461) (45,406,888) (279,621,739) (78,294,086)

deferred tax assets on :
Retirement Benefit Obligation  51,476,163 14,413,325 23,327,932 6,531,820
tax Losses  236,562,620 66,237,576 218,646,749 64,784,063
Carried Forward Impairment Provision  99,687,382 27,912,468 410,891,425 115,049,599
  387,726,165 108,563,369 652,866,106 186,365,482

  225,558,704 63,156,481 373,244,367 108,071,396

30 income tax expense
taxation has been computed according to the provisions of the Inland Revenue Act No.10 of 2006 and subsequent amendments 
thereto. taxation is provided at 28% of adjusted taxable Profit of the Company.

30.1 Recognized in the profit or loss
For the year ended 31 march,    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs.

Current Income tax Expense (Note 30.2)    112,818,745 497,756,543
Prior Years under / (Over) Provision    - 3,988,121
Deferred tax Credit (Note 29.1)    47,291,605 (113,916,285)
    160,110,350 387,828,379



Kanrich Finance Ltd | Annual Report 2016/17 155

CEO’s Message
Business Profile

Management Discussion & Analysis
Capital Management Report

Corporate Governance Report
Committee Reports

Risk Management Report
Financial Statements

About this Report
Key Highlights for the year 

Company Overview
Board of Directors
Corporate Profile

Management Team
Chairman’s Message

30.2 numerical Reconciliation of accounting profits to income tax expense
 2017
   leasing other  total
   business business 
   Rs. Rs. Rs.

Accounting Profit before tax   31,148,041 440,394,308 471,542,349

adjustments
Capital Portion of Lease Rentals Receivables   294,317,704 - 294,317,704
Exempt Income   - (27,495) (27,495)
Disallowable Expenses   82,255,158 405,681,197 487,936,355
Allowable Expenses   (425,636,774) (443,123,926) (868,760,700)
taxable Business Profit   (17,915,871) 402,924,084 385,008,213
Add: tax Loss on Leasing Business     17,915,871
total taxable Income     402,924,084
Income tax Rate     28%
Current Income tax Expense     112,818,745

 2016
   leasing  other total
   business business 
   Rs. Rs. Rs.

Accounting Profit before tax   37,698,260 998,193,452 1,035,891,712

adjustments
Capital Portion of Lease Rentals Receivables   88,361,731 - 88,361,731
Exempted Income   - (25,380) (25,380)
Disallowable Expenses   25,681,762 908,867,941 934,549,703
Allowable Expenses   (361,983,099) (129,334,074) (491,317,173)
taxable Business Profit   (210,241,346) 1,777,701,939 1,567,460,593
Add: tax Loss on Leasing Business     210,241,346
total taxable Income     1,777,701,939
Income tax Rate     28%
Current Income tax Expense     497,756,543

For the year ended 31 march,    2017 2016

Effective tax Rate    24% 48%
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30 income tax expense (CONTD.)
30.3 tax losses - leasing business
For the year ended 31 march,    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs.

tax Loss Brought Forward    218,646,750 8,405,404
Business Loss for the year    17,915,871 210,241,346
tax Loss Carried Forward    236,562,621 218,646,750

31 otheR liabilities 
as at 31 march,    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs.

Statutory Payables    72,279,667 92,406,070
Other Payables    338,782,771 411,289,720
    411,062,438 503,695,790

32 employee beneFits
as at 31 march,    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs.

Balance at the Beginning of the Year    23,327,932 10,910,094
Expense Recognized in the Income Statement (Note 32.1)    19,660,053 7,641,509
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income   8,488,178 4,838,829
Payments made during the Year    - (62,500)
Balance at the End of the Year    51,476,163 23,327,932

32.1 expense Recognised in the income statement
as at 31 march,    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs.

Current Service Cost    17,093,974 1,091,010
Interest Cost    2,566,079 6,550,499
    19,660,053 7,641,509
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32.2 actuarial assumptions
Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date.
as at 31 march,    2017 2016

Discount Rate    12% 11%
Salary scale    10% 10%
Staff turnover    29% 35%

mortality - ga 1983 mortality table
Retirement Age    55 Years 55 Years

32.3 An actuarial valuation of the gratuity liability was carried out as at 31 March 2017 by Messers. Smile Global (Pvt) Limited, 
a firm of professional actuaries, by using "Projected unit Credit Method", the method recommended by the Sri Lanka 
Accounting Standards - LKAS 19 "Employee Benefits".

 the liability is not externally funded.

32.4 sensitivity of assumptions used
the following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonable possible change in the key assumptions used with all other 
variables held constant, valuing gratuity liability, in respect of the year ended 31 March 2017.

 2017
increase/ (decrease)  increase/ (decrease) in sensitivity effect on  income sensitivity effect on employment 

in discount Rate salary increment statement increase/ (Reduction) benefit obligation increase/  

  in results for the year (decrease) in the liability

 
 1%                       1,410,931                    (1,410,931)
 -1%                     (1,505,350)                    1,505,350 
  1%                    (1,345,555)                    1,345,555 
  -1%                      1,282,137                    (1,282,137)

33 micRo insuRance ReseRve Fund
as at 31 march,    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs.

Balance at the Beginning of the Year    - 4,954,112
transfers to/(from) during the Year    50,205,025 89,997,547
utilization for the Settlement of Loans of Deceased Micro Loan Holders During the Year  (49,667,632) (94,951,659)
Balance at the end of the Year    537,393 -
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34 stated capital
34.1 ordinary shares
as at 31 march 2017 2016
  no of Rs. no of Rs. 
  shares  shares 

Balance as at 01 April  77,700,778 572,993,044 77,700,778 572,993,044
Issued during the Year  - - - -
Balance as at 31 March  77,700,778 572,993,044 77,700,778 572,993,044

34.2 "12% non cumulative non Redeemable
as at 31 march 2017 2016
  no of Rs. no of Rs. 
  shares  shares 

Balance as at 01 April  5,000,000 100,000,000 5,000,000 100,000,000
Issued during the Year  - - - -
Balance as at 31 March  5,000,000 100,000,000 5,000,000 100,000,000

total  82,700,778 672,993,044 82,700,778 672,993,044

34.3 Rights of shareholders
the holders of ordinary shares confer their right to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote 
per share at the meeting. All shares rank equally with regard to the Company's residual assets.
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35 ReseRves
as at 31 march    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs.

Statutory Reserve Fund    49,322,413 33,750,813
General Reserve    280,000 280,000
Available for Sales Reserve    (2,321,562) (9,534,393)
Investment Fund Reserve    - -
    47,280,851 24,496,420

35.1 statutory Reserve Fund
Statutory Reserve Fund is a capital reserve which contains profits transferred as required by Section 3(b)(ii) of Central Bank 
Direction No. 1 of 2003.

35.2 general Reserve
General reserve comprises the amounts appropriated by the Board of Directors as a General Reserve.

35.3 available For sale Reserve
the Available For Sale Reserve comprises the cumulative net change in fair value of available-for-sale financial investments, until 
the assets are derecognised or impaired.

35.4 investment Fund account (iFa)
Finance Companies are required to transfer 8% of the profits for the payment of Value Added tax (VAt) on financial services 
and 5% of profit before tax calculated for the payment of income tax to a fund identifies as "Investment Fund Account" (IFA) as 
per a proposal made in the Government Budget 2011. the Operations of this fund was ceased with effect from 01 October 2014 
and the balance as at the time was transferred to Retained Earnings based on the regulations imposed by Central Bank of Sri 
Lanka.
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36.2 FaiR value oF Financial instRuments
the following is a description of how fair values are determined for financial instruments that are recorded at fair value using 
valuation techniques. these incorporate the participant would make when valuing the instruments. Company's estimate of 
assumptions that a market participant would make when valuing the instruments.

36.2.1 Determination of Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy
the Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation 
techniques.

level 1 : quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
level 2 : other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either   
  directly or indirectly

level 3 : techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable   
  market data.

the following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy.

  level 1 level 2 level 3 total
  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

as at 31 march 2017
Financial Investments - Available for Sale  - 28,610,312 4,700 28,615,012
  - 28,610,312 4,700 28,615,012

as at 31 march 2016
Financial Investments - Available for Sale  - 43,515,000 4,700 43,519,700
  - 43,515,000 4,700 43,519,700
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36 Financial instRuments (CONTD.)
36.2 FaiR value oF Financial instRuments (Contd.)
36.2.2 Estimated Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities Carried at Other than Fair Value
Set out below is the comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts of fair values of the company's financial instruments that are 
not carried at fair value in the financial statements. this table does not include the fair values of non- financial assets and non- 
financial liabilities.

 2017 2016
  carrying  Fair value carrying  Fair value 
  amount  amount
  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Financial assets 
Cash and Bank Balances  182,029,574 182,029,574 398,997,332 398,997,332
Placement with Banks & Financial Institutions  866,665,646 866,665,646 803,388,882 803,388,882
Loans and Advances  7,562,970,762 7,562,970,762 8,036,898,305 8,036,898,305
Lease Rentals and Hire Purchase Receivables  1,675,933,302 1,675,933,302 1,668,695,075 1,668,695,075
Other Financial Assets  163,695,242 163,695,242 79,813,352 79,813,352
total Financial assets  10,451,294,526 10,451,294,526 10,987,792,946 10,987,792,946

Financial liabilities
Due to Fiancial Institutions  944,573,983 944,573,983 406,862,758 406,862,758
Due to Customers  954,162,177 954,162,177 948,716,811 948,716,811
Debt Instruments Issued and Other Borrowed Funds  7,170,277,824 7,170,277,824 8,197,352,445 8,197,352,445
Other Financial Liabilities  48,565,949 48,565,949 64,499,015 64,499,015
total Financial liabilities  9,117,579,933 9,117,579,933 9,617,431,029 9,617,431,029

Fair value of Financial assets and liabilities not carried at Fair value
the following describes the methodologies and assumptions used to determine the fair values for those financial instruments 
which are not already recorded at fair value in the Financial Statements.

assets for which Fair value approximates carrying value
"For financial assets and financial liabilities that have a short term maturity (original maturities less than a year), it is assumed that 
the carrying amounts approximate their fair values. this assumption is also applied to fixed deposits, certificate of deposits and 
savings deposits without a specific maturity.

Long term deposits accepted from customers for which periodical interest is paid and loans and advances granted to customers 
with a variable rate are also considered to be carried at fair value in the books.

Fixed Rate Financial instruments
the fair value of fixed rate financial assets and liabilities carried at amortised cost are estimated by comparing the contractual 
interest rates with current market rates prevailing for similar financial instruments. the estimated fair value of fixed interest 
bearing deposits is based on discounted cash flows using prevailing market interest rates for deposits of similar maturity as at the 
reporting date.
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the above table summarises the carrying amounts and the Company’s estimate of fair values of those financial assets and 
liabilities not presented in the Statement of Financial Position at fair value. the fair values in the table above may be different 
from the actual amounts that will be received / paid on the settlement or maturity of the financial instrument.

37 contingent liabilities and commitments
37.1 contingencies
there were no material contingent liabilities outstanding as at the reporting date other than gurantees provided to third parties 
amounting to Rs. 10.5 Mn. 2015/16 - Rs. 1.9Mn)

37.2 Future monthly commitments on operating leases
the company leases number of office buildings under operating leases. the leases typically run for a period of 5 years with an 
option to renew the lease after that date.

    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs.

Less than One Year    25,232,336 62,864,686
Between One and Five Years    50,906,697 121,475,780
More than Five Years    - 3,642,100

37.3 assets pledged
Following assets have been pledged as securities for liabilities.

Funding institute nature of assets nature of liability value of assets 
pledged (Rs.)

included under

Seylan Bank PLC Leases & Hire  
Purchases  
Receivables

Securitized  
Borrowings & Bank  
Overdraft

850 Mn Lease Rental Receiv-
ables

Sampath bank PLC Fixed Deposits Bank Overdraft 78 Mn Placement with Banks 
and Financial  
Institutions

Commercial Bank PLC treasury Bills Bank Overdraft 7 Mn Placement with Banks 
and Financial  
Institutions

Commercial Bank PLC Kaduwela Branch 
Property

Mortgage Loan 24 Mn Kaduwela Branch 
Property

Facility arranged by Agora 
Securities (Pvt) Ltd

Micro Receivables Securitized  
Borrowings

440 Mn Micro Receivables
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37 contingent liabilities and commitments (CONTD.)
37.4 litigations against the company
Litigation is a common occurrence in the industry due to the nature of the business undertaken. the Company has formal 
controls and policies in place for managing legal claims. Once professional advice has been obtained and the amount of loss 
is reasonably estimated, the Company makes adjustments to account for any adverse effects which the claims may have on its 
financial standing.

the Company confirms that there is no case filed against the Company which is not disclosed which would have a material 
Impact on the financial position of the Company.

37.5 capital commitments
there were no material capital commitments which require disclosure in the Financial Statements as at reporting date.

38 Related paRty disclosuRes
the Company carries out transactions in the ordinary course of its business with parties who are defined as related parties in 
the Sri Lanka Accounting Standard - LKAS 24 "Related Party Disclosures", the details of which are reported below. the pricing 
applicable to such transactions is based on the assessment of risk and pricing model of the Company and is comparable with 
what is applied to transactions between the Company and its unrelated Customers.

38.1 parent & ultimate controlling party
In the opinion of Directors, the Company’s immediate and ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party is Mutual Holdings 
Limited.

38.2 transactions with Related parties

name of the company interest nature of transac-
tion

transaction 
value Rs.

balance as at 
31/03/2017 Rs.

Mutual Holdings Limited Parent Company Dividend Paid           42,616,687                           -   

38.2 transactions with key management personnel (kmps) and the close Family members (cFm)
According to Sri Lanka Accounting Standard - LKAS 24 "Related Party Disclosures", Key management personnel, are those having 
authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity. Accordingly, the Board of Directors 
(including executive and non-executive Directors) have been classified as Key Management Personnel of the Company.

CFM of a KMP are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that individual in their 
dealings with the entity. they may include;

(a)   the individual’s domestic partner and children;
(b)  children of the individual’s domestic partner; and
(c)   dependents of the individual or the individual’s domestic partner

there were no transactions with CFMs during the year.

notes to the Financial statements Contd.
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38.2.1 Key Management Personnel Compensation
there were no compensation paid to Key Management Personnel During the year other than those discussed below,

For the year ended 31 march,    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs.

Short term Employment Benefits    32,211,119 29,171,855
    32,211,119 29,171,855

38.2.2 there were no loans granted to directors during the year or outstanding as at the reporting date.

39 subseQuent events
there were no material circumstances have arisen since the reporting date, which would require adjustment to or disclosure in 
the financial statements.

40 compaRative FiguRes
to facilitate comparison, relevant balances pertaining to the previous year have been re-classified to conform to current year's 
classification and presentation.

41 diRectoR's Responsibility FoR the Financial statements
Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Sri 
Lanka Accounting Standards. this responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant 
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the 
circumstances.

42 Risk management
42.1 introduction
Risk is inherent in a financial business and such risks are managed through a process of ongoing identification, measurement 
and monitoring. this process of risk management is critical to the Company’s continuing profitability and each individual within 
the Company is accountable for the risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilities.

the Company is primarily exposed to credit risk, interest rate risk, operational risk and liquidity risk the management of which is 
explained below.
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42 Risk management (CONTD.)
42.1 introduction (Contd.)
42.1.1 Risk Management structure
the Board of Directors is responsible for establishing the overall risk management framework within the Company. Integrated 
Risk Management Committee (IRMC), which is a sub-committee of the board has been established with delegated risk 
management responsibilities. the IRMC plays a vital role in establishing best practices in relation to risk policies and practices 
within the Company.

the activities of the Company’s risk management system take place at three broad levels of hierarchy, as follows:

- First line
Overall financial risks are monitored at the IRMC level, and the decisions made by the IRMC are communicated to the Board of 
Directors. the Board approves the risk policies and directions issued to the management by the IRMC.

- second line
Development and implementation of underlying procedures, processes and controls are carried out at the Management Level. 
Assuring the compliance with laid down policies, procedures and controls and reviewing the outcomes of operations, and 
measuring and analyzing risk related information is also performed at this level.

- third line
the individuals accountable for the risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilities are required to comply with approved 
policies, procedures and controls.

42.1.2 Risk measurement and reporting system
A risk management process has been developed and is continuously reviewed by the IRMC together with the operational 
management. Further the Assets and Liabilities Committee (ALCO) also reviews interest rate and liquidity risks.

the KFL has set risk tolerance limits based on its risk appetite and risk indicators are continiously monitored by the respective 
departments. Further risk and compliance officer independently monitors compliance related issues and deviations are reported 
to IRMC.

the decisions and directives of the IRMC with regard to risk related issues are communicated to the operational management for 
implementation and rectification. Accordingly the relevant risk owner is accountable for mitigate risks.

42.2 credit Risk
Credit risk is the potential loss incurred in the event that a borrower fails to fulfil agreed obligations. the Company’s credit risk 
arises mainly from various accommodations granted and could be identified as the most significant risk faced by the Company.

impairment assessment
the company uses a collective and individual model for the recognition of losses on impaired financial assets for accounting 
purpose.

notes to the Financial statements Contd.
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individual impairment
the company makes provision for impairment taking significant loan accommodations individually if objective evidence of loss 
events exists

collective impairment
the provision for collective impairment is determined taking into account both portfolio factors and external environmental 
factors. Portfolio factors relates to bad signals with regard to recovery pattern of borrowers. External factors relates to possible 
economic, political or geographical factors that affect recovery pattern of borrowers.

mitigation 
Credit is required to be granted according to the approved policies and procedures of the Company. Special attention is given 
to credit risk management in terms of analyzing customer credit worthiness through length credit evaluation process before 
credit facilities are offered. Repayment of accommodations granted is closely monitored by those responsible for granting various 
facilities as well as those directly responsible for recovery activities. Indicators have been developed to measure risks associated 
with credit which are reviewed on a continuous basis for the entire organisation as well as for each product and operational 
location.

micro loans
Micro finance loans form a substantial part of the loans and advances portfolio of KFL. It is the general practise with 
regard to granting Micro finance accommodations that loans are granted without any security from the borrower. As these 
accommodations are not covered by collateral they could lead to substantial credit risks to the Company. In order to mitigate 
such credit risks, the following measures have been taken.

- Loans are granted after careful evaluation of the purpose for which they are taken and the repayment capacity,
- CRIB reports will be called for micro accommodations more than Rs 100,000/- to aviod mulitiple borrowings and granting to 

undesirable borrowers,
- Weekly collection system which is closely monitored for each loan granted,
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42 Risk management (CONTD.)
42.2 credit Risk (Contd.)
42.2.1 Credit Quality by class of Financial Assets
as at  31 march 2017  neither past  past due past due and total
  due nor  but not individually 
  impaired individually impaired 
   impaired  
  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

assets    
Cash and Cash Equivalents  182,029,574 - - 182,029,574
Placement with Banks & Financial Institutions  861,958,157 - 4,707,489 866,665,646
Loans and Receivables  6,180,915,825 1,501,749,627 570,377,915 8,253,043,367
Lease Rental & Hire Purchase Receivables  547,566,358 1,097,762,823 93,898,031 1,739,227,212
Financial Investments - Available for Sale  28,615,012 - - 28,615,012
Other Financial Assets  163,695,242 - - 163,695,242
total Financial assets  7,964,780,168 2,599,512,450 668,983,435 11,233,276,053

as at  31 march 2016  neither past  past due past due and total
  due nor  but not individually 
  impaired individually impaired 
   impaired  
  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Cash and Cash Equivalents  398,997,332 - - 398,997,332
Placement with Banks & Financial Institutions  803,388,882 - - 803,388,882
Loans and Receivables  7,147,994,944 1,034,416,793 585,330,302 8,767,742,039
Lease Rental & Hire Purchase Receivables  582,651,951 1,087,220,688 27,787,507 1,697,660,146
Financial Investments - Available for Sale  43,519,700 - - 43,519,700
Other Financial Assets  79,813,352 - - 79,813,352
total Financial assets  9,056,366,161 2,121,637,481 613,117,809 11,791,121,451
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42.2.2 Aging Analysis of past due (i.e. facilities in arrears of 1 day and above) but not impaired loans by class of financial assets.

as at  31 march 2017 past due but not individually impaired 
 less than  31 to 60 61 to 90 more than  
 30 days days days  91 days total
 Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Loans and Advances 1,346,682,377 102,515,200 10,099,779 42,452,272 1,501,749,628
Lease Rental Receivables & Hire 
 Purchase Receivables 1,097,762,823 - - - 1,097,762,823
 2,444,445,200 102,515,200 10,099,779 42,452,272 2,599,512,451

as at  31 march 2016 past due but not individually impaired 
 less than  31 to 60 61 to 90 more than  
 30 days days days  91 days total
 Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Loans and Advances 976,278,092 36,569,821 13,153,659 8,415,221 1,034,416,794
Lease Rental & Hire Purchase  
 Receivables 1,087,220,688 - - - 1,087,220,688
 2,063,498,780 36,569,821 13,153,659 8,415,221 2,121,637,482

42.2.3 Credit Concentration Risk
KFL monitors credit concentration risk referring to degree of credit exposure to various sectors

sectors  2017 % 2016 %
  Rs. 000  Rs. 000

Agriculture and Fishing  12,982 0.13% 1,884,820 18.00%
Construction  15,559 0.16% 103,013 0.98%
Financial and Business Services  177 0.00% 241,084 2.30%
Manufacturing  67,557 0.68% 1,907,055 18.21%
New Economy  970 0.01% 18,626 0.18%
Other Services  8,637,203 86.44% 4,850,323 46.31%
trading  - 0.00% 1,347,320 12.86%
tourism  1,021 0.01% 63,472 0.61%
transport  1,256,802 12.58% 57,722 0.55%
  9,992,271 100.00% 10,473,435 100.00%
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42 Risk management (CONTD.)
42.2 credit Risk (Contd.)
42.2.4 Analysis of maximum exposure to credit risk and collateral
the following table shows the maximum exposure to credit risk by class of financial assets.

as at 31st march 2017   maximum  net net
   exposure  collateral exposure
   to credit 
   Risk  
   Rs. Rs. Rs.

assets 
Cash and Cash Equivalents   182,029,574 - 182,029,574
Placement with Banks & Financial Institutions   866,665,646 - 866,665,646
Loans and Receivables   8,253,043,367 1,468,793,667 6,784,249,700
Lease Rental & Hire Purchase Receivables   1,739,227,212 1,672,453,048 60,248,764
Financial Investments - Available for Sale   28,615,012 - 28,615,012
Other Financial Assets   163,695,242 - 163,695,242
total Financial assets   11,233,276,053 3,141,246,715 8,085,503,938

42.3 liquidity Risk & Funding management
Liquidity risk is the risk of only being able to meet liquidity obligations at increased cost or, ultimately, being unable to meet 
obligations as they fall due. In the case of the Company this relates mainly to the ability to meet refund of deposits obtained 
from the public as they fall due and settlement of instalments on bank and other borrowings.

mitigation:
Special attention is focused on the liquidity of the Company as it provides critical defence against this and several other risks 
such as reputational, compliance, and financial risks. A liquidity policy has been developed and integrated in to risk policy to 
provide necessary guidelines. the Company’s projected liquidity requirements are assessed on a continuous basis to ensure that 
they can be met as and when such requirements arise. the Company also strives to ensure that the liquidity ratios required to be 
maintained by the applicable Central Bank regulations are complied with.

42.3.1 Statutory Liquid Asset Ratio
As per the requirements of Finance Companies (Liquid Assets) Direction No. 04 of 2013, Company has to maintain minimum 
liquid assets as follows:

a)  10% of the outstanding value of the time deposits received by the company and accrued interest payable at the close of 
business on such day; and

b)  10% of total outstanding borrowings and any other payable that may be determined by the CBSL excluding the borrowings 
that are included in the capital funds of the company and borrowings which are secured by the mortgage of any assets of the 
company.
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the company further maintains a portfolio of treasury bills and government securities equivalent to 7.5% of the average of 
month end total deposit liabilities and and unsecured borrowings of 12 months of the previous year.

the company monitors the following liquidity related ratios also on regular basis

    2017 2016

Average for the Year    11.37% 13.67%
Maximum for the Year    14.35% 26.22%
Minimum for the Year    10.35% 10.86%

42.3.2 Analysis of Financial Assets and Liabilities by Remaining Contractual Maturities
the table below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities 
as at 31 March 2017.

as at 31 march 2017, on demand less than  03-12 1-3 years 3-5  years over 05 total

  03 months months    years 

 Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Financial assets 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 182,029,574 - - - - - 182,029,574

Placement with Banks 478,448,030 151,965,541 234,709,307 - 1,542,768 - 866,665,646

Loans and Receivables 274,228,452 2,684,116,756 3,849,169,262 1,046,455,207 338,470,435 60,603,255 8,253,043,367

Lease Rental & Hire Purchase 

 Receivables 5,970,082 178,899,702 423,390,095 758,616,544 372,350,789 - 1,739,227,212

Financial Investments - 

 Available for Sale - 12,772,746 - - - 15,842,266 28,615,012

Other Financial Assets - - 163,695,242 - - - 163,695,242

total Financial assets 940,676,138 3,027,754,745 4,670,963,906 1,805,071,751 712,363,992 76,445,521 11,233,276,053

 

Financial liabilities 

Due to Banks & Financial 

 Institutions 94,492,589 63,510,000 597,779,665 188,791,729 - - 944,573,983

Due to Customers 13,727,713 284,581,238 336,677,723 212,792,679 106,382,824 - 954,162,177

Debt Instruments Issued and 

 Other Borrowed Funds 318,152,846 3,407,647,211 3,424,199,188 20,278,579 - - 7,170,277,824

Other Financial Liabilities - - 48,565,949 - - - 48,565,949

total Financial liabilities 426,373,148 3,755,738,449 4,407,222,525 421,862,987 106,382,824 - 9,117,579,933
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42.3 liquidity Risk & Funding management (Contd.)
42.3.2 Analysis of Financial Assets and Liabilities by Remaining Contractual Maturities (Contd.)
the table below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities 
as at 31 March 2016.

as at 31 march 2016, on demand less than 03-12 1-3 years 01-05 over 05 total 

  03 months months    years years 

 Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Financial assets 

Cash and Bank Balances 398,997,332 - - - - - 398,997,332

Placement with Banks and 

 Financial Institutions 76,697,594 226,950,579 498,154,737 1,535,972 - - 803,338,882

Loans and Receivables 187,944,411 37,161,048 6,346,769,964 1,302,189,615 675,847,906 217,829,095 8,767,742,039

Lease Rental & Hire Purchase 

 Receivables 1,795,140 67,264 81,365,391 189,739,282 1,139,332,082 285,660,687 1,697,959,846

Financial Investments - 

 Available for Sale - 35,158,715 - - - 8,360,985 43,519,700

Other Financial Assets - - 79,813,352 - - - 79,813,352

total Financial assets 665,434,477 299,337,606 7,006,103,444 1,493,464,869 1,815,179,988 511,850,767 11,791,371,151

 

Financial liabilities  

Due to Banks and Financial 

 Institutions 166,378,658 8,582,443 24,438,469 207,463,188 - - 406,862,758

Due to Customers 38,700,895 138,145,370 619,406,869 99,524,301 52,939,376 - 948,716,811

Debt Instruments Issued and 

 Other Borrowed Funds 174,846,975 436,135,080 7,465,045,460 121,324,931 - - 8,197,352,446

Other Financial Liabilities - - 64,499,015 - - - 64,499,015

total Financial Liabilities 379,926,528 582,862,893 8,173,389,813 428,312,420 52,939,376 - 9,617,431,030

total net Financial 

 assets/(liabilities) 285,507,949 (283,525,287) (1,167,286,369) 1,065,152,449 1,762,240,612 511,850,767 2,173,940,121

42.4 market Risk
Market risk is the risk arising from fluctuations in market variables such as interest rates, foreign currencies, equity prices and 
gold prices. this is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in the 
market variables. As the Company’s operations involve granting accommodations, accepting deposits and obtaining funding 
facilities, the movements in interest rates constitute the most important market risk for the Company.

mitigation:
Movements in interest rates are closely monitored. Further the Company maintains an adequate Net Interest Margin (NIM) so 
that increases in interest expenses can be absorbed. the assets and liabilities maturity mismatch is also closely monitored so that 
the possible adverse effects arising due to interest rate movements could be minimised. Although the mismatch in assets and 
liabilities in terms of maturity is widely prevalent in the industry, in view of the composition of the portfolio of the Company, 
this mismatch has been mitigated to a significant extent.

notes to the Financial statements Contd.
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42.4.1 Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair values of financial 
instruments.

42.4.1.1 Interest Rate Sensitivity
the following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held 
constant, of the company's Income Statement & Equity, arising from interest bearing loans.

increase/(decrease) in basis points    sensitivity  sensitivity
    of profit/(loss) of equity
    2017 2017

-1%    109,300,518 109,300,518
1%    (109,300,518) (109,300,518)

42.4.1.2 Interest rate risk exposure on Financial Assets & Liabilities
the table below analyses the Company's interest rate risk exposure on financial assets & liabilities. the Company's assets & 
liabilities are included at carrying amounts and categorized by the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity dates.

as at 31 march 2017 up to 03  03-12 01-05 over 05 non interest total 
 months months years years bearing as at 31   
      march 2017
 Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

assets 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 87,614,384 - - - 94,415,190 182,029,574
Placement with Banks and 
 Financial Institutions 630,413,571 234,709,307 1,542,768 - - 866,665,646
Loans and Receivables 2,958,345,208 3,849,169,262 1,384,925,642 60,603,255 - 8,253,043,367
Lease Rental & Hire 
 Purchase Receivables 184,869,784 423,390,095 1,130,967,333 - - 1,739,227,212
Financial Investments - 
 Available for Sale 12,772,746 - 15,837,566 4,700 28,615,012
Other Financial Assets - - - - 163,695,242 163,695,242
total Financial assets 3,874,015,693 4,507,268,664 2,517,435,743 76,440,821 258,115,132 11,233,276,053
 
Financial liabilities 
Due to Banks 158,002,589 597,779,665 188,791,729 - - 944,573,983
Due to Customers 298,308,951 336,677,723 319,175,503 - - 954,162,177
Debt Instruments Issued and 
 Other Borrowed Funds 3,725,800,057 3,424,199,188 20,278,579 - - 7,170,277,824
Other Financial Liabilities - - - - 48,565,949 48,565,949
 4,182,111,597 4,358,656,576 528,245,811 - 48,565,949 9,117,579,933

interest sensitivity gap (308,095,904) 148,612,088 1,989,189,932 76,440,821 209,549,183 2,115,696,120
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42 Risk management (CONTD.)
42.4 market Risk (Contd.)
42.4.1.2 Interest rate risk exposure on Financial Assets & Liabilities
as at 31 march 2017 up to 03  03-12 01-05 over 05 non interest total 
 months months years years bearing as at 31  
      march 2017
 Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

assets 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 134,328,267 - - - 264,669,065 398,997,332
Placement with Banks and  
 Financial Institutions 303,648,173 498,154,737 1,535,972 - - 803,338,882
Loans and Receivables 225,105,460 6,346,769,964 1,978,037,521 217,829,094 - 8,767,742,039
Lease Rental & Hire Purchase  
 Receivables 1,862,404 81,432,655 1,329,071,364 285,593,423 - 1,697,959,846
Financial Investments -  
 Available for Sale 35,158,715 - 8,360,985 - 43,519,700
Other Financial Assets - - - - 79,813,352 79,813,352
total Financial assets 700,103,019 6,926,357,356 3,308,644,857 511,783,502 344,482,417 11,791,371,151

Financial liabilities
Due to Banks 174,961,101 24,438,469 207,463,188 - - 406,862,758
Due to Customers 176,846,265 619,406,869 152,463,677 - - 948,716,811
Debt Instruments Issued  
 and Other Borrowed Funds 610,982,055 7,465,045,460 121,324,930 - - 8,197,352,445
Other Financial Liabilities - - - 64,499,015 64,499,015
 962,789,421 8,108,890,798 481,251,795 - 64,499,015 9,617,431,029

interest sensitivity gap (262,686,402) (1,182,533,442) 2,827,393,062 511,783,502 279,983,402 2,173,940,121

42.5 operational Risk
Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the Company's 
processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks such 
as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of corporate behavior. Operational 
risks arise from all of the Company's operations. the Company's objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the 
avoidance of financial losses and damage to the Company's reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control 
procedures that restrict initiative and creativity. the primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls 
is to address operational risk assigned to senior management within each business line. this responsibility is supported by the 
development of overall Company standards for the management of operational risk in the following areas:

 N  Requirements for appropriate segregation of duties, including the independent authorisation of transactions.
 N  Requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions.
 N  Compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements.
 N  Documentation of controls and procedures.
 N  Requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of controls and procedures to address 

the risks identified.

notes to the Financial statements Contd.
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 N  Requirements for the reporting of operational losses and proposed remedial actions.
 N  Development of contingency plans.
 N  training and professional development.
 N  Risk mitigation, including insurance where it is effective.

Compliance with Company standards is supported by a programme of periodic reviews undertaken by Internal Audit. the results 
of Internal Audit reviews are discussed with the management of the business line to which they relate, with summaries submitted 
to the Audit Committee and senior management of the Company.

43 capital management
the Company maintains capital in order to cover risks inherent in the business and maintain the statutory capital adequacy 
requirements. the adequacy of the Company's capital is monitored based on the measures, rules and ratios adopted by Central 
Bank of Sri Lanka.

the primary objective of Company's capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies with Statutory 
requirements and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximize shareholders' value. the Regulatory 
Capital requirements for the Finance Companies are set by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka.

the details of the computation of risk weighted assets, capital and the ratios of the Company are given below:

capital adequacy
total Risk weighted assets computation
as at 31 march balance Risk weight  Risk weighted balance
 2017 Rs. 2016 Rs. Factor 2017 Rs. 2016 Rs.
 (000) (000)  % (000) (000)

assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 182,030 398,997 0% - -
Placement with Banks & Other Financial  
 Institutions 866,666 803,389 20% 173,333 160,678
Financial Investments - Available for Sale 28,615 43,520 20% 5,723 8,704

loans and advances:     - 
Loans against Fixed Deposits 30,984 40,464 0% - -
Loans against Gold and Gold Jewellery
 (Less than 10% in total Advances) 191,684 - 0% - -
Loans and Receivables from Other Customers 8,910,173 9,524,497 100% 8,910,173 9,524,497
Loan against Real Estates 106,063 140,632 50% 53,031 70,316
Other Investments (excluding items deducted  
 from total Capital 608,423 607,442 100% 608,423 607,442
Other Assets 369,408 188,404 100% 369,408 188,404
Property, Plant and Equipment 212,399 168,554 100% 212,399 168,554
Intangible Assets 27,454 31,694 100% 27,454 31,694
total Risk weighted assets 11,533,898 11,947,593  10,359,943 10,760,289
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43 capital management (CONTD.)
capital adequacy (Contd.)
total capital base computation
as at 31 march,    2017 2016
    Rs. Rs.

tier i : core capital
Stated Capital    672,993 672,993
Statutory Reserve Fund    49,322 33,751
General Reserve    280 280
Retained Earnings    1,073,048 852,091
total tier i capital    1,795,643 1,559,115

tier ii : supplementary capital    - -
Eligible Approved unsecured Subordinated term Debt    - -
total eligible tier ii capital    - -
total capital    1,795,643 1,559,115

deductions
Investments in Capital of Other Banks    - -
Capital Base    1,795,643 1,559,115

computation of capital adequacy Ratios
core capital Ratio (minimum Requirement 5%)
Core Capital x 100    17.33% 14.49%
Risk Weighted Assets
total Risk weighted capital Ratio (minimum Requirement 10%)
Capital Base x 100    17.33% 14.49%
Risk Weighted Assets
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Financial performance change 2016/2017 2015/2016 2014/2015 2013/2014 2012/2013

Profit/ Loss Before tax -51% 622,375,599 1,259,364,150 696,741,115 40,859,451 16,547,495
Profit/ Loss After tax -52% 311,431,999 648,063,333 361,473,097 14,571,315 13,115,703
Net Interest Income -25% 2,404,611,391 3,192,885,645 1,704,354,954 609,128,790 257,243,409
Other Operating Income -13% 121,140,432 140,008,803 292,678,884 1,915,032 2,907,913
total Income -20% 3,532,463,427 4,396,400,738 2,872,211,513 1,441,162,747 558,434,225
Operating Expenses 3% 1,605,617,152 1,565,755,473 1,095,114,899 650,174,629 154,478,372
Interest Income -20% 3,411,322,995 4,252,396,976 2,533,083,327 1,296,154,234 523,438,499
Interest Expenses -5% 1,006,711,604 1,059,511,331 828,728,373 687,025,444 266,195,090
Staff Cost 12% 670,897,877 600,443,430 412,365,234 260,347,547 123,969,645
General Admin Expenses 16% 224,631,110 194,073,434 221,724,627 148,486,973 142,078,727
Fee & commission Income -61% 45,488,897 117,157,349 331,082,833 143,093,481 32,087,813
Impairment Charges and write off -41% 297,759,072 507,774,826 205,177,824 61,935,016 9,643,268

Financial position 
total Lending -5% 9,238,904,064 9,705,593,380 9,468,637,929 3,808,757,615 2,252,940,276
Loans & Advances -6% 7,562,970,762 8,036,898,305 9,387,911,815 3,753,116,000 2,206,019,983
Lease & Hire Purchase Receivables 0% 1,675,933,302 1,668,695,075 80,726,114 55,641,615 46,920,293
Funds -5% 9,069,013,984 9,552,932,014 10,284,516,721 4,665,773,796 3,032,998,125
Public Borrowings -11% 8,124,440,001 9,146,069,256 8,878,829,926 4,410,445,977 2,303,173,430
total Assets -4% 11,533,897,377 12,055,665,913 11,533,011,812 5,061,667,068 3,434,290,247
total Liabilities -7% 9,740,575,506 10,506,085,426 10,613,208,354 4,705,514,014 3,111,414,229
Share Holders’ funds 16% 1,793,321,877 1,549,580,490 919,803,458 356,153,054 322,876,018
Stated Capital 0% 672,993,044 672,993,044 672,993,044 472,993,044 472,993,044
Property Plant & Equipment 26% 212,398,507 168,554,458 87,155,490 69,551,790 63,700,616

Five yeaR summaRy
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4 R S Goonetilleke          - - - -
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6 t L B Hurulle - - - - - - - - -    
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1 P A Pemathilake Chairman       

2 Shiran Weerasinghe Member       

3 Aloka Wahalawatta Member       

4 Sadeepa Ratnayake Member       

5 Eranda Godage Member       

6 Ravi Joshep Member - - -    

7 thushara Wijewardena Member - - -    

8 Harshadeva Abayajeewa Member       

9 Vijitha Banduwansa Member       
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shaRe holdeRs analysis

name    shares %
 
Mutual Holdings Limited     50,036,731  64.40%
First Capital Limited     8,270,077  10.64%
Alfred Joe Constantine Senathipathy     4,800,000  6.18%
tamari  Dammika Sellahewa     2,000,001  2.57%
Dhammika Migara Siriwardhana      1,190,129  1.53%
Don Shiran Iranga  Weerasinghe      1,190,129  1.53%
Korale Hewage Soorasena     1,000,000  1.29%
Neluka  Devani   Jayatunga Perera     879,502  1.13%
Central Investments & Finance PLC     833,333  1.07%
Yoshida tetsuro     700,000  0.90%
Sarath Kumara Munathanthirige     500,000  0.64%
Suren Kumar  Liyanage     356,792  0.46%
D. M.Meegaswatte     351,071  0.45%
Mythree Parackrama Bandara Meegaswatte     281,191  0.36%
Jayathilake Mudiyanselage Gunathilake     269,000  0.35%
Liyanka Ranasinghe     250,000  0.32%
Jayantha Bodhipala Edirisinghe     250,000  0.32%
C. S. K. Meegaswatte     242,687  0.31%
Jayathilaka Hitihamillage   Abeyaratna     200,000 0.26%
Mahawidanage Premadasa Wijeweera Ginawardana      200,000  0.26%

shaRe distRibution
 as at 31.03.2017 as at 31.03.2016 
 category no of   % of category no of  % of   
  share no. of share  shares no. of share  
  holders  shares holdings  holders shares holdings
         
 1- 1,000  101  51,217  0.07% 1-1,000  100  51,212  0.07%
 1,001-5,000  72  217,506  0.28% 1,001-5,000  74  224,511  0.29%
 5,001-10,000  19  168,898  0.22% 5,001-10,000  19  168,898  0.22%
 10,001-50,000  40  1,260,310  1.62% 10,001-50,000  40  1,253,479  1.61%
 50,00-100,000  14  1,115,012  1.44% 50,001-100,000  15  1,215,012  1.56%
 100,001-500,000  18  3,987,933  5.13% 100,001-500,000  18  3,969,935  5.11%
 500,001-1,000,000  3  2,412,835  3.11% 500,001-1,000,000  4  3,366,666  4.33%
 Over-1,000,001  7  68,487,067  88.14% Over-1,000,001  5  67,451,065  86.81%
 total 274   77,700,778  100.00%   275   77,700,778  100.00%



Kanrich Finance Ltd | Annual Report 2016/17180

notice oF meeting

NOtICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting 
of the Shareholders of Kanrich Finance Limited, will be held at 
the Kanrich Finance Limited, No. 69, Ward Place, Colombo 07 
on 29th June 2017 at 10.30 A.M. for the following purposes:

agenda
1. to consider and receive the Annual Report of the Board 

and the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 
31st March 2017, together with the Report of the Auditors 
thereon.

2. to re-elect Mr. K K D Ranawaka , who retires by rotation 
at the Annual General Meeting, a Director.

3. to elect Mr.t L B Hurulle as a Director of the Company.

4. to authorize the Directors to determine contributions to 
charities.

5. to authorize the Directors to determine the remuneration 
of the Auditors, Messrs. KPMG, Chartered Accountants 
who are deemed to have been re-appointed as Auditors in 
terms of Section 158 of the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007.

6. to consider any other business of which due notice has 
been given.

By Order of the Board
kanRich Finance limited
Chart Business Systems (Private) Limited

Sgd.
secretaries
No.141/3, Vauxhall Street
Colombo 02

06th June 2017

note

 N  A shareholder is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and 
vote on his/ her behalf, and a proxy need not to be a 
shareholder of the Company. A Form of Proxy is attached 
for this purpose. the instrument appointing a Proxy must 
be deposited at Chart Business Systems (Pvt) Ltd - the 
Secretaries of the Company, No. 141/3, Vauxhall Street, 
Colombo 02 not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the 
time fixed for the meeting. 

 N  Shareholders are requested to indicate any changes in their 
address. 

 N  the Financial Statement of the Company for the 2016/2017 
is attached herewith the
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coRpoRate inFoRmation

name oF the company
Kanrich Finance Ltd.

legal FoRm
Incorporated as a Limited Liability Company under Chapter 
145 of the Company Ordinance No. 51 of 1938.

Re-registered under the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 and 
licensed by the Monetary Board of Central Bank under the 
Finance Business Act No. 42 of 2011.

date oF incoRpoRation
27th October 1971

company numbeR
PB 694

RegisteRed oFFice
No. 69, Ward Place,
Colombo 07
tel: 011 4381381/011 2685656
Fax: 011 4717784
Email: info@kanrich.lk
Web: www.kanrich.lk

pRinciple lines oF business
the Company accepts deposits from the public and engaged 
in SME Loans and Real Estate.

boaRd oF diRectoRs
Mr. P. A. Pematilaka
Mr. D. S. I. Weerasinghe
Dr. K. M. S. B. Rekogama
Mr. K. K. D. Ranawaka
Mr. t. L. B. Hurulle

senioR management
Mr. Aloka Wahalawatta - GM
Mr. Eranda Godage - GM
Mr. Sadeepa Rathnayake – GM
Mr. Pradeep Basnayake- DGM
Mr. Ravi Indra Kumara Joseph - AGM
Mr. Celariston Martinez - AGM
Mrs. W. Shyaminie Fernando - AGM
Mr. thushara Wijewardena - AGM - Credit

auditoRs
messrs kpmg sri lanka
No: 32A, Sir Mohamed Macan Markar Mawatha,
Colombo

bankeRs
Commercial Bank PLC
Pan Asia Banking Corporation PLC
People’s Bank
Sampath Bank PLC
Nation Development Bank PLC
Seylan Bank PLC
Bank of Ceylon
Hatton National Bank PLC

tax advisoRs
Amarasekara & Co.
Chartered Accountants
No 12, Rotunda Gardens, Colombo 03

actuaRial valueR
Smile Global (Pvt) Limited
135/3/1/1 Kirula Road, Colombo 00500

secRetaRies
Messrs Chart Business Systems (Pvt) Ltd.
141/3, Vauxhall Street, Colombo 02
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FRom oF pRoxy

I/We .............................................................................................................................................................................................................

of ..................................................................................................................................................................................................................

being a *shareholder/ shareholders of Kanrich Finance Limited hereby appoint

(i) ................................................................................................................................................................................................................

of .......................................................................................................................................................................... or failing him.

(ii) Mr. P. A. Pematilaka, Chairman of the Board of Kanrich Finance Limited, or failing him any one of the other Directors of 
the Company as *my/our proxy to attend and vote as indicated hereunder for *me/us and on *my/our behalf at the Annual 
General Meeting of the Company to be held on 29th June 2017 and at every poll which may be taken in consequence of the 
aforesaid meeting and at any adjournment thereof.

 For  against
1. to consider and receive the Annual Report of the Board and the Audited Financial Statements 
 for the year ended 31st March 2017, together with the Report of the Auditors thereon.

2. to re-elect Mr. K. K. D. Ranawaka, who retires by rotation at the Annual General Meeting, 
 a Director.

3. to elect Mr. t. L. B. Hurulle as a Director of the Company.

4. to authorize the Directors to determine contributions to charities.

5. to authorize the Directors to determine the remuneration of the Auditors, Messrs. KPMG Ford 
 Rhodes thornton & Company Chartered Accountants who are deemed to have been 
 re-appointed as Auditors in terms of Section 158 of the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007.

(**) The proxy may vote as he thinks fit on any other resolution brought before the Meeting.

....................................................... ……………………… 2017
Signature of Shareholder Date

note :  (a) * Please delete the inappropriate words.
  (b) Instructions as to completion are noted on the reverse hereof
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From of proxy Contd.

instRuctions as to completion

1. to be valid, this Form of Proxy must be deposited at Chart Business Systems (Pvt) Ltd 
- the Secretaries of the Company, No. 141/3, Vauxhall Street, Colombo 02 not less than 
forty-eight (48) hours before the time fixed for the meeting.

2. In perfecting the Form of Proxy, please ensure that all details are legible.

3. If you wish to appoint a person other than the Chairman of the Company (or failing 
him, one of the Directors) as your proxy, please insert the relevant details at 1 overleaf 
and initial against this entry.

4. Please indicate with an x in the space provided how your proxy is to vote on each 
resolution. If no indication is given, the proxy in his discretion will vote as he thinks 
fit. Please also delete (**) if you do not wish your proxy to vote as he thinks fit on any 
other resolution brought before the Meeting.

5. In the case of a Company / Corporation, the proxy must be under its Common Seal 
which should be affixed and attested in the manner prescribed by its Articles of 
Association.

6. Where the Form of Proxy is signed under a Power of Attorney (POA) which has not 
been registered with the Company, the original POA together with a photocopy of same 
or a copy certified by a Notary Public must be lodged with the Company along wit h 
the Form of Proxy.
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